From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Re: Redacted Copy of Warehouse Proposal
Date: Monday, November 26, 2012 4:17:17 PM
Hello Craig,

I am copying Steve Lauwers on this response. Unless there is some cause for
objection that he has, thank you for keeping us updated.

Mike
On Nov 26, 2012 4:00 PM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@Iiquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

The Commission has received Right-to-Know Law requests regarding the
Warehouse Services RFP. All Vendors are receiving an email regarding the Right-
to-Know requests. One of the items requested is your proposal. In accordance
with Section 1.14, Disclosure of Proposal, Page 12 of the RFP, you were required
to provide a redacted proposal. In our review of the material you submitted with
your proposal, we see on Page 14 of your proposal that there is no vendor
confidential information in your proposal. Therefore, the Commission will be
releasing your proposal electronically in the near future using the CD-ROM that
you provided.

We will also be releasing all email communications between Distributech and the
NHSLC at the same time.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Chief of Administration

NH State Liqguor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G

Subject: Distributech - Redacted Copy of Warehouse Proposal
Date: Monday, November 26, 2012 4:00:40 PM

Mike:

The Commission has received Right-to-Know Law requests regarding the Warehouse Services RFP.
All Vendors are receiving an email regarding the Right-to-Know requests. One of the items
requested is your proposal. In accordance with Section 1.14, Disclosure of Proposal, Page 12 of the
RFP, you were required to provide a redacted proposal. In our review of the material you
submitted with your proposal, we see on Page 14 of your proposal that there is no vendor
confidential information in your proposal. Therefore, the Commission will be releasing your
proposal electronically in the near future using the CD-ROM that you provided.

We will also be releasing all email communications between Distributech and the NHSLC at the
same time.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Chief of Administration

NH State Liqguor Commission
& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Re: RFP Process

Date: Wednesday, November 14, 2012 4:29:51 PM

Thank you Craig for this courtesy.
Mike

On Nov 14, 2012 4:23 PM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@Iiquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

As a matter of courtesy, this is to notify you that, under Section 4.6 and 4.6.1,
Page 35 of the Warehouse RFP, a Vendor has been notified in writing of its
selection for contract discussions because its proposal has been determined to be
the most advantageous to the state as determined by the NHSLC after taking into
consideration all of the evaluation factors. Contract negotiations are ongoing.

We must remind you that if the NHSLC is unable to reach an agreement during
contract discussions, it may commence discussions with the next highest-ranked
Vendor.

You are also reminded that this entire process is confidential until the contract is
approved by the office of the Attorney General. You will be notified when and if
that occurs.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Chief of Administration

NH State Liqguor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G

Subject: RFP Process - Distributech

Date: Wednesday, November 14, 2012 4:23:17 PM
Mike:

As a matter of courtesy, this is to notify you that, under Section 4.6 and 4.6.1, Page 35 of the
Warehouse RFP, a Vendor has been notified in writing of its selection for contract discussions
because its proposal has been determined to be the most advantageous to the state as determined
by the NHSLC after taking into consideration all of the evaluation factors. Contract negotiations
are ongoing.

We must remind you that if the NHSLC is unable to reach an agreement during contract
discussions, it may commence discussions with the next highest-ranked Vendor.

You are also reminded that this entire process is confidential until the contract is approved by the
office of the Attorney General. You will be notified when and if that occurs.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Chief of Administration

NH State Liqguor Commission
& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Re: Distributech - Financial BAFO Final Confirmation
Date: Thursday, November 01, 2012 9:57:48 AM

Hello Craig,

Distributech is pleased to confirm the validity $31,233,660 for the first 30-month
term.

Throughout yesterday several of our financial directors carefully reviewed and
cross-checked all critical financial components of the RFP panel's template against

the details underlying our 30-month pro forma. Our team's offer is a solid
deliverable.

Best regards,
Mike

On Tue, Oct 30, 2012 at 11:10 AM, Craig W. Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us>
wrote:

Mike:

At this time, the Liquor Commission wishes to make a final confirmation of your
financial BAFO. We understand that your final offer to us on the template for the
first 30 months is $31,233,660.

Please confirm that this number is correct no later than 1 PM on Friday, November
2, 2012.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Chief of Administration
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NH State Liquor Commission
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intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Re: Distributech - Financial BAFO Final Confirmation
Date: Tuesday, October 30, 2012 11:37:25 AM

Thank you Craig. We have received your request and will be able to respond on time
or earlier.

Best regards,
Mike

On Oct 30, 2012 11:10 AM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

At this time, the Liquor Commission wishes to make a final confirmation of your
financial BAFO. We understand that your final offer to us on the template for the
first 30 months is $31,233,660.

Please confirm that this number is correct no later than 1 PM on Friday, November
2, 2012.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Chief of Administration

NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Stephen J. Judge

To: "Steven J. Lauwers"; Craig W. Bulkley; Web WEI - Mike G
Subject: RE: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC

Date: Friday, October 26, 2012 3:46:27 PM

Attachments: image002.png

Dear Steve,

This will suffice.
Thank you,

Steve

R R R R S Rk S b b b b b R R R

Stephen J. Judge

AG Lega Consultant for NHS Liquor Commission
Wadleigh, Starr & Peters, PLLC

95 Market Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Tel: 603-669-4140

Fax: 603-669-6018

Web: www.wadleighlaw.com

E-mail: sudge@wadleighlaw.com

E-mail: stephen.j.judge@liquor.state.nh.us

Please do not print this email unless necessary

***% CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE ****

NOTICE: This e-mail, including any attachments, is intended for the receipt and use by the
intended addressee(s) only, and may contain privileged, confidential, work product and/or
trade secrets or other information of a proprietary nature. If you are not an intended recipient
of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized use or distribution of this e-
mail, including any attachments, is strictly prohibited.

From: Steven J. Lauwers [mailto:sji@Rathlaw.com]

Sent: Friday, October 26, 2012 3:43 PM

To: Craig W. Bulkley; Web WEI - Mike G

Cc: Stephen J. Judge
Subject: RE: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC

Craig and Steve:

The proposed amendments to P-37 that you identified in your earlier email are acceptable to
Distributech, LLC.

Please let us know if you need anything more formal from us.
Best regards,

Steve
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Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F (603) 225-9774
E sjl@rathlaw.com
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CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.

From: Craig W. Bulkley [mailto:cbulkley@Iiguor.state.nh.us]
Sent: Friday, October 26, 2012 12:40 PM

To: Web WEI - Mike G; Steven J. Lauwers
Cc: Stephen J. Judge; Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC

Dear Mike,

Following consultation with the AG’ s Office, the EC is authorized to amend the P-37 as
follows.

One, the parties shall mutually agree to waive consequential and indirect damages.

Two, In the event of a material breach that involves the payment of a penalty, the Vendor
shall pay the penalty. If the Vendor fails to pay the penalty within a reasonable time, the
NHSL C shall recover the penalty from the performance bond, provided, however, that the
Vendor restores the bond to its original or any increased amount within a reasonable time.
| expect that the terms will be clarified to a specific time.

Steve Judge on behalf of

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
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Director
Division of Administration
NH State Liqguor Commission
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& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Steven J. Lauwers

To: Craig W. Bulkley; Web WEI - Mike G
Cc: Stephen J. Judge

Subject: RE: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC
Date: Friday, October 26, 2012 3:45:32 PM
Attachments: imaqge002.png

Craig and Steve:

The proposed amendments to P-37 that you identified in your earlier email are acceptable to
Distributech, LLC.

Please let us know if you need anything more formal from us.
Best regards,

Steve

Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F (603) 225-9774
E sjl@rathlaw.com

cid:image003.jpg@01CD38F7.01D4C010

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.

From: Craig W. Bulkley [mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us]
Sent: Friday, October 26, 2012 12:40 PM

To: Web WEI - Mike G; Steven J. Lauwers

Cc: Stephen J. Judge; Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC
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Dear Mike,

Following consultation with the AG’ s Office, the EC is authorized to amend the P-37 as
follows.

One, the parties shall mutually agree to waive consequential and indirect damages.

Two, In the event of a material breach that involves the payment of a penalty, the Vendor
shall pay the penalty. If the Vendor fails to pay the penalty within a reasonable time, the
NHSLC shall recover the penalty from the performance bond, provided, however, that the
Vendor restores the bond to its original or any increased amount within a reasonable time.
| expect that the terms will be clarified to a specific time.

Steve Judge on behalf of

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G; "Steven J. Lauwers"
Cc: Stephen J. Judge; Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: P-37 Amendments Distributech, LLC
Date: Friday, October 26, 2012 12:39:42 PM
Dear Mike,

Following consultation with the AG’ s Office, the EC is authorized to amend the P-37 as
follows.

One, the parties shall mutually agree to waive consequential and indirect damages.

Two, In the event of a material breach that involves the payment of a penalty, the Vendor
shall pay the penalty. If the Vendor fails to pay the penalty within a reasonable time, the
NHSL C shall recover the penalty from the performance bond, provided, however, that the
Vendor restores the bond to its original or any increased amount within a reasonable time.
| expect that the terms will be clarified to a specific time.

Steve Judge on behalf of

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G
Subject: RE: Distributech Financial Template - New Site
Date: Friday, September 28, 2012 10:25:48 AM

Received; thank you

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Mike G [mailto:mike@webwei.com]

Sent: Friday, September 28, 2012 9:57 AM

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: Re: Distributech Financial Template - New Site

Good morning Craig,

The Hooksett site will not have any impact on the total costs that were reflected in the template
that Distributech provided to the Commission in our June response to the RFP. We stand by those
figures.

We would be happy to answer any detailed questions.

Best regards,

Mike
On Thu, Sep 27, 2012 at 2:26 PM, Craig W. Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

We have received the information regarding the site in Hooksett. Y ou have submitted a
template with the grand total of your costs. Does the new site change the grand total ?

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.
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Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

=

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by

telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Re: Distributech Financial Template - New Site
Date: Friday, September 28, 2012 10:17:30 AM

Good morning Craig,

The Hooksett site will not have any impact on the total costs that were reflected in the template that
Distributech provided to the Commission in our June response to the RFP. We stand by those figures.

We would be happy to answer any detailed questions.

Best regards,
Mike

On Thu, Sep 27, 2012 at 2:26 PM, Craig W. Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us>
wrote:

Mike:

We have received the information regarding the site in Hooksett. You have
submitted a template with the grand total of your costs. Does the new site change
the grand total?

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
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This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: Distributech Financial Template - New Site
Date: Thursday, September 27, 2012 2:26:29 PM
Mike:

We have received the information regarding the site in Hooksett. You have submitted a template
with the grand total of your costs. Does the new site change the grand total?

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:mike@braincircuit.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Steven J. Lauwers"

Subject: RE: Distributech, LLC

Date: Monday, September 24, 2012 2:43:44 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Received; thank you

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Steven J. Lauwers [mailto:sji@Rathlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, September 24, 2012 12:29 PM

To: Stephen J. Judge

Cc: Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: RE: Distributech, LLC

Steve and Craig,
Thank you!

Attached are:

(i) Final executed letter of intent (to be followed by a full P&S);
(ii) Phase 1-A archeological report from February 2007;

(iii) Geotechnical design investigation report from March 2007;
(iv) Phase 1 environmental site assessment from February 2007;
(v) Various site maps, etc.

Please let us know if you have any questions with respect to any of the attached documents.
We would also be happy to schedule a site visit at the review panel’s convenience.
Best regards,

Steve


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:sjl@Rathlaw.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
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Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F  (603) 225-9774

E sjl@rathlaw.com

cid:image003.jpg@01CD38F7.01D4C010
2]

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.

From: Stephen J. Judge [mailto:stephen.j.judge@liquor.state.nh.us
Sent: Monday, September 24, 2012 11:55 AM

To: Steven J. Lauwers

Cc: Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: RE: Distributech, LLC

Steve,

| was out teaching a CLE and just received your message. Please send the materials to Craig. | have
copied him on this email.

Steve

From: Steven J. Lauwers [mailto:sji@Rathlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 18, 2012 11:48 AM

To: Stephen J. Judge
Subject: Distributech, LLC

Steve,

We have additional materials that we would like to provide with respect to the Hooksett site,
including the executed letter of intent, a Phase | environmental study that the owner had


http://www.rathlaw.com/
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com
mailto:[mailto:stephen.j.judge@liquor.state.nh.us]
mailto:[mailto:sjl@Rathlaw.com]

completed in 2007, and further information with respect to work that has already been completed.

Would it be permissible for me to send these materials to you?

Again, we wish to be very respectful of the process, but we also know that the review panel was
extremely interested in having these items with respect to the Integra Drive site in Concord.

Please let me know.

Thank you and best regards,

Steve

Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F (603) 225-9774
E sjl@rathlaw.com

cid:image003.jpg@01CD38F7.01D4C010
[ 2]
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CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.


http://www.rathlaw.com/
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com

From: Stephen J. Judge

To: "Steven J. Lauwers"

Cc: Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: RE: Distributech, LLC

Date: Monday, September 24, 2012 11:55:12 AM
Attachments: imaqge002.png

Steve,

| was out teaching a CLE and just received your message. Please send the materials to Craig. | have
copied him on this email.

Steve

From: Steven J. Lauwers [mailto:sji@Rathlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 18, 2012 11:48 AM

To: Stephen J. Judge

Subject: Distributech, LLC

Steve,

We have additional materials that we would like to provide with respect to the Hooksett site,
including the executed letter of intent, a Phase | environmental study that the owner had
completed in 2007, and further information with respect to work that has already been completed.

Would it be permissible for me to send these materials to you?

Again, we wish to be very respectful of the process, but we also know that the review panel was
extremely interested in having these items with respect to the Integra Drive site in Concord.

Please let me know.
Thank you and best regards,

Steve

Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F  (603) 225-9774

E sjl@rathlaw.com
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CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.



From: Mike G

To: Steven J. Lauwers

Cc: Craig W. Bulkley

Subject: Re: Distributech, LLC

Date: Friday, September 07, 2012 12:14:55 PM
Attachments: imaqge002.png

Craig,

As you can tell, we turned this around really quickly. If there is any other
information that you need, just let us know --for example the LOI on the Hooksett
property that we executed earlier this week.

Thank you very much.
Mike

On Fri, Sep 7, 2012 at 12:02 PM, Steven J. Lauwers <sjl@rathlaw.com> wrote:

Craig,

Mike Goclowski passed along to me your request for additional information
regarding the alternate Distributech site for the proposed warehouse.

Attached is a pdf that sets out the basic information.

We would be happy to answer any questions or provide any additional information
to the panel, at your convenience.

I would also be happy to discuss any of the legal issues with Steve Judge.

Thank you and best regards,

Steve

Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza


mailto:mike@webwei.com
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com
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Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345

T (603) 226-2600
F (603) 225-9774

E sjl@rathlaw.com

®

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and
may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for
delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from
your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for
the purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,
marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.
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From: Steven J. Lauwers

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: Web WEI - Mike G

Subject: Distributech, LLC Modification to Proposal (Site Change)

Date: Friday, September 07, 2012 12:03:33 PM

Attachments: Disributech, LLC RFP 2012-14 Modification to Proposal.pdf
imaae002.png

Craig,

Mike Goclowski passed along to me your request for additional information regarding the alternate
Distributech site for the proposed warehouse.

Attached is a pdf that sets out the basic information.

We would be happy to answer any questions or provide any additional information to the panel, at
your convenience.

| would also be happy to discuss any of the legal issues with Steve Judge.
Thank you and best regards,

Steve

Steven J. Lauwers
Attorney at Law

One Capital Plaza
Concord, NH 03302-1500
www.rathlaw.com

DD (603) 410-4345
T (603) 226-2600
F (603) 225-9774
E sjl@rathlaw.com

cid:image003.jpg@01CD38F7.01D4C010
[ 7]
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CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION: This message is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the
reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering
the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify
us immediately by return e-mail and delete this e-mail and all attachments from your system.

CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: This communication, including any attachments or enclosures, is not intended
by the author to be used, and it may not be used by the addressee, recipient, or any other person, for the
purpose of (1) avoiding penalties under the United States Internal Revenue Code, or (2) promoting,


mailto:sjl@Rathlaw.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:mike@webwei.com

Distributech, LLC
September 7, 2012
Modification to Proposal
State of New Hampshire
RFP 2012-14
Warehouse Services for Spirits and Wine Product,

Equipment and Supplies

Thank you for this opportunity to respond to the Review Panel’s inquiry in more detail.

Distributech’s primary goal is to stay on schedule to deliver to the Commission a fully operable,

state-of-the-art warehouse facility on time and as we have proposed.

Given certain difficulties that have recently arisen with the Integra Drive site in Concord, we are

now seeking to amend our proposal to use an alternative site.

The alternative site, on Route 28 in Hooksett, is already permitted for construction of a 340,000
square foot warehouse. We have confirmed that the Hooksett site will permit the construction
of the original Distributech building and designs, as have been proposed to the Commission.

In this regard, it is also very helpful that our contractor, Stahlman Group, had been involved in

much of the site work planning for the previous owner for this alternate site.





Distributech would not seek to make any change to our proposal with respect to the building or
the internal designs/operations. There may be some changes to parking, etc. In other words,
except for the location being in Hooksett rather than in Concord, we believe that the Hooksett
site will provide precisely the same warehouse functionality as the Concord site that we had

originally proposed.

In addition, we strongly believe that the alternative site will provide us with a more streamlined
approval and development schedule that should assist us in meeting aggressive building
schedules. The owner of the Hooksett site had a Phase | environmental study completed in
2008 and had also successfully completed the permitting process to locate a 340,000 square
foot warehouse on the Hooksett site, which is essentially the same size as our proposed

warehouse for the Commission.

Assuming that we are permitted to amend our proposal to the alternative site in Hooksett, we
do not believe that delaying the Contract Award Date for an additional two months until
November 14, 2012 will compel Distributech to increase its charges to the Commission during

the initial 30-month period of the warehouse contract.

However, Distributech will need to gain approval by the RFP Panel for our alternate location.
Critically important is the fact that our site on Eastpoint Drive in Hooksett has turn-key
permitting and construction capabilities in place already; and will save valuable and precious

time.





Except as described above, no provisions of the original bid by Distributech will be altered.
We would also encourage a site visit by the review panel, which we would be pleased to
arrange at your convenience. We are also prepared to provide any further documentary
evidence (e.g., letter of intent to acquire property, etc) that the review panel and its legal
counsel requests, and we are aggressively conducting further due diligence to confirm that no

problems exist.

Modification: Accept a new building site for the proposed Distributech warehouse.
During the past two months, Distributech has learned that getting the necessary permits for its
Concord building site would be a fairly lengthy process, but we were able to still fit this within
our proposal schedule. We also were able to adapt to future road building plans by the City of
Concord through site plan revisions. However, we have very recently learned that we are
simply unable to obtain a reasonable solution with respect to a utility right of way that crosses
the Integra Drive site. The location of this easement, together with the location of the proposed
City of Concord public road, made it essentially impossible to locate our proposed building on
the site. While we may have developed alternatives for moving the utility easement and/or
roadway that would have ultimately been acceptable to the utility and the City of Concord: (i)
none of these outcomes was assured; (ii) Distributech could not control the ultimate timing of
such a resolution; and (iii) Distributech would have continued to sink costs into a site that may

simply not have worked in the end.

Upon realizing that the Integra Drive site may simply become impracticable, we were fortunate

to identify and very recently secure a superior building site at 10 Eastpoint Drive, Hooksett, NH





that was for sale, had a completed set of site plans, had a recent Phase | environmental report,
and that already had been completely permitted for the construction of a 340,000 square foot
warehouse by the seller. In addition, our building contractor, Stahlman, was already intimately

familiar with the Hooksett site.

Beyond addressing the difficulties of the Integra Drive site, we think the new site may provide
us with an opportunity for a compressed development schedule that may be better suited to

the Commission’s timing.

From a financial perspective, the fully permitted property provides Distributech with a much

more accelerated launch and build-out calendar.

See the figure below which depicts the existing planned design. Except for an upgrade from
their ten (10) loading docks to our eighteen (18), the approved design is almost identical to the

plan that we originally submitted for the Concord location.





Hooksett Building Site
10 Eastpoint Drive, Hooksett, NH
Permitted for 340,000 SF Warehouse on 88 acres

-,

/

The building site is also more ideally located near the major NH north-south and east-west
highways (See figure below.)





S e ___ _MUBURN ROCKINGHAM
WOEN 777

LOCUS MAP

1" = 2500

Site located with two (2) entrances onto Route 28 Bypass, within .5 mile of Route 101, Exit 1
on Auburn line, near Manchester line and near the intersection of Route 101 and Route 93

Eastpoint Drive has superior transportation access, with significantly less approach traffic from Routes

93, 101 and Bypass 28.

From a communications standpoint, the new site is also superior because it is flanked on two (2) sides
with fiber-optic runs; and its nearest abutter is a Verizon microwave tower attached to a major server

network operations center.





For in-bound shipments, changing to the new site will annually save over 4,000 trucks arriving from
and returning to out-of-state suppliers approximately 35 miles in fuel, drive time and tolls when

compared to the Integra Drive location.

For out-bound shipments, we are actually in a superior location at the very center of NH’s sales
activity. The figure below shows the Top 10 State Stores and our Hooksett site optimally located to

minimize inventory and trucking costs for these 10 stores that account for 35% of all NH sales.

9 West Lebanon

B Hooksett - North
W Hoogksett - South Portsmouth 3
o !

Hampton - N+

Hampton - 572
10 Keene

Nashua 5

Salem ¢
Nashua 8
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marketing, or recommending to any other party any transaction or matter addressed herein.



From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Distributech - Contract award extension+
Date: Thursday, September 06, 2012 8:56:25 AM

Good morning Craig,

You have asked us "What additional costs would be incurred if the contract was not awarded until
November 14, 2012? What would be the impact on your grand total costs over the initial 30-month
term?"

Distributech's answer is as follows: If the award is not granted to Distributech on September 12t put
the contract is instead awarded to Distributech on or before November 14th, we are of the view that
Distributech will not need to adjust its costs charged to the Commission over the initial 30-month term.
Certainly, this delay may well add to our initial costs as development, construction and testing
schedules are compressed, but at this time we believe that these additional costs can be borne by
Distributech. Of course, we are also concerned about the impact of winter weather on construction,
etc.

However, your question and our response are directly related to a significant (and we think favorable)
development relating to Distributech’s proposal that we would like to share with the panel. As always,
we want to be sure that any communication with the panel is in keeping with the strict procedural
guidelines that the Commission and the panel are following during the RFP process, including the
black-out period.

Can you please let us know the proper way to provide this additional information to the panel? We
would be happy to do so in writing, and we would also be happy to work through Steve Judge and our
attorney, Steve Lauwers, if the panel thought that was advisable.

Thank you again for the panel's consideration.

Mike Goclowski, Manager

Distributech, LLC


mailto:mike@webwei.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com

From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Re: Distributech Contract Award Extension
Date: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 12:58:05 PM

Thank you Craig.
Mike

On Wed, Sep 5, 2012 at 12:55 PM, Craig W. Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us>
wrote:

Mike:

You can have an extension until 5 PM tomorrow, 9/6.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Mike G [mailto:mike@webwei.com]

Sent: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 11:57 AM
To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Contract Award Extension


mailto:mike@webwei.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
tel:%28603%29%20230-7008
tel:%28603%29%20271-3897
tel:%28603%29%20490-1559
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
tel:%28603%29230-7008
mailto:mike@webwei.com

Good morning Craig,

You have asked us "What additional costs would be incurred if the contract was
not awarded until November 14, 2012? What would be the impact on your grand
total costs over the initial 30-month term?"

You had also stated that you could grant us additional time if needed.

Distributech wants its answer to be as factually correct and comprehensive as possible. As we dug
into it, we realized that your question was complex in the sense that we needed to understand not
only the impact on development and constructions costs on our side, but also the ability and
willingness of Distributech to bear those costs directly without passing them along through our pricing
over the intial 30-month term of the contract. Our goal is to hold our pricing flat, but we need to do
some additional diligence on our side, as well as a pin down the details of some changes on our
side.

For that reason, could you please provide us with an additional 48-hours to respond?

Thank you again for the panel's consideration.

Mike Goclowski, Manager

Distributech, LLC



From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G

Subject: RE: Distributech Contract Award Extension
Date: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 12:55:03 PM
Mike:

You can have an extension until 5 PM tomorrow, 9/6.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Mike G [mailto:mike@webwei.com]

Sent: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 11:57 AM

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Contract Award Extension

Good morning Craig,

Y ou have asked us "What additional costs would be incurred if the contract was not awarded
until November 14, 2012? What would be the impact on your grand total costs over the
initial 30-month term?"

You had also stated that you could grant us additional time if needed.

Distributech wants its answer to be as factually correct and comprehensive as possible. As we dug
into it, we realized that your question was complex in the sense that we needed to understand not only
the impact on development and constructions costs on our side, but also the ability and willingness of
Distributech to bear those costs directly without passing them along through our pricing over the intial
30-month term of the contract. Our goal is to hold our pricing flat, but we need to do some additional
diligence on our side, as well as a pin down the details of some changes on our side.

For that reason, could you please provide us with an additional 48-hours to respond?
Thank you again for the panel's consideration.

Mike Goclowski, Manager
Distributech, LLC


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
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mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us




From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: RathLaw -Steve Lauwers

Subject: Distributech Contract Award Extension

Date: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 11:57:55 AM

Good morning Craig,

You have asked us "What additional costs would be incurred if the contract was not awarded until November 14,
2012? What would be the impact on your grand total costs over the initial 30-month term?"

You had also stated that you could grant us additional time if needed.

Distributech wants its answer to be as factually correct and comprehensive as possible. As we dug into it, we
realized that your question was complex in the sense that we needed to understand not only the impact on
development and constructions costs on our side, but also the ability and willingness of Distributech to bear those
costs directly without passing them along through our pricing over the intial 30-month term of the contract. Our
goal is to hold our pricing flat, but we need to do some additional diligence on our side, as well as a pin down the
details of some changes on our side.

For that reason, could you please provide us with an additional 48-hours to respond?

Thank you again for the panel's consideration.

Mike Goclowski, Manager

Distributech, LLC


mailto:mike@webwei.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:sjl@rathlaw.com

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: Distributech - Contract Award Extension
Date: Friday, August 31, 2012 4:17:52 PM
Mike:

The Evaluation Committee has a question that you need to answer.

The question is: What additional costs would be incurred if the contract was not awarded until
November 14, 2012? What would be the impact on your grand total costs over the initial 30-
month term?

We would like a response by 12:00 noon on Wednesday, September 5, 2012. If, however, a small
amount of additional time is required, please let us know.

Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: Distributech - Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14
Date: Tuesday, August 14, 2012 12:00:41 PM

Mike:

Pursuant to Section 1.5.3, Page 8 of the Warehouse Services RFP, the NHSLC has the
authority to amend the RFP at any time and at its sole discretion.

The NHSLC hereby amends Section 1.2, Schedule of Events on Page 5 of the RFP from
June 7, 2012 - August 1, 2012 to June 7, 2012 — September 12, 2012.

This date is well within the requirement that the proposals remain valid for a period of 210 days
from the proposal due date (June 7, 2012). The Evaluation Committee will continue to work as
quickly as possible to allow the NHSLC to reach contract award. Vendors may be asked for
additional oral and/or written presentations in NHSLC’s continuing effort to identify the proposal
most adventageous to the State of New Hampshire.

If you have any questions or comments, please direct them via email to me, Craig W. Bulkley, as
the issuing officer.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
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intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Ce: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Distributech feedback and cross-check---for NHSLC Rate Analysis
Date: Friday, July 20, 2012 2:03:02 PM

Attachments:
CostCalculatorPicture.gif.

Hi Craig,
We have been reviewing the Worksheets that you sent to us yesterday.

There is only one area that seems to have an error... Labeling /Relabeling Fees are overstated and shown redundantly in part.
Because of this, the bottom line cost per case is merely overstated by 1 cent per case

Cells W66 through W73 should all be zeroed out. These labeling and relabeling costs are not to be assessed against the NHSLC, and are already included
in the related fees for Suppliers’ costs. [These subtotal out to $57,287 and were only conditional fees; i.e., assessed only in the event that the local
broker does not send an employee over to the warehouse to verify a "mystery product” that requires correct or corrected labeling.

We also spent a bit of time cross-verifying your method of assessing the costs two ways: (1) The current confusing-fee method
against (2) Our Proposed Fee Method.

It all seems to add up well ! Once we fix the the relabeling (mentioned above), your own analysis and our own both match up at a
Net Cost Per Case of $2.25 per case :)

Embedded below is a snapshot of the cross-check with our method.

[NOTE: If it prints poorly from within this email, 1 have attached to this email both the snapshot and the Cost Calculator for you].

Thanks and we will see you Monday.

Mike

(]
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CostCalculator



				Distributech 						Simplified Fee Calculator

				Handling & Inventory Management Fees										Mixed Case Fees										Storage Fees

				Growth		YR		Supplier Cases		Supplier Cases (Inbound plus Outbound Fees)		NHSLC Cases (Inbound plus Outbound Fees as Vendor)		Mixed Case (Bottles)		Licensee Volume (Bottles)		Licensee Cost (Bottles)		NHSLC Store Volume (Bottles)		NHSLC Cost (Bottles)		AVG Daily Cases On Hand (in warehouse)		Supplier Storage Fees

						2011Jun		4,900,000						924,000		403,560				520,440				805,000

				1.03		2012Jul		5,047,000						951,720		415,184				536,536				829,150

						2013Jun		5,198,410						980,272		419,350				560,922				854,025

								Inbound Case Management Fee:		$1.00				Mixing Fee / Bottle:				$0.50						Storage		$0.0070

								Outbound Case Management Fee:		$1.00														 /Case/Day



				Contract Yr1		2014Jun		5,317,577		$   10,635,154		$   70,000		1,009,680		431,931		$   215,965		577,749		$   288,875		879,645		$2,247,494

				Contract Yr2		2015Jun		5,478,154		$   10,956,309		$   70,000		1,039,970		444,888		$   222,444		595,082		$   297,541		906,035		$2,314,918		Total

				Last 6 Mos		2016Jun		2,804,275		$   5,608,549		$   35,000		535,585		229,118		$   114,559		306,467		$   153,234		919,625		$1,171,602		System Cost:

				Total Case Throughput:				13,600,006		$   27,200,012		$   175,000						$552,968.28				$739,649				$5,734,014		$   34,401,644

																												Includes $1.2M in Licensee+NHSLC bottle fees



																										30 MO Total Cost for Suppliers:		$   32,934,027

																										AVG Cost / Case		$2.42

																								Existing Oct31 2013 Contract		$2.52		4%



																										30 MO Total Cost for NHSLC:		$   914,649

												 														Hire NHSLC warehouse employees		$   (1,260,000)

																										Rent Concord Warehouse 		$   (600,000)

																										Technical Integration, Reporting, Invoicing		$   (900,000)

																										Licensee Mixed Cases (Added Rev):		$   (552,968)

																												$   (2,398,319)

																										Grand Total Cost:		$   30,535,707

																										Cost/Case		$   2.25


















































































e Simplified Fee Calculator

Handling & Inventory Management Fees Mixed Case Fees Storage Fees

Suppiics Grece BNRSRS G licensee: ||| licenee: |IESS IR G
. . i .
Supplier o (Inbound plus | Mixed Case Store  NHSLCCost| CasesOn S
. e . .
. e .
- e
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2011un___ 4,900,000 924000 [ 403,560 520,440 805,000
103 [20120ul 5,047,000 951,720 415184 536,536 829,150
2013)un___ 5,198,410 980272 | 419,350 560,922 854,025
Inbound Case Management Fee: $1.00

Growth

Fees.

Storage
Mixing Fee / Bottle: $0.50 o $0.0070
Outbound Case Management Fee: $1.00 JCase/Day

Contract¥rl 2014lun 5317577 S 10,635,154 1009680 | 431,931|S 215965 | 577,749 $ 288,875 879,645 $2,247,494]
Contract¥r2 2015)un 5478154 |S 10,956,309 1039970 | 444888 | S 222,444 | 595082 $ 297,541 906,035 $2,314,918| Total

Last6Mos  2016lun  2,804,275[$ 56085549 535585 | 229118 (S 114,559 | 306,467 S 153,234 919,625 $1,171,602| System Cost:
Total Case Throughput: 13,600,006 | S 27,200,012 $552,968.28 $739,649 $5,734,014| $ 34,401,644

Includes $1.2M in Licensee+NHSLC bottle fees|

30 MO Total Cost for Suppliers: $ 32,934,027
AVG Cost / Case
Existing Oct31 2013 Contract _ $2.52

30 MO Total Cost for NHSLC:
Hire NHSLC warehouse employees

Rent Concord Warehouse

Technical Integration, Reporting, Invoicing
Licensee Mixed Cases (Added Rev):

Grand Total Cost:
Cost/Case





From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Re: Distributech Financial Analysis Confirmation
Date: Thursday, July 19, 2012 2:02:54 PM

Will do. Thanks.

Mike

On Jul 19, 2012 11:59 AM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us> wrote:

Mike:

I have attached a financial analysis in Excel which will be the foundation for parts
of our discussion on Monday. Please review the attached document, confirm that
the numbers are correct, and provide me with any questions or comments by

Noon on Friday, July 20,

Please copy George on your response. Thanks.

B% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liqguor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
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intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me

by telephone at (603)230-7008.


tel:%28603%29230-7008

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Cc: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Distributech Financial Analysis Confirmation
Date: Thursday, July 19, 2012 11:59:45 AM
Attachments: Book4.xls

Mike:

| have attached a financial analysis in Excel which will be the foundation for parts of our discussion
on Monday. Please review the attached document, confirm that the numbers are correct, and

provide me with any questions or comments by Noon on Friday, July 20t.

Please copy George on your response. Thanks.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
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individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:mike@braincircuit.com
mailto:george.tsiopras@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

DISTRIBUTECH

		

		DISTRIBUTECH																						ONE WAREHOUSE																DISTRIBUTECH

		Summary of RFP Proposal - 1st 30 months																						APPENDIX-D		APPENDIX-D1														SUPPLIER COSTS - APP D				NHSLC COSTS - APP D1

								…………………….5/2011-4/2012…………………….								Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Total Est.				CONTRACT RATES										Proposed		Total		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		CONCORD WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Volume				Jan 1, 2013 - October 31, 2013										Contract		Estimated		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:														11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		(1st 30 Months)				SUPPLIER COSTS				NHSLC COSTS						Rates		Cost		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		497,304		2,220,879				2,321,818		2,391,472		2,463,217		1,268,557		6,123,246		40,000				1.40		8,572,544		1.40		56,000				$1.15		7,041,733		$1.15		46,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		126,736		580,068				606,432		624,625		643,364		331,332		1,599,321						1.20		1,919,185				- 0				$1.00		1,599,321		$1.00		- 0

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		225,353		1,162,283				1,215,109		1,251,562		1,289,109		663,891		3,204,562						1.05		3,364,790				- 0				$0.90		2,884,106		$0.90		- 0

		670+ cases per code						733,788		345,874		1,079,662				1,128,733		1,162,595		1,197,472		616,698		2,976,765						0.95		2,827,927				- 0				$0.80		2,381,412		$0.80		- 0

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		0		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910						7.60		37,319				- 0				$6.35		31,181		$6.35		- 0

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		360		2,513				2,627		2,706		2,787		1,435		6,929						6.00		41,572				- 0				$1.15		7,968		$1.15		- 0

		Case Returns						1,645		0		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535		50				5.00		22,677		5.00		250				$1.00		4,535		$1.00		50

		Pallet Returns						5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14						15.00		207				- 0				$12.00		165		$12.00		- 0

		Bottle Returns						142		0		142				148		153		157		81		392						1.00		392				- 0				$0.50		196		$0.50		- 0

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		1,195,627		5,048,978				5,278,454		5,436,808		5,599,912		2,883,955		13,920,674		40,050						$   16,786,614				$   56,250						$   13,950,618				$   46,050

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		3,529,353		18,298,251				19,129,907		19,703,804		20,294,918		10,451,883		50,450,604		12,000				0.11		5,549,566		0.11		1,320				$0.09		4,540,554		$0.09		1,080

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		309,589		2,943,711				3,077,503		3,169,828		3,264,923		1,681,435		8,116,185		11,000				0.29		2,353,694		0.29		3,190				$0.24		1,947,885		$0.24		2,640

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		96,580		1,054,357				1,102,278		1,135,346		1,169,406		602,244		2,906,996		12,000				0.80		2,325,597		0.80		9,600				$0.67		1,947,688		$0.67		8,040

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		36,836		598,729				625,941		644,719		664,061		341,991		1,650,772						1.40		2,311,081		- 0		- 0				$1.18		1,947,911		$1.18		- 0

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		0		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688						0.80		446,950		- 0		- 0				$0.24		134,085		$0.24		- 0

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		0		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603						1.40		101,645		- 0		- 0				$1.18		85,672		$1.18		- 0

		Allocated products <84						24,266		0		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904						0.11		7,359		- 0		- 0				$0.07		4,683		$0.07		- 0

		Allocated products>85						12,858		0		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451						0.29		10,281		- 0		- 0				$0.14		4,963		$0.14		- 0

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		0		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587						5.00		97,933		- 0		- 0				$4.50		88,140		$4.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		0		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948						12.90		89,629		- 0		- 0				$5.50		38,214		$5.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		0		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515						36.00		126,552		- 0		- 0				$6.50		22,850		$6.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		0		762				797		821		845		435		2,101						63.00		132,359		- 0		- 0				$6.50		13,656		$6.50		- 0

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		0		412				431		444		457		235		1,136						36.00		40,894		- 0		- 0				$5.50		6,248		$5.50		- 0

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14						63.00		868		- 0		- 0				$6.50		90		$6.50		- 0

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		3,972,358		23,173,217				24,226,440		24,953,233		25,701,830		13,236,442		63,891,505		35,000						$   13,594,408				$   14,110						$   10,782,638				$   11,760

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		- 0		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298		1,479,298						- 0		0.75		1,109,474				$0.00		- 0		0.50		739,649

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		1,207,894		4,970,756				5,196,677		5,352,577		5,513,154		2,839,275		13,705,006		13,705,006						- 0		0.15		2,055,751				$0.60		8,223,004		- 0		- 0

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		4,416		22,724				23,757		24,470		25,204		12,980		62,653		62,653						- 0		0.25		15,663				$0.60		37,592		- 0		- 0

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992				30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449		- 0				0.75		64,087		- 0		- 0				$0.60		51,269		- 0		- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		1,212,310		5,024,472				5,252,834		5,410,419		5,572,732		2,869,957		13,853,108								$   64,087				$   3,180,888						$   8,311,865				$   739,649

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT												- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0																- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		- 0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477						2.50		1,192								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477						4.50		2,146								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		0		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413						4.50		28,859								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		0		31				32		33		34		18		85						30.00		2,564								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152						37.75		43,506								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		0		695				727		748		771		397		1,916						8.50		16,288								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		15		330				345		355		366		188		910						46.20		42,035								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0		0												- 0						69.25		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		0		8				8		9		9		5		22						88.20		1,945								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0		0												- 0						107.40		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

				OFFICE - REG				3		1		4				4		4		4		2		11						46.20		510								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				OFFICE - OT				0		0		0												- 0						69.25		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		132,732		756,418				790,797		814,521		838,957		432,063		2,085,541						0.18		375,397								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Bottle Charge				13,788		0		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015						0.18		6,957								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		0		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989		see column L				0.18		7,738								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		0		16				17		17		18		9		44						36.00		1,588								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		0		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816						5.00		19,079								$0.75		$2,862		$0.75		1,085

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		0		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269						3.85		58,786								$0.75		$11,452		$0.75		4,342

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		960		10,105				10,564		10,881		11,208		5,772		27,861						3.10		86,368								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		1,132		11,360				11,876		12,233		12,600		6,489		31,321						2.50		78,302								$0.75		$23,491		$0.75		8,907

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		2,123		20,485				21,416		22,059		22,720		11,701		56,480						1.55		87,544								$0.75		$42,360		$0.75		16,062

				Cases (300+)				16,070		1,000		17,070				17,846		18,381		18,933		9,750		47,064						0.90		42,358								$0.75		$35,298		$0.75		13,384

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152						30.00		34,574								$0.75		$864		$0.75		328

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		2,133		16,807				17,571		18,098		18,641		9,600		46,339						1.75		81,093								$0.75		$34,754		$0.75		13,178

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		0		19				20		20		21		11		52						30.00		1,572								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		0		265				277		285		294		151		731						1.00		731								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		0		67				70		72		74		38		185						30.00		5,542								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

																																$   1,027,072				$   - 0						$   151,081				$   57,287

																														SUPPLIER				NHSLC						SUPPLIER				NHSLC

																														COSTS		$   31,472,180		COSTS		$   3,251,248				COSTS		$   33,196,201		COSTS		$   854,746

																																														$   (2,760,000)		(a)

																																								5%				-159%		$   (1,905,254)

																														Grand Total		$   34,723,428								Grand Total		$   31,290,947		-10%

																														Cost/Case		$   2.51								Cost/Case		$   2.26

		ADDITIONAL NOTES:

		(a)  Revenue sharing proposal provides for the following offsets:  (Over the initial 30 month term) totals $2,760,000 as summarized below.

		$1,260,000 Hire NHSLC warehouse employees

		$   600,000 Rent Concord Warehouse

		$   900,000 Technical Integration, Reporting, Invoicing





DISTRIBUTECH (2)

		

		DISTRIBUTECH																						TWO WAREHOUSE																DISTRIBUTECH

		Summary of RFP Proposal - 1st 30 months																						APPENDIX-D		APPENDIX-D1														SUPPLIER COSTS - APP D				NHSLC COSTS - APP D1

								…………………….5/2011-4/2012…………………….								Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Total Est.				CONTRACT RATES										Proposed		Total		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		CONCORD WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Volume				Jan 1, 2013 - October 31, 2013										Contract		Estimated		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:														11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		(1st 30 Months)				SUPPLIER COSTS				NHSLC COSTS						Rates		Cost		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		497,304		2,220,879				2,321,818		2,391,472		2,463,217		1,268,557		4,752,115		40,000				1.40		6,652,962		1.40		56,000				$1.15		5,464,933		$1.15		46,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		126,736		580,068				606,432		624,625		643,364		331,332		1,249,894						1.20		1,499,873				- 0				$1.00		1,249,894		$1.00		- 0

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		225,353		1,162,283				1,215,109		1,251,562		1,289,109		663,891		2,583,235						1.05		2,712,397				- 0				$0.90		2,324,912		$0.90		- 0

		670+ cases per code						733,788		345,874		1,079,662				1,128,733		1,162,595		1,197,472		616,698		2,023,147						0.95		1,921,989				- 0				$0.80		1,618,517		$0.80		- 0

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		0		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910						7.60		37,319				- 0				$6.35		31,181		$6.35		- 0

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		360		2,513				2,627		2,706		2,787		1,435		5,936						6.00		35,617				- 0				$1.15		6,827		$1.15		- 0

		Case Returns						1,645		0		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535		50				5.00		22,677		5.00		250				$1.00		4,535		$1.00		50

		Pallet Returns						5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14						15.00		207				- 0				$12.00		165		$12.00		- 0

		Bottle Returns						142		0		142				148		153		157		81		392						1.00		392				- 0				$0.50		196		$0.50		- 0

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		1,195,627		5,048,978				5,278,454		5,436,808		5,599,912		2,883,955		10,624,179		40,050						$   12,883,432				$   56,250						$   10,701,160				$   46,050

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		3,529,353		18,298,251				19,129,907		19,703,804		20,294,918		10,451,883		40,719,729		12,000				0.11		4,479,170		0.11		1,320				$0.09		3,664,776		$0.09		1,080

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		309,589		2,943,711				3,077,503		3,169,828		3,264,923		1,681,435		7,262,609		11,000				0.29		2,106,157		0.29		3,190				$0.24		1,743,026		$0.24		2,640

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		96,580		1,054,357				1,102,278		1,135,346		1,169,406		602,244		2,640,713		12,000				0.80		2,112,570		0.80		9,600				$0.67		1,769,278		$0.67		8,040

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		36,836		598,729				625,941		644,719		664,061		341,991		1,549,210						1.40		2,168,895		- 0		- 0				$1.18		1,828,068		$1.18		- 0

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		0		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688						0.80		446,950		- 0		- 0				$0.24		134,085		$0.24		- 0

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		0		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603						1.40		101,645		- 0		- 0				$1.18		85,672		$1.18		- 0

		Allocated products <84						24,266		0		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904						0.11		7,359		- 0		- 0				$0.07		4,683		$0.07		- 0

		Allocated products>85						12,858		0		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451						0.29		10,281		- 0		- 0				$0.14		4,963		$0.14		- 0

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		0		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587						5.00		97,933		- 0		- 0				$4.50		88,140		$4.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		0		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948						12.90		89,629		- 0		- 0				$5.50		38,214		$5.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		0		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515						36.00		126,552		- 0		- 0				$6.50		22,850		$6.50		- 0

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		0		762				797		821		845		435		2,101						63.00		132,359		- 0		- 0				$6.50		13,656		$6.50		- 0

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		0		412				431		444		457		235		1,136						36.00		40,894		- 0		- 0				$5.50		6,248		$5.50		- 0

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14						63.00		868		- 0		- 0				$6.50		90		$6.50		- 0

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		3,972,358		23,173,217				24,226,440		24,953,233		25,701,830		13,236,442		52,939,209		35,000						$   11,921,262				$   14,110						$   9,403,748				$   11,760

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		- 0		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298		1,479,298						- 0		0.75		1,109,474						- 0		$0.50		739,649

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		1,207,894		4,970,756				5,196,677		5,352,577		5,513,154		2,839,275		10,374,689		13,705,006						- 0		0.15		2,055,751				$1.00		10,374,689				- 0

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		4,416		22,724				23,757		24,470		25,204		12,980		50,477		62,653						- 0		0.25		15,663				$1.00		50,477				- 0

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992				30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449		- 0				0.75		64,087		- 0		- 0				$1.00		85,449				- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		1,212,310		5,024,472				5,252,834		5,410,419		5,572,732		2,869,957		10,510,615								$   64,087				$   3,180,888						$   10,510,615				$   739,649

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT												- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0																- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		- 0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477						2.50		1,192								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477						4.50		2,146								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132						1.00		132								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		0		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413						4.50		28,859								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		0		31				32		33		34		18		85						30.00		2,564								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152						37.75		43,506								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		0		695				727		748		771		397		1,916						8.50		16,288								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		15		330				345		355		366		188		868						46.20		40,124								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0		0												- 0						69.25		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		0		8				8		9		9		5		22						88.20		1,945								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0		0												- 0						107.40		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

				OFFICE - REG				3		1		4				4		4		4		2		8						46.20		382								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				OFFICE - OT				0		0		0												- 0						69.25		- 0								$35.00		$0		$35.00		- 0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		132,732		756,418				790,797		814,521		838,957		432,063		1,719,582						0.18		309,525								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Bottle Charge				13,788		0		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015						0.18		6,957								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		0		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989		see column L				0.18		7,738								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		0		16				17		17		18		9		44						36.00		1,588								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		0		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816						5.00		19,079								$0.75		$2,862		$0.75		1,085

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		0		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269						3.85		58,786								$0.75		$11,452		$0.75		4,342

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		960		10,105				10,564		10,881		11,208		5,772		25,214						3.10		78,163								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		1,132		11,360				11,876		12,233		12,600		6,489		28,200						2.50		70,500								$0.75		$21,150		$0.75		8,907

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		2,123		20,485				21,416		22,059		22,720		11,701		50,626						1.55		78,471								$0.75		$37,970		$0.75		16,062

				Cases (300+)				16,070		1,000		17,070				17,846		18,381		18,933		9,750		44,307						0.90		39,876								$0.75		$33,230		$0.75		13,384

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152						30.00		34,574								$0.75		$864		$0.75		328

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		2,133		16,807				17,571		18,098		18,641		9,600		40,458						1.75		70,802								$0.75		$30,344		$0.75		13,178

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		0		19				20		20		21		11		52						30.00		1,572								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		0		265				277		285		294		151		731						1.00		731								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		0		67				70		72		74		38		185						30.00		5,542								$0.00		$0		$0.00		- 0

																																$   921,307				$   - 0						$   137,872				$   57,287

																														SUPPLIER				NHSLC						SUPPLIER				NHSLC

																														COSTS		$   25,790,088		COSTS		$   3,251,248				COSTS		$   30,753,395		COSTS		$   854,746

																																														$   - 0		(a)

																																								19%				-74%		$   854,746

																														Grand Total		$   29,041,336								Grand Total		$   31,608,141		9%

																														Cost/Case		$   2.76								Cost/Case		$   3.01

		ADDITIONAL NOTES:






From: Mike G

To: George P. Tsiopras; Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Distributech Answers to Questions Regarding Rate Calculation Template
Date: Friday, July 06, 2012 9:24:25 PM

Oops, the old email address that | had for George was bounced by the "postmaster"”.
Please see the answers to your 2 questions regarding the rate calculation template.

Thanks
Mike

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mike G <mike@webwei.com>

Date: Fri, Jul 6, 2012 at 2:16 PM

Subject: Distributech Answers to Questions Regarding Rate Calculation Template
To: SLC -Craig Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us>

Cc: SLC -George Tsiopras <gtsiopras@ligquor.state.nh.us>

Craig and George,

Your Question / Request: 1 Within the Outbound Order Processing section for automatic orders,
you are proposing a rate of 60 cents per case to suppliers, and no cost to the NHSLC.
Please confirm and explain as current practice charges only the NHSLC for these transactions.

(1a) With the exception of the $0.50/bottle fee to create mixed cases, the supplier of record will pay for
all fees.

(1b) In the NHSLC's template, you indicate that 40,000 cases out of the 13.9 million cases would be
"NHSLC-owned" or supplied by the NHSLC itself.

Those are the only cases for which you are a "supplier" and will be assessed any handling fees

(1c) Regarding why we shift outbound charges to the suppliers when "current practice charges only
the NHSLC for these transactions":

Why should suppliers pay instead of the NHSLC? In a "bailment” system the bailment suppliers are
inherently involved in a perpetual loop of throughput that always includes inventory build-outs, inventory
depletion and replenishment. Distributech provides the NHSLC's suppliers with a perpetual inventory
handling and tracking service that adds value to the suppliers so they can optimize their inventories.
Built-in and bundled together are all of physical and technical responsibilities for the suppliers.

The term "outbound order processing" alongside the myriad of accessorial fees has lead NH into a
fragmented warehouse system. Distributech will build an integrated "inventory management service".
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At the bottom of the One Warehouse template, we provided our Alternate Price Proposal that
consolidates a huge "a la carte" menu of services into just 3 basic fees -- $1/case In, $1/case Out, with
a penny per day storage.

Distributech simplifies billings, shifts costs away from the NHSLC and then appropriately assesses all
the costs of bailment warehousing to the suppliers.

(1d) Your template was an excellent exercise. We were able to prove that our alternative price proposal
is competitive and simpler than the current billing method. However, there are three (3) significant
improvements with our proposed method: (1) The risks of future added costs are primarily shifted away
from the NHSLC; (2) we eliminate the NHSLC's direct costs for bailment; (2) suppliers' costs are now
stabilized, competitive, simple and forecast-able; (3) Distributech will save the NHSLC almost $1
million per year in costs that directly benefit the Commission's own operations. (see more about this in
the answer to your question 2) .

Your Question / Request: 2 "Please elaborate further on each of the components of your revenue
sharing proposal.”

(2a) Instead of simply applying $900,000+ per year in fee reductions to suppliers, Distributech will
allocate funds to support three warehouse-critical areas. Two of these areas are currently paid for by
the NHSLC directly. Distributech will budget $600,000 to rent the Storrs Street facility and purchase
most of its available manpower to supplement our operations. In addition, we will allocate $300K per
year create/support a data bridge between the warehouse and the NHSLC for sharing, managing,
publishing and auditing all warehouse inventory activities for suppliers, brokers and warehouse
customers within the NHSLC's umbrella.

(2b) The NHSLC can still continue to use the Storrs Street facility to receive and store its own back-
stock and buy-ins from profitable special purchases;

(2c) Distributech's $400K per year for Dave Harrison and the other SEA employees will still allow them
to retain their official roles and benefits within the Storrs Street warehouse; while Distributech uses
them within both warehouses;

(2d) By coordinating the Storrs Street facility with the close-by Distributech facility, the NHSLC can
explore a separate bailment source of revenue. Instead of continuing to attempt to stuff 145K cases of
the fastest moving liquor products into a relatively small 50,000 sq foot facility, the same or more
NHSLC revenue could be derived through storage fees on the existing 65,000 cases of 180-day-old
and greater stock within the current system.

By applying pre-2012 bailment rates to these slower-paced 65K cases on hand, the storage fees would
gross the NHSLC more than $1.2 million in storage charges annually. Even if the NHSLC discounts
those rates, the gross revenue on less than half the space capacity of Storrs Street will be

significant. Additionally, even more profits can be derived by NHSLC when it places some

sales focus upon supplier discounted and NHSLC marked-down "sell-offs" and "close-outs" of this
aging or discontinued stock.



(2e) Distributech also benefits by having Storrs Street as a quality disaster recovery site that is very
local to its own primary distribution facility (In the event of a large-scale disaster we also have
authorization to use larger space available on Hall Street at the Amoskeag Beverage facility). Whether
we share the Storrs Street space, use it periodically, seasonally or under emergency circumstances its
6 enclosed docks and portions of its space are useful.

We have many ideas as to how our proposal makes sense for both the NHSLC and Distributech, given
our location close to Storrs Street.

We look forward to working together to optimize the system and profits to the NHSLC.

Please let me know when you have more requests or questions.

Mike Goclowski



From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: SLC -George Tsiopras

Subject: Distributech Answers to Questions Regarding Rate Calculation Template
Date: Friday, July 06, 2012 2:17:14 PM

Craig and George,

Your Question / Request: 1 Within the Outbound Order Processing section for automatic orders,
you are proposing a rate of 60 cents per case to suppliers, and no cost to the NHSLC.
Please confirm and explain as current practice charges only the NHSLC for these transactions.

(1a) With the exception of the $0.50/bottle fee to create mixed cases, the supplier of record will pay for
all fees.

(1b) In the NHSLC's template, you indicate that 40,000 cases out of the 13.9 million cases would be
"NHSLC-owned" or supplied by the NHSLC itself.

Those are the only cases for which you are a "supplier" and will be assessed any handling fees

(1c) Regarding why we shift outbound charges to the suppliers when "current practice charges only
the NHSLC for these transactions":

Why should suppliers pay instead of the NHSLC? In a "bailment" system the bailment suppliers are
inherently involved in a perpetual loop of throughput that always includes inventory build-outs, inventory
depletion and replenishment. Distributech provides the NHSLC's suppliers with a perpetual inventory
handling and tracking service that adds value to the suppliers so they can optimize their inventories.
Built-in and bundled together are all of physical and technical responsibilities for the suppliers.

The term "outbound order processing" alongside the myriad of accessorial fees has lead NH into a
fragmented warehouse system. Distributech will build an integrated "inventory management service".

At the bottom of the One Warehouse template, we provided our Alternate Price Proposal that
consolidates a huge "a la carte" menu of services into just 3 basic fees -- $1/case In, $1/case Out, with
a penny per day storage.

Distributech simplifies billings, shifts costs away from the NHSLC and then appropriately assesses all
the costs of bailment warehousing to the suppliers.

(1d) Your template was an excellent exercise. We were able to prove that our alternative price proposal

is competitive and simpler than the current billing method. However, there are three (3) significant
improvements with our proposed method: (1) The risks of future added costs are primarily shifted away
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from the NHSLC; (2) we eliminate the NHSLC's direct costs for bailment; (2) suppliers' costs are now
stabilized, competitive, simple and forecast-able; (3) Distributech will save the NHSLC almost $1
million per year in costs that directly benefit the Commission's own operations. (see more about this in
the answer to your question 2) .

Your Question / Request: 2 "Please elaborate further on each of the components of your revenue
sharing proposal.”

(2a) Instead of simply applying $900,000+ per year in fee reductions to suppliers, Distributech will
allocate funds to support three warehouse-critical areas. Two of these areas are currently paid for by
the NHSLC directly. Distributech will budget $600,000 to rent the Storrs Street facility and purchase
most of its available manpower to supplement our operations. In addition, we will allocate $300K per
year create/support a data bridge between the warehouse and the NHSLC for sharing, managing,
publishing and auditing all warehouse inventory activities for suppliers, brokers and warehouse
customers within the NHSLC's umbrella.

(2b) The NHSLC can still continue to use the Storrs Street facility to receive and store its own back-
stock and buy-ins from profitable special purchases;

(2c) Distributech's $400K per year for Dave Harrison and the other SEA employees will still allow them
to retain their official roles and benefits within the Storrs Street warehouse; while Distributech uses
them within both warehouses;

(2d) By coordinating the Storrs Street facility with the close-by Distributech facility, the NHSLC can
explore a separate bailment source of revenue. Instead of continuing to attempt to stuff 145K cases of
the fastest moving liquor products into a relatively small 50,000 sq foot facility, the same or more
NHSLC revenue could be derived through storage fees on the existing 65,000 cases of 180-day-old
and greater stock within the current system.

By applying pre-2012 bailment rates to these slower-paced 65K cases on hand, the storage fees would
gross the NHSLC more than $1.2 million in storage charges annually. Even if the NHSLC discounts
those rates, the gross revenue on less than half the space capacity of Storrs Street will be

significant. Additionally, even more profits can be derived by NHSLC when it places some

sales focus upon supplier discounted and NHSLC marked-down "sell-offs" and "close-outs" of this
aging or discontinued stock.

(2e) Distributech also benefits by having Storrs Street as a quality disaster recovery site that is very
local to its own primary distribution facility (In the event of a large-scale disaster we also have
authorization to use larger space available on Hall Street at the Amoskeag Beverage facility). Whether
we share the Storrs Street space, use it periodically, seasonally or under emergency circumstances its
6 enclosed docks and portions of its space are useful.

We have many ideas as to how our proposal makes sense for both the NHSLC and Distributech, given



our location close to Storrs Street.

We look forward to working together to optimize the system and profits to the NHSLC.

Please let me know when you have more requests or questions.

Mike Goclowski



From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: George P. Tsiopras; Goclowski, Mike
Subject: Re: Distributech Proposal Presentation
Date: Friday, July 06, 2012 10:00:22 AM

Thank you Craig,

We appreciate the opportunity to be part of this next step.

Please book that date and time slot. | will alert the members of our team.

Mike

On Jul 6, 2012 9:07 AM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

We are scheduling time during the week of July 23" for an opportunity for your
team to present any additional information to the Evaluation Committee. Please
be prepared to discuss the specifics of your proposal as well as to discuss the
most recent rate template information. The committee may have additional
guestions at this time.

We would like your Distributech team to join us on Monday, July 23" from 9:00 —
11:00 AM (EDT) at our headquarters at 50 Storrs Street, Concord. Please
acknowledge and confirm your attendance, and please copy George Tsiopras
when you email me. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
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D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me

by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Cc: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Distributech Proposal Presentation
Date: Friday, July 06, 2012 9:07:59 AM
Mike:

We are scheduling time during the week of July 23" for an opportunity for your team to present
any additional information to the Evaluation Committee. Please be prepared to discuss the
specifics of your proposal as well as to discuss the most recent rate template information. The
committee may have additional questions at this time.

We would like your Distributech team to join us on Monday, July 23" from 9:00 - 11:00 AM (EDT)
at our headquarters at 50 Storrs Street, Concord. Please acknowledge and confirm your
attendance, and please copy George Tsiopras when you email me. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:mike@braincircuit.com
mailto:george.tsiopras@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Cc: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Questions to Distributech Regarding Rate Calculation Template
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2012 2:58:51 PM

Mike:

Thank you for your final submission of the rate calculation template. Below are several questions
regarding your template numbers:

1. Within the Outbound Order Processing section for automatic orders, you are proposing a
rate of 60 cents per case to suppliers, and no cost to the NHSLC. Please confirm and explain
as current practice charges only the NHSLC for these transactions.

2. Please elaborate further on each of the tree components of your revenue sharing
proposal.

Please provide your response to me with a cc to George Tsiopras no later than Monday, 7/9 at
4:00 PM. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Cc: George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Questions Regarding Rate Calculation Template
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2012 2:58:51 PM

Mike:

Thank you for your final submission of the rate calculation template. Below are several questions
regarding your template numbers:

1. Within the Outbound Order Processing section for automatic orders, you are proposing a
rate of 60 cents per case to suppliers, and no cost to the NHSLC. Please confirm and explain
as current practice charges only the NHSLC for these transactions.

2. Please elaborate further on each of the tree components of your revenue sharing
proposal.

Please provide your response to me with a cc to George Tsiopras no later than Monday, 7/9 at
4:00 PM. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:mike@braincircuit.com
mailto:george.tsiopras@liquor.state.nh.us
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Distributech -Price Template RFP2012-14 Attached
Date: Tuesday, July 03, 2012 12:03:16 PM

Attachments: DistributechRFP2012-14 Rate Calculation Template2.xls

Hi Craig,

Please let me know if you have any issues opening, reading or printing your
committee's pricing template.
(Attached and filled out with notes)

Thank you.
Mike


mailto:mike@webwei.com
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

One Warehouse

		This prints best in landscape mode on Legal Sheets																						SUPPLIER		APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

		ONE WAREHOUSE						…………………….5/2011-4/2012…………………….								Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		CONCORD WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:														11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost 30 MOs		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost 30 Mos

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		497,304		2,220,879				2,321,818		2,391,472		2,463,217		1,268,557		6,123,246		$1.15		$7,041,733		40,000		$1.15		$46,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		126,736		580,068				606,432		624,625		643,364		331,332		1,599,321		$1.00		$1,599,321				$1.00

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		225,353		1,162,283				1,215,109		1,251,562		1,289,109		663,891		3,204,562		$0.90		$2,884,106				$0.90

		670+ cases per code						733,788		345,874		1,079,662				1,128,733		1,162,595		1,197,472		616,698		2,976,765		$0.80		$2,381,412				$0.80

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		0		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910		$6.35		$31,181				$6.35

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		360		2,513				2,627		2,706		2,787		1,435		6,929		$1.15		$7,968				$1.15

		Case Returns						1,645		0		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535		$1.00		$4,535		50		$1.00		$50

		Pallet Returns						5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14		$12.00		$165				$12.00

		Bottle Returns						142		0		142				148		153		157		81		392		$0.50		$196				$0.50

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		1,195,627		5,048,978				5,278,454		5,436,808		5,599,912		2,883,955		13,920,674				$13,950,618						$46,050

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		3,529,353		18,298,251				19,129,907		19,703,804		20,294,918		10,451,883		50,450,604		$0.09		$4,540,554		12,000		$0.09		$0

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		309,589		2,943,711				3,077,503		3,169,828		3,264,923		1,681,435		8,116,185		$0.24		$1,947,885		11,000		$0.24		$0

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		96,580		1,054,357				1,102,278		1,135,346		1,169,406		602,244		2,906,996		$0.67		$1,947,688		12,000		$0.67		$0

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		36,836		598,729				625,941		644,719		664,061		341,991		1,650,772		$1.18		$1,947,911				$1.18

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		0		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688		$0.24		$134,085				$0.24

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		0		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603		$1.18		$85,672				$1.18

		Allocated products <84						24,266		0		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904		$0.07		$4,683				$0.07

		Allocated products>85						12,858		0		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451		$0.14		$4,963				$0.14

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		0		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587		$4.50		$88,140				$4.50

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		0		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948		$5.50		$38,214				$5.50

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		0		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515		$6.50		$22,850				$6.50

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		0		762				797		821		845		435		2,101		$6.50		$13,656				$6.50

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		0		412				431		444		457		235		1,136		$5.50		$6,248				$5.50

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14		$6.50		$90				$6.50

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		3,972,358		23,173,217				24,226,440		24,953,233		25,701,830		13,236,442		63,891,505				$10,782,638						$0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		- 0		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298		$0.50		$0		1,479,298		$0.50		$739,649

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		1,207,894		4,970,756				5,196,677		5,352,577		5,513,154		2,839,275		13,705,006		$0.60		$8,223,004		13,705,006		$0.00

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		4,416		22,724				23,757		24,470		25,204		12,980		62,653		$0.60		$37,592		62,653		$0.00

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992				30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449		$0.60		$51,269		- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		1,212,310		5,024,472				5,252,834		5,410,419		5,572,732		2,869,957		13,853,108				$8,311,865						$739,649

				Stock Transfers OUT												- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		- 0		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		0		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		0		31				32		33		34		18		85		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		0		695				727		748		771		397		1,916		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		15		330				345		355		366		188		910		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		0		8				8		9		9		5		22		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				OFFICE - REG				3		1		4				4		4		4		2		11		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				OFFICE - OT				0		0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		132,732		756,418				790,797		814,521		838,957		432,063		2,085,541		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Bottle Charge				13,788		0		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		0		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		0		16				17		17		18		9		44		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		0		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		0		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		960		10,105				10,564		10,881		11,208		5,772		27,861		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		1,132		11,360				11,876		12,233		12,600		6,489		31,321		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		2,123		20,485				21,416		22,059		22,720		11,701		56,480		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (300+)				16,070		1,000		17,070				17,846		18,381		18,933		9,750		47,064		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		2,133		16,807				17,571		18,098		18,641		9,600		46,339		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		0		19				20		20		21		11		52		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		0		265				277		285		294		151		731		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		0		67				70		72		74		38		185		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:																								$0.00						$0.00

												Distributech Summary:				One Warehouse --with Requested Pricing Format										Cost to Suppliers						Cost to NHSLC

																										Suppliers 30-Months:		$33,045,120				NHSLC 30-Months		$785,699

				COST SUMMARY																						AVG Annual $		$13,218,048				AVG Annual $		$314,280

				REQUIRED PRICE FORMAT																						AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.39

																												Total System Cost:		$33,830,819

																												Total System -->AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.44

												Distributech Summary:				One Warehouse --with Proposed Alternative Format												Cost to Suppliers						Cost to NHSLC

				COST SUMMARY												Total Volume - Total Costs		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)

				ALTERNATIVE PRICE FORMAT												Inbound/Tracking/Order Processing		5,436,808		5,599,912		2,883,955		13,920,674

																X $1.00		$5,436,808		$5,599,912		$2,883,955				$1.00		$13,920,674		40,000		$1.00		$40,000

																Inventory (Storage) $0.01 /CS per day		820,000		835,000		845,000

												actually is 260 business days or $0.0071						$2,132,000		$2,171,000		$1,098,500						$5,401,500

																Management/Reporting/Shipping		5,410,419		5,572,732		2,839,275		13,705,006

																X $1.00		$5,410,419		$5,572,732		$2,869,957				$1.00		$13,853,108

																Single Bottle Pick: $0.50 per bottle		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298								$0.50		$739,649

																REVENUE SHARING / RELATED OFFSETS:

																Time-Slice Distributech ->Hire NHSLC Warehouse Employees		$420,000		$420,000		$420,000		$1,260,000

																Concord Warehouse Rent -> Distributech Disaster Recovery		$200,000		$200,000		$200,000		$600,000

										Technical Integration, Reporting, Invoicing  between the Warehouse and the NHSLC								$300,000		$300,000		$300,000		$900,000

																						Distributech Payments to NHSLC		$2,760,000										-$2,760,000

																										Suppliers 30-Months:		$33,175,282				NHSLC  30-Months		-$1,980,351

																										AVG Annual $		$13,270,113				AVG Annual $		-$792,140

																										AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.39

																												Total System Cost:		$31,194,931

																												Total System -->AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.25

										NOTE 1: FUTURE PRICE CHANGES						Distributech proposes that for each of the seven 30-month price periods, any adjustment to pricing will be based upon the Northeast CPI  index area since the prior base period.

										NOTE 2: NHSLC REVENUE SHARING						Distributech has budgeted payments (or credits) to NHSLC $920,000 per year for (1) the use or partial use of NHSLC warehouse employees and the Concord warehouse; and (2) bridging the NHSLC's internal costs or outsourcing  the integration and management of the NHSLC's reporting systems to suppliers on warehouse inventories and activities onto NHSLC systems.
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Two Warehouses

																								APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

		TWO WAREHOUSES						5/2011-4/2012						Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:												11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		1,723,575				1,801,911		1,855,969		1,911,648		984,499		4,752,115		$1.15		$5,464,933		40,000		$1.15		$46,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		453,332				473,936		488,154		502,799		258,941		1,249,894		$1.00		$1,249,894				$1.00		$0

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		936,930				979,513		1,008,899		1,039,166		535,170		2,583,235		$0.90		$2,324,912				$0.90		$0

		670+ cases per code						733,788		733,788				767,139		790,153		813,857		419,137		2,023,147		$0.80		$1,618,517				$0.80		$0

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910		$6.35		$31,181				$6.35		$0

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		2,153				2,251		2,318		2,388		1,230		5,936		$1.15		$6,827				$1.15		$0

		Case Returns						1,645		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535		$1.00		$4,535		50		$1.00		$50

		Pallet Returns						5		5				5		5		6		3		14		$12.00		$165				$12.00		$0

		Bottle Returns						142		142				148		153		157		81		392		$0.50		$196				$0.50		$0

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		3,853,351				4,028,486		4,149,340		4,273,821		2,201,018		10,624,179				$10,701,160						$46,050

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		14,768,898				15,440,144		15,903,349		16,380,449		8,435,931		40,719,729		$0.09		$3,664,776		12,000		$0.09		$0

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		2,634,122				2,753,843		2,836,458		2,921,552		1,504,599		7,262,609		$0.24		$1,743,026		11,000		$0.24		$0

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		957,777				1,001,308		1,031,347		1,062,288		547,078		2,640,713		$0.67		$1,769,278		12,000		$0.67		$0

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		561,893				587,431		605,054		623,206		320,951		1,549,210		$1.18		$1,828,068				$1.18		$0

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688		$0.24		$134,085				$0.24		$0

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603		$1.18		$85,672				$1.18		$0

		Allocated products <84						24,266		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904		$0.07		$4,683				$0.07		$0

		Allocated products>85						12,858		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451		$0.14		$4,963				$0.14		$0

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587		$4.50		$88,140				$4.50		$0

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948		$5.50		$38,214				$5.50		$0

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515		$6.50		$22,850				$6.50		$0

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		762				797		821		845		435		2,101		$6.50		$13,656				$6.50		$0

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		412				431		444		457		235		1,136		$5.50		$6,248				$5.50		$0

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		5				5		5		6		3		14		$6.50		$90				$6.50		$0

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		19,200,859				20,073,538		20,675,744		21,296,017		10,967,449		52,939,209				$9,403,748						$0

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298						1,479,298		$0.50		$739,649.0

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		3,762,862				3,933,884		4,051,901		4,173,458		2,149,331		10,374,689		$1.00		$10,374,689		13,705,006

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		18,308				19,140		19,714		20,306		10,457		50,477		$1.00		$50,477		62,653

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992		30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449		$1.00		$85,449		- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		3,812,162				3,985,425		4,104,988		4,228,137		2,177,491		10,510,615				$10,510,615						$739,649.0

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT										- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		31				32		33		34		18		85		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		695				727		748		771		397		1,916		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		315				329		339		349		180		868		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		8				8		9		9		5		22		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				OFFICE - REG				3		3				3		3		3		2		8		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				OFFICE - OT				0		0														$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		623,686				652,033		671,594		691,741		356,247		1,719,582		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Bottle Charge				13,788		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		16				17		17		18		9		44		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		9,145				9,561		9,847		10,143		5,224		25,214		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		10,228				10,693		11,014		11,344		5,842		28,200		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		18,362				19,197		19,772		20,366		10,488		50,626		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Cases (300+)				16,070		16,070				16,800		17,304		17,824		9,179		44,307		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		14,674				15,341		15,801		16,275		8,382		40,458		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		19				20		20		21		11		52		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		265				277		285		294		151		731		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		67				70		72		74		38		185		$0.00		$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

										Distributech Summary:				TWO Warehouses --with Requested Pricing Format										Cost to Suppliers						Cost to NHSLC

																								Suppliers 30-Months:		$30,615,523				NHSLC 30-Months		$785,699

		COST SUMMARY								Our proposal had not accomodated a continuation of "business as usual" under														AVG Annual $		$12,246,209				AVG Annual $		$314,280

		REQUIRED PRICE FORMAT								the current 2 Warehouse System. For this exercise, we are submitting some proforma														AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.91

										figures to provide the NHSLC with comparative cost estimates

																										Total System Cost:		$31,401,222

																										Total System -->AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.99

										Distributech Summary:				TWO Warehouses --with Proposed Alternative Format												Cost to Suppliers						Cost to NHSLC

		COST SUMMARY												Total Volume - Total Costs		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)

		PROPOSED PRICE FORMAT												Inbound/Tracking/Order Processing		4,149,340		4,273,821		2,201,018		10,624,179

														X $1.00		$4,149,340		$4,273,821		$2,201,018				$1.00		$10,624,179		40,000		$1.00		$40,000

														Inventory (Storage) $0.01 /CS per day		670,000		685,000		700,000

										actually is 260 business days or $0.0071						$3,727,880		$3,811,340		$1,947,400						$9,486,620

														Management/Reporting/Shipping		4,104,988		4,228,137		2,177,491		10,510,615

														X $1.00		$4,104,988		$4,228,137		$2,177,491				$1.00		$10,510,615

														Single Bottle Pick: $0.50 per bottle		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298								$0.50		$739,649

														REVENUE SHARING / RELATED OFFSETS:		With 2 Warehouses and Concord operating as it does currently 2012, Distributech cannot share revenue

																								Suppliers 30-Months:		$30,621,414				NHSLC  30-Months		$779,649

																								AVG Annual $		$12,248,566				AVG Annual $		$311,860

																								AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.91

		SEE THE 4 NOTES FOR ONE WAREHOUSE																								Total System Cost:		$31,401,063

		On the next page																								Total System -->AVG $/Case Shipped		$2.99

		NOTES -One Warehouse						NOTE 1: FUTURE PRICING						Distributech proposes that for each of the seven 30-month price periods, any adjustment to pricing will be based upon the Northeast CPI  index area since the prior base period.

								NOTE 2: TWO WAREHOUSES						Our proposal had not accomodated a continuation of "business as usual" under the current 2 Warehouse System. The key change to our fee is found in an increased storage rate --so that we can cover our minimum cost of business. If 2 overlapping warehouses exist, Distributech reduces some of its labor costs and similar fraction of its material handling equipment costs. However, the primary business costs of the facility, automation and technology remain the same.

								NOTE 3: STORRS STREET MAXIMIZED SAVINGS AND REVENUES						If the NHSLC continues with a  high-use operation of its Concord warehouse, a hybrid situation of 2 warehouses will ultimately serve the "Total NH System" best. For example, the NHSLC could (1) seek to derive lower internal costs by storing -"NHSLC Buy-in Inventories" at Storrs Street;  (2) create easy revenue by accepting in-bound transfers of Comatose / Semi-Comatose inventories from Distributech, and then charging suppliers the current system's high 180+ day storage fees [approx, $1.5M annually]; and (3) the NHSLC could capture more $$ by controlling future "Close-Outs" and "Sell-Offs"  of the older inventories from the Storrs Street facility. [Distributech would not charge any outbound fees for old stock transferred to Storrs Street].

								NOTE 4: TWO WAREHOUSES BUT ONE STATE-WIDE DISTRIBUTION POINT						Distributech's primary focus is upon the Distributech Proforma that we submitted previously and it can be modified or shaped to accommodate the most efficient local 2-warehouse system. However, a centralized single distribution point (not two) will be provide the best consolidation of costs and largest long-term system capacity and savings. [The NHSLC has a beneficial interest in focusing upon its sales channel and off-loading the warehousing/distribution channel onto a single specialized vendor operation].






From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: Distributech - Revised Template & Answers to Exercise Questions
Date: Friday, June 29, 2012 4:58:16 PM

Attachments: RFP2012-14 Rate Calculation Template - revised.xls

Dear Vendor:

For the purposes of this exercise, below are the answers to questions posed by the vendors as a
result of reviewing our original email with our template.

See attached template with revised volumes highlighted in yellow. Be careful to note that even
though there are subtotals, in certain categories there may be a mix of cases and pallets (e.g. there
are not 19 million cases in storage; this sub-total is blended between cases and pallets).

Quantities shown under each category are reflective of the estimated product shipped, stored, or
otherwise handled as noted. For example, under Storage, 1-84 days, 14 million plus cases were
received and stored for between 1 and 84 days.

Feel free to enter any formulas required to provide total estimated cost (e.g. Estimated Volume X
Proposed Contract Rates = Total Estimated Cost.

Outbound activities include preparing orders which include picking, packing and loading.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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One Warehouse

																								SUPPLIER		APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

								…………………….5/2011-4/2012…………………….								Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		CONCORD WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:														11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		497,304		2,220,879				2,321,818		2,391,472		2,463,217		1,268,557		6,123,246						40,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		126,736		580,068				606,432		624,625		643,364		331,332		1,599,321

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		225,353		1,162,283				1,215,109		1,251,562		1,289,109		663,891		3,204,562

		670+ cases per code						733,788		345,874		1,079,662				1,128,733		1,162,595		1,197,472		616,698		2,976,765

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		0		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		360		2,513				2,627		2,706		2,787		1,435		6,929

		Case Returns						1,645		0		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535						50

		Pallet Returns						5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14

		Bottle Returns						142		0		142				148		153		157		81		392

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		1,195,627		5,048,978				5,278,454		5,436,808		5,599,912		2,883,955		13,920,674

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		3,529,353		18,298,251				19,129,907		19,703,804		20,294,918		10,451,883		50,450,604						12,000

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		309,589		2,943,711				3,077,503		3,169,828		3,264,923		1,681,435		8,116,185						11,000

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		96,580		1,054,357				1,102,278		1,135,346		1,169,406		602,244		2,906,996						12,000

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		36,836		598,729				625,941		644,719		664,061		341,991		1,650,772

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		0		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		0		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603

		Allocated products <84						24,266		0		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904

		Allocated products>85						12,858		0		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		0		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		0		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		0		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		0		762				797		821		845		435		2,101

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		0		412				431		444		457		235		1,136

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		0		5				5		5		6		3		14

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		3,972,358		23,173,217				24,226,440		24,953,233		25,701,830		13,236,442		63,891,505

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		- 0		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298						1,479,298

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		1,207,894		4,970,756				5,196,677		5,352,577		5,513,154		2,839,275		13,705,006						13,705,006

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		4,416		22,724				23,757		24,470		25,204		12,980		62,653						62,653

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992				30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449						- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		1,212,310		5,024,472				5,252,834		5,410,419		5,572,732		2,869,957		13,853,108

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT												- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		- 0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		0		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		0		31				32		33		34		18		85

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		0		695				727		748		771		397		1,916

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		15		330				345		355		366		188		910

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0		0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		0		8				8		9		9		5		22

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0		0

				OFFICE - REG				3		1		4				4		4		4		2		11

				OFFICE - OT				0		0		0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		132,732		756,418				790,797		814,521		838,957		432,063		2,085,541

				Bottle Charge				13,788		0		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		0		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		0		16				17		17		18		9		44

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		0		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		0		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		960		10,105				10,564		10,881		11,208		5,772		27,861

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		1,132		11,360				11,876		12,233		12,600		6,489		31,321

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		2,123		20,485				21,416		22,059		22,720		11,701		56,480

				Cases (300+)				16,070		1,000		17,070				17,846		18,381		18,933		9,750		47,064

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		2,133		16,807				17,571		18,098		18,641		9,600		46,339

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		0		19				20		20		21		11		52

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		0		265				277		285		294		151		731

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		0		67				70		72		74		38		185
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Two Warehouses

																								APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

								5/2011-4/2012						Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:												11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		1,723,575				1,801,911		1,855,969		1,911,648		984,499		4,752,115						40,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		453,332				473,936		488,154		502,799		258,941		1,249,894

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		936,930				979,513		1,008,899		1,039,166		535,170		2,583,235

		670+ cases per code						733,788		733,788				767,139		790,153		813,857		419,137		2,023,147

		Pallet Packs				1,781		1,781		1,781				1,862		1,918		1,975		1,017		4,910

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		2,153				2,251		2,318		2,388		1,230		5,936

		Case Returns						1,645		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535						50

		Pallet Returns						5		5				5		5		6		3		14

		Bottle Returns						142		142				148		153		157		81		392

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,853,351		3,853,351				4,028,486		4,149,340		4,273,821		2,201,018		10,624,179

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		14,768,898				15,440,144		15,903,349		16,380,449		8,435,931		40,719,729						12,000

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		2,634,122				2,753,843		2,836,458		2,921,552		1,504,599		7,262,609						11,000

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		957,777				1,001,308		1,031,347		1,062,288		547,078		2,640,713						12,000

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		561,893				587,431		605,054		623,206		320,951		1,549,210

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603

		Allocated products <84						24,266		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904

		Allocated products>85						12,858		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		7,104		7,104				7,427		7,650		7,879		4,058		19,587

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		2,520		2,520				2,635		2,714		2,795		1,439		6,948

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		1,275		1,275				1,333		1,373		1,414		728		3,515

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		762		762				797		821		845		435		2,101

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		412		412				431		444		457		235		1,136

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		5		5				5		5		6		3		14

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,200,859		19,200,859				20,073,538		20,675,744		21,296,017		10,967,449		52,939,209

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298						1,479,298

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		3,762,862				3,933,884		4,051,901		4,173,458		2,149,331		10,374,689						13,705,006

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		18,308				19,140		19,714		20,306		10,457		50,477						62,653

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992		30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449						- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				3,812,162		3,812,162				3,985,425		4,104,988		4,228,137		2,177,491		10,510,615

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT										- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		31				32		33		34		18		85

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		695				727		748		771		397		1,916

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		315				329		339		349		180		868

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		8				8		9		9		5		22

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0

				OFFICE - REG				3		3				3		3		3		2		8

				OFFICE - OT				0		0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		623,686				652,033		671,594		691,741		356,247		1,719,582

				Bottle Charge				13,788		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		16				17		17		18		9		44

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		9,145				9,561		9,847		10,143		5,224		25,214

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		10,228				10,693		11,014		11,344		5,842		28,200

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		18,362				19,197		19,772		20,366		10,488		50,626

				Cases (300+)				16,070		16,070				16,800		17,304		17,824		9,179		44,307

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		14,674				15,341		15,801		16,275		8,382		40,458

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		19				20		20		21		11		52

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		265				277		285		294		151		731

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		67				70		72		74		38		185






From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"
Subject: Distributech - RFP 2012-14 Rate Calculation Template
Date: Friday, June 29, 2012 8:26:03 AM

Dear Vendor:

We have found several inaccuracies in the template volumes we sent you on Wednesday, 6/27.
We have also received several questions regarding the template itself. We are in the process of
correcting the template and will forward a revised template to you by close of business today.

Due to this situation, we are extending your deadline to noon on Tuesday, July 3 2012.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008
FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Craig W. Bulkley

Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2012 4:35 PM

To: Goclowski, Mike

Subject: RFP 2012-14 Rate Calculation Template

Dear Vendor —

Attached please find a template which we must have filled out and returned to us by noon on
Monday July 2, 2012. The very same email is being sent to all vendors in order to evaluate the
effect of the proposed costs on suppliers and the NHSLC given a consistent volume base.

We have included estimates of the most recent total volumes of activity in each of the categories
identified in Appendix D of the RFP. We have also included estimates of the most recent material
total volumes of activity in each of the categories identified in Appendix D-1. Because all vendors
are receiving the same estimates do not change any of the volume estimates provided in the
template.
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In addition we have estimated total volumes for the same categories over the first 30 month term
(from Nov 1, 2013 thru April 30, 2016). Utilizing these volumes please insert your rates in each
category and calculate the respective costs in each category. The evaluation committee reserves
the right to repeat this exercise and request lower rates, but at this time use the rates from your
original proposal.

For each of the seven subsequent 30 month periods of the contract please provide us with
estimates of any changes in rates as a percentage over your initial rate as well as the justification
or basis for your estimate. For example, in section 1.10.4 of the RFP we requested that rate
changes be based on the CPI for the previous 12 months, you may indicate you are estimating the
percentage rate change by projecting the CPI.

With regard to revenue sharing proposals, please utilize the estimated volumes, and in a separate
document, identify and quantify the revenue sharing calculation to the State for the first 30 month
period. Please identify any estimated changes in each of the subsequent 30 month periods.

Please note the attached spreadsheet has two tabs that need to be completed, unless you have
already taken an exception in your proposal dated on or before June 7, 2012, to the two
warehouse model.

If you have any questions or comments, please send me an email.

% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Distributech - RFP 2012-14 Rate Calculation Template
Date: Thursday, June 28, 2012 7:54:10 AM

Good morning Craig,

It does not seem clear what these subtotal and total "Storage" numbers indicate.
Could you explain (or show a formula) for example what the 14+ million cases under
[Cases 1-84 Days) Nashua Whse signifies? Then we could apply your answer to the
other columns under the "Storage" category.

Thanks very much.
Mike

E

On Wed, Jun 27, 2012 at 4:34 PM, Craig W. Bulkley <cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us>
wrote:

Dear Vendor —

Attached please find a template which we must have filled out and returned to us
by noon on Monday July 2, 2012. The very same email is being sent to all
vendors in order to evaluate the effect of the proposed costs on suppliers and the
NHSLC given a consistent volume base.

We have included estimates of the most recent total volumes of activity in each of
the categories identified in Appendix D of the RFP. We have also included
estimates of the most recent material total volumes of activity in each of the
categories identified in Appendix D-1. Because all vendors are receiving the same
estimates do not change any of the volume estimates provided in the template.

In addition we have estimated total volumes for the same categories over the first
30 month term (from Nov 1, 2013 thru April 30, 2016). Utilizing these volumes
please insert your rates in each category and calculate the respective costs in each
category. The evaluation committee reserves the right to repeat this exercise and
request lower rates, but at this time use the rates from your original proposal.

For each of the seven subsequent 30 month periods of the contract please provide
us with estimates of any changes in rates as a percentage over your initial rate as
well as the justification or basis for your estimate. For example, in section 1.10.4
of the RFP we requested that rate changes be based on the CPI for the previous
12 months, you may indicate you are estimating the percentage rate change by
projecting the CPI.
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With regard to revenue sharing proposals, please utilize the estimated volumes,
and in a separate document, identify and quantify the revenue sharing calculation
to the State for the first 30 month period. Please identify any estimated changes
in each of the subsequent 30 month periods.

Please note the attached spreadsheet has two tabs that need to be completed,
unless you have already taken an exception in your proposal dated on or before
June 7, 2012, to the two warehouse model.

If you have any questions or comments, please send me an email.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liqguor Commission

=

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me
by telephone at (603)230-7008.


tel:%28603%29%20230-7008
tel:%28603%29%20271-3897
tel:%28603%29%20490-1559
mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
tel:%28603%29230-7008

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: To Distributech - RFP 2012-14 Rate Calculation Template
Date: Wednesday, June 27, 2012 4:34:43 PM

Attachments: RFP2012-14 Rate Calculation Template.xls

Dear Vendor —

Attached please find a template which we must have filled out and returned to us by noon on
Monday July 2, 2012. The very same email is being sent to all vendors in order to evaluate the
effect of the proposed costs on suppliers and the NHSLC given a consistent volume base.

We have included estimates of the most recent total volumes of activity in each of the categories
identified in Appendix D of the RFP. We have also included estimates of the most recent material
total volumes of activity in each of the categories identified in Appendix D-1. Because all vendors
are receiving the same estimates do not change any of the volume estimates provided in the
template.

In addition we have estimated total volumes for the same categories over the first 30 month term
(from Nov 1, 2013 thru April 30, 2016). Utilizing these volumes please insert your rates in each
category and calculate the respective costs in each category. The evaluation committee reserves
the right to repeat this exercise and request lower rates, but at this time use the rates from your
original proposal.

For each of the seven subsequent 30 month periods of the contract please provide us with
estimates of any changes in rates as a percentage over your initial rate as well as the justification
or basis for your estimate. For example, in section 1.10.4 of the RFP we requested that rate
changes be based on the CPI for the previous 12 months, you may indicate you are estimating the
percentage rate change by projecting the CPI.

With regard to revenue sharing proposals, please utilize the estimated volumes, and in a separate
document, identify and quantify the revenue sharing calculation to the State for the first 30 month
period. Please identify any estimated changes in each of the subsequent 30 month periods.

Please note the attached spreadsheet has two tabs that need to be completed, unless you have
already taken an exception in your proposal dated on or before June 7, 2012, to the two
warehouse model.

If you have any questions or comments, please send me an email.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director
Division of Administration


mailto:/O=SPIRITS.STATE.NH.US/OU=HQMAIN/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CBULKLEY
mailto:mike@braincircuit.com

One Warehouse

																								SUPPLIER		APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

								…………………….5/2011-4/2012…………………….								Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		CONCORD WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:														11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		497,304		2,220,879				2,321,818		2,391,472		2,463,217		1,268,557		6,123,246						40,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		126,736		580,068				606,432		624,625		643,364		331,332		1,599,321

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		225,353		1,162,283				1,215,109		1,251,562		1,289,109		663,891		3,204,562

		670+ cases per code						733,788		345,874		1,079,662				1,128,733		1,162,595		1,197,472		616,698		2,976,765

		Pallet Packs				1,781		74,213		0		74,213				77,586		79,914		82,311		42,390		204,615

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		360		2,513				2,627		2,706		2,787		1,435		6,929

		Case Returns						1,645		0		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535						50

		Pallet Returns						138		0		138				144		149		153		79		380

		Bottle Returns						142		0		142				148		153		157		81		392

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,925,916		1,195,627		5,121,543				5,354,317		5,514,947		5,680,395		2,925,403		14,120,745

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		3,529,353		18,298,251				19,129,907		19,703,804		20,294,918		10,451,883		50,450,604						12,000

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		309,589		2,943,711				3,077,503		3,169,828		3,264,923		1,681,435		8,116,185						11,000

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		96,580		1,054,357				1,102,278		1,135,346		1,169,406		602,244		2,906,996						12,000

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		36,836		598,729				625,941		644,719		664,061		341,991		1,650,772

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		0		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		0		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603

		Allocated products <84						24,266		0		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904

		Allocated products>85						12,858		0		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		293,249		0		293,249				306,577		315,774		325,248		167,503		808,525

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		102,384		0		102,384				107,037		110,248		113,556		58,481		282,286

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		55,778		0		55,778				58,313		60,063		61,864		31,860		153,787

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		33,064		0		33,064				34,567		35,604		36,672		18,886		91,162

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		11,384		0		11,384				11,901		12,258		12,626		6,502		31,387

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		172		0		172				180		185		191		98		474

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,684,812		3,972,358		23,657,170				24,732,388		25,474,360		26,238,591		13,512,874		65,225,825

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		- 0		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298						1,479,298

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		1,207,894		4,970,756				5,196,677		5,352,577		5,513,154		2,839,275		13,705,006						13,705,006

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		4,416		22,724				23,757		24,470		25,204		12,980		62,653						62,653

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992				30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449						- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				4,348,698		1,212,310		5,561,008				5,813,756		5,988,168		6,167,814		3,176,424		15,332,406

																- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT												- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		- 0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		0		173				181		186		192		99		477

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		0		48				50		52		53		27		132

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		0		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		0		31				32		33		34		18		85

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		0		695				727		748		771		397		1,916

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		15		330				345		355		366		188		910

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0		0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		0		8				8		9		9		5		22

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0		0

				OFFICE - REG				3		1		4				4		4		4		2		11

				OFFICE - OT				0		0		0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		132,732		756,418				790,797		814,521		838,957		432,063		2,085,541

				Bottle Charge				13,788		0		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		0		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		0		16				17		17		18		9		44

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		0		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		0		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		960		10,105				10,564		10,881		11,208		5,772		27,861

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		1,132		11,360				11,876		12,233		12,600		6,489		31,321

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		2,123		20,485				21,416		22,059		22,720		11,701		56,480

				Cases (300+)				16,070		1,000		17,070				17,846		18,381		18,933		9,750		47,064

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		0		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		2,133		16,807				17,571		18,098		18,641		9,600		46,339

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		0		19				20		20		21		11		52

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		0		265				277		285		294		151		731

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		0		67				70		72		74		38		185
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Two Warehouses

																								APPENDIX D				NHSLC		APPENDIX D-1

								5/2011-4/2012						Est. Beginning								Total Est.		Proposed		Total		Total Est.		Proposed		Total

								NASHUA WHSE		TOTAL VOLUME				Volume		EST. VOLUME OVER INITIAL 30 MONTH TERM						Volume		Contract		Estimated		Volume		Contract		Estimated

		INBOUND HANDLING SUMMARY:												11/1/13		1st 12 months		2nd 12 months		Last 6 months		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost		(1st 30 Months)		Rates		Cost

		1 - 180 cases per code						1,723,575		1,723,575				1,801,911		1,855,969		1,911,648		984,499		4,752,115						40,000

		181 - 299 cases per code						453,332		453,332				473,936		488,154		502,799		258,941		1,249,894

		300 - 670 cases per code						936,930		936,930				979,513		1,008,899		1,039,166		535,170		2,583,235

		670+ cases per code						733,788		733,788				767,139		790,153		813,857		419,137		2,023,147

		Pallet Packs				1,781		74,213		74,213				77,586		79,914		82,311		42,390		204,615

		Cases uncoded or unsaleable						2,153		2,153				2,251		2,318		2,388		1,230		5,936

		Case Returns						1,645		1,645				1,720		1,771		1,824		940		4,535						50

		Pallet Returns						138		138				144		149		153		79		380

		Bottle Returns						142		142				148		153		157		81		392

				TOTAL INBOUND HANDLING:				3,925,916		3,925,916				4,104,349		4,227,479		4,354,304		2,242,466		10,824,249

				Stock Transfers - Cases				97,530						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers - Pallet packs		11		268						- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		STORAGE SUMMARY:

		Cases 1 - 84 Days						14,768,898		14,768,898				15,440,144		15,903,349		16,380,449		8,435,931		40,719,729						12,000

		Cases 85 - 182 Days						2,634,122		2,634,122				2,753,843		2,836,458		2,921,552		1,504,599		7,262,609						11,000

		Cases 183 - 365  Days						957,777		957,777				1,001,308		1,031,347		1,062,288		547,078		2,640,713						12,000

		Cases 365+  Days						561,893		561,893				587,431		605,054		623,206		320,951		1,549,210

		Cases on Hold Status <365						202,634		202,634				211,844		218,199		224,745		115,744		558,688

		Cases on Hold Status >365						26,333		26,333				27,530		28,356		29,206		15,041		72,603

		Allocated products <84						24,266		24,266				25,369		26,130		26,914		13,861		66,904

		Allocated products>85						12,858		12,858				13,442		13,846		14,261		7,344		35,451

		Pallet Packs 1-84				7,104		293,249		293,249				306,577		315,774		325,248		167,503		808,525

		Pallet Packs 85-182				2,520		102,384		102,384				107,037		110,248		113,556		58,481		282,286

		Pallet Packs 183-365				1,275		55,778		55,778				58,313		60,063		61,864		31,860		153,787

		Pallet Packs 365+				762		33,064		33,064				34,567		35,604		36,672		18,886		91,162

		Pallets on Hold Status <365				412		11,384		11,384				11,901		12,258		12,626		6,502		31,387

		Pallets on Hold Status >365				5		172		172				180		185		191		98		474

				TOTAL STORAGE:				19,684,812		19,684,812				20,579,487		21,196,871		21,832,777		11,243,880		54,273,529

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		OUTBOUND SUMMARY:

		Single Bottle						536,536		536,536				560,922		577,749		595,082		306,467		1,479,298						1,479,298

		Automatic Orders (Cases)						3,762,862		3,762,862				3,933,884		4,051,901		4,173,458		2,149,331		10,374,689						13,705,006

		Non-Automatic Orders (Cases)						18,308		18,308				19,140		19,714		20,306		10,457		50,477						62,653

		Automatic Orders (Cases) - out of state						30,992		30,992				32,401		33,373		34,374		17,702		85,449						- 0

				TOTAL OUTBOUND:				4,348,698		4,348,698				4,546,346		4,682,737		4,823,219		2,483,958		11,989,913

														- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Stock Transfers OUT										- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		ACCESSORIAL SUMMARY:

		Advertising Material		HNDLG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				HNDLG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477

				STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				STRG PER CASE - LARGE				173		173				181		186		192		99		477

				REC STRG PER CASE - SMALL				48		48				50		52		53		27		132

				REC STRG PER CASE - LARGE				2,326		2,326				2,432		2,505		2,580		1,329		6,413

				NON-AUTO MIN UPCHARGE				31		31				32		33		34		18		85

		Blankets		HANDLING / BLANKET				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

				STORAGE / BLANKET				695		695				727		748		771		397		1,916

		Extra Labor & Equipment		W/H LABOR - REG				315		315				329		339		349		180		868

				W/H LABOR - OT				0		0

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - REG				8		8				8		9		9		5		22

				W/H MAN & EQUIP - OT				0		0

				OFFICE - REG				3		3				3		3		3		2		8

				OFFICE - OT				0		0

		Physical Inventory		Cases - SUPPLIERS				623,686		623,686				652,033		671,594		691,741		356,247		1,719,582

				Bottle Charge				13,788		13,788				14,415		14,847		15,293		7,876		38,015

				Case Charge - NHSLC				15,592		15,592				16,301		16,790		17,293		8,906		42,989

		Special Reports		PER REPORT/LIST				16		16				17		17		18		9		44

		Destruction		PER CASE (0 to 55)				1,384		1,384				1,447		1,490		1,535		791		3,816

				PER CASE 56+				5,538		5,538				5,790		5,963		6,142		3,163		15,269

		Labeling		Cases (0 to 55)				9,145		9,145				9,561		9,847		10,143		5,224		25,214

				Cases (56 to 99)				10,228		10,228				10,693		11,014		11,344		5,842		28,200

				Cases (100 to 299)				18,362		18,362				19,197		19,772		20,366		10,488		50,626

				Cases (300+)				16,070		16,070				16,800		17,304		17,824		9,179		44,307

				Minimum (upcharge)				418		418				437		450		464		239		1,152

		Relabeling		Cases relabeled				14,674		14,674				15,341		15,801		16,275		8,382		40,458

				Minimum (upcharge)				19		19				20		20		21		11		52

		Duplicate Labels		Duplicate labels				265		265				277		285		294		151		731

		Min Invoice Chg		Min Invoice Upcharges				67		67				70		72		74		38		185
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This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
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mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley
Subject: Distributech - Tentative Schedule
Date: Tuesday, June 26, 2012 1:54:40 PM

Thank you Craig for this update.
We will look for your next instructions tomorrow.

Regards
Mike

On Jun 26, 2012 1:26 PM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@Iiquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Mike:

Thank you for spending time with us last week. The Evaluation Committee is still
in its initial phase. We wanted to let you know that our first opportunity to meet
with you will be during the week of July 16th.

We expect to send you an email tomorrow that will require you to use numbers
that we will provide to perform financial cost projections based on specific
volumes and your proposed rates. | understand that this is a bit vague, but
tomorrow’s email will clarify things.

Please confirm receipt.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley
Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liqguor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
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DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me

by telephone at (603)230-7008.


mailto:cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us
tel:%28603%29230-7008

From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Subject: Distributech - Tentative Schedule
Date: Tuesday, June 26, 2012 1:26:41 PM
Mike:

Thank you for spending time with us last week. The Evaluation Committee is still in its initial
phase. We wanted to let you know that our first opportunity to meet with you will be during the
week of July 16th.

We expect to send you an email tomorrow that will require you to use numbers that we will
provide to perform financial cost projections based on specific volumes and your proposed rates. |
understand that this is a bit vague, but tomorrow’s email will clarify things.

Please confirm receipt.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
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Hi Craig,
Attached are our answers to the Evaluation Committee's questions.

The zipped file is just over 5 megs and | am a bit concerned that you might not
receive it through your email server.

| am 5 minutes from your office and can hand you a memory stick with all of the
information also.

Please let me know or confirm that you received the file in good order.

Thank you.
Mike
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NHSLC Additional Questions
--Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14

Distributech, LLC Answers








Question 1. Do you subscribe to “open data Standards”

Yes we subscribe to open data standards and would appreciate the opportunity to participate in an
open data initiative —in our state and our industry. We recognize that our internal data systems must
operate as a bridge for all inventory activity among a diverse group of suppliers, a standardized system
developed by the NHSLC, and an expanding internet-based group of brokers, customers and

management teams that seek open access to data, applications and warehouse processes.

Question 2. Do you have “open data formats” as part of your proposals?

Yes, our planning, development and integration efforts will support exchanges in open data formats.
Probably the most relevant area where we can participate is to promise that all non-proprietary data
will be in plain text and non-proprietary formats; all live and batch reporting, all data exports and data
delivery modes will be primarily browser-based (cross-browser compatible) html, and xml-based; or
flat-file based. Data exports will be as simple and user-triggered in formats that are as simple as csv,

pdf, excel etc. And our deployment will also include emerging device compatibility as well.

Although we deploy proprietary MS SQL databases and use licensed applications/tools for processing,
we will engage in a 20-year long evolutionary process to enhance our systems and offerings so that the

NHSLC and its customers can always use tools that are ubiquitous in nature all along the way.







Question 3. Does your proposal include all licenses required to operate hardware/software?

Yes. Our proposal includes all software and hardware licenses for internal automation, internal
warehousing and control functionality, inter-company warehouse management systems, supply-chain

reporting processes and integration into DolT and NHSLC information exchange systems.

Question 4 .Does your proposal include maintenance for all hardware/software?

Yes —we are responsible for the maintenance, upgrades and replacement of all hardware and software.
[We are also aware of the fact that at some point theNHSLC will elect to upgrade its own ERP system,
and thus trigger new dynamics in sharing information to/from the warehousing operation. For at least
“our side” of that upgrade or even migration, our proposal includes our responsibility toward

integration].

Question 5.Does your proposal rely on customized interfaces to integrate with the NHLC existing

applications?

No there is not a reliance upon NHSLC customizations. This is because we are defining our core
databases to match the NHSLC’s existing files, layouts, database rules and business rules. Our
integration effort is more native than “foreign”. Our contractual efforts willl have more to do with
enhancing data exchanges than creating interfaces (especially with regard to NHSLC data and Supplier
product identification schemas—with some extra attention to business rules we can address things like
vintages, pack changes and multiple scan codes by managing and verifying cross-reference tables, keys
and indexing between key heterogeneous data fields). We understand that we can only seek to
optimize our accuracy given an acceptable number of constraints. So, our WMS and WCS processes

will be automated to obtain, update and maintain NHSLC data for the major tables governing







customers, products and prices —as well all supporting sub-tables. From our end, we will transfer back
to the NHSLC our transactional data and added data that might become very valuable. Whether we
utilize the existing FTP site at DolT, replicate data through the NHSLC web server, or other enhanced
mode, our major workflows and data sharing for receiving, order processing, shipping and reporting

will be “live” and without a requirement of end-user custom-interfaces.







Question 6. What are your projections for volumes by month in each of the pricing categories included

in Appendices D and D-1 for the first 30 months of this contract and each subsequent 30-month period

through the end of the contract? Please explain the basis for your projection. Please address only the

basic bailment charges: inbound handling, storage, and outbound order processing/reporting. For

example, in the first month of the contract, how many cases do you assume will be inbound in the

category of codes of 1-180?

Distributech: Our basic assumptions are that the NHSLC annual case throughput has grown 3% (and

will continue annually at approximately that rate). Below is a piece of our analysis that sought to

evaluate the legacy price-points and multiple cost categories. We are pretty sure that we are

competitive at all mirrored levels. However, we’d really like the NHSLC to collapse and simplify the

entire billing system.

Weighted Assessment (when forced to review old method of receiving --by volume category)

Law Law
Rates Pre- Rates Distributech
May 2012 2013
Weight Estimated Estimated
INBOUND HANDLING: Based on Cases Cases
History Law Concord
3967800 1177000
Codes of 1 — 180 cases $1.15 per case $1.40 $1.15 12% 490000 $563,500 145060 $166,819 2011 volume with
Codes of 181 — 299 cases $1.00 per case $1.20 $1.00 45% 1780000 $1,780,000 526953 $526,953 old Law rates
Codes of 300 — 669 cases $0.90 per case $1.05 $0.90 25% 980000 $882,000 290120 $261,108
Total Distributech
Codes of 670+ cases o) 95 per case $0.95 so.s0| 8% 725000  $580,000 214630 $171,704| Receiving Fees
Pallet packs $6.35 per pallet $7.60 $6.35 800 $5,080 800 $5,080
100% | 3975800] $3,810,580] 1177563 $1,131,664 $4,942,244
PRESUMPTION: 3% annual growth 1.10609 YR1 --FY2013/14
Our YR1= (2011June Volumes X (1.03 x 1.03)) Distributech $5,243,227
$1.40 12% 490000 $686,000 145060 $203,084 2011 volume with
$1.20 45% 1780000 $2,136,000 526953 $632,344
new Law rates
Law $1.05 25% 980000 $1,029,000 290120 $304,626
Rates 18% Total Law Wrhs
2013 $0.95 725000 $688,750 214630 $203,898 Receiving Fees
$7.60 800 $6,080 800 $6,080
100% 3975800 $4,545,830 1177563 $1,350,032 $5,895,862

PRESUMPTION:

3% annual growth
Our YR1= (2011June Volumes X (1.03 x 1.03))

1.10609
LAW FEES

YR1 --FY2013/14
$6,254,920








We can demonstrate the same type of complexity for storage fees and multiple categories if necessary.
And then we can set forth a huge array of complex projections on shipping and extraneous service
fees. However, in the end our $2/case flat rate and flat penny per day storage is the most fair, efficient

and easiest model to administer.

From FY2009-10 with 4.7M cases to FY2010-11 with 4.8M cases, our next expected volumes in Year

One of the contract are projected to be 5.2M cases by FY2013-14.

By Year 5 we will handle almost 6M cases annually. Our direct costs will stay relatively flat and our
variable labor costs will grow more slowly through optimized automation and re-investments. By Year

10, case volumes can conceivably reach 6.9M cases and continue growing to 9 million cases by Year 20.

We have taken the position that the total system should accommodate growing case volumes but also
accommodate (without penalties or complexity) a growing array of products as well with small lots and
lower sales volumes. That is a major factor in attempting to eliminate complicated rates and various

“categories”.

Projections for the first 30 months and the first 5 years of the contract were created by ascribing an
historic weight and seasonality to each of the months. During the contract we will verify and adapt the

moving averages so that we can adjust for shifts and trends in volumes and demands on our labor:

January February March April May June July August September October November December
8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52% 8.01% 10.33%

Using our pricing will insure that only two variables will affect the measurement of warehousing costs

in New Hampshire. Total monthly case movement in/out and inventory age. The in/out fees are a fixed







cost, and at a penny per day, the variable cost per case has been reduced to a nominal level. [The
beauty of this type of simplicity is that the few “carve-outs” by the NHSLC for free storage, or upscale

refrigerated storage are only a short-list of understandable add-ons.

Question 6 asks for volume projections in each month for the first 30 months and then monthly until
the end of the contract. With a simple weighted calculation, that we will continually recalibrate, all
costs and labor demands will be the subject matter for constant open review and reporting. All
management departments (as diverse as finance, automation and HR will be capable of using a

common ground for auditing and forecasting purposes)

1.03 Case growth Historic Monthly Weighted Case Volumes
Annual Cases Contract Our Appendix D2 Warehouse Rates call for a $1/case "in" and $1/case "out" fee

4,678,926 Jun-10

4,817,847 Jun-11

4,962,382 Jun-12 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEP ocT NOV DEC
5,111,254 Jun-13 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52% 8.01% 10.33%
5,264,591 Jun-14  Yearl 425,379 330,090 313,243 418,535 402,215 482,763 554,361 454,334 416,956 501,189 421,694 543,832
5,422,529 Jun-15 Year 2 438,140 339,993 322,640 431,091 414,281 497,246 570,992 467,964 429,464 516,225 434,345 560,147
5585205 Jun-16 Year3 451,285 350,192 332,320 444,024 426710 512,163 588,122 482,003 442,348 531,712 447,375 576,952
5,752,761 Jun-17 Year4 464,823 360,698 342,289 457,345 439,511 527,528 605,766 496,463 455,619 547,663 460,796 594,260
5,925,344 Jun-18 Year5 478,768 371,519 352,558 471,065 452,696 543,354 623,939 511,357 469,287 564,093 474,620 612,088

6,103,104 Year6 493,131 382,665 363,135 485,197 466,277 559,655 642,657 526,698 483,366 581,016 488,859 630,451
6,286,198 Year7 507,925 394,145 374,029 499,753 480,265 576,444 661,937 542,499 497,867 598,446 503,524 649,364
6,474,783 Year8 523,163 405969 385250 514,745 494,673 593,738 681,795 558,774 512,803 616,399 518,630 668,845
6,669,027 Year9 538857 418,148 396,807 530,188 509,514 611,550 702,249 575537 528,187 634,891 534,189 688,910
6,869,098 Year10 555023 430,692 408,711 546,093 524,799 629,896 723,316 592,803 544,033 653,938 550,215 709,578
7,075,171 Year1l 571,674 443,613 420,973 562,476 540,543 648793 745015 610,587 560,354 673,556 566,721 730,865
7,287,426 Year12 588,824 456,922 433,602 579,350 556,759 668257 767,366 628,905 577,164 693,763 583,723 752,791
7,506,049 Year13 606489 470,629 446,610 596,731 573,462 688,305 790,387 647,772 594,479 714,576 601,234 775375
7,731,230 Year14 624683 484,748 460,008 614,633 590,666 708,954 814,099 667,205 612,313 736,013 619,272 798,636
7,963,167 Year15 643,424 499,291 473,808 633,072 608,386 730,222 838521 687,221 630,683 758,093 637,850 822,595
8,202,062 Year16 662,727 514,269 488,023 652,064 626,638 752,129 863,677 707,838 649,603 780,836 656,985 847,273
8,448,124 Year17 682,608 529,697 502,663 671,626 645437 774,693 889,587 729,073 669,091 804,261 676,695 872,691
8,701,568 Year18 703,087 545588 517,743 691,775 664,800 797,934 916,275 750,945 689,164 828,389 696,996 898,872
8,962,615 Year19 724,179 561,956 533,276 712,528 684,744 821,872 943763 773,474 709,839 853241 717,905 925,838
9,231,493 Year20 745905 578,815 549,274 733,904 705,286 846,528 972,076 796,678 731,134 878,838 739,443 953,613

Our fee structure does not have multiple pricing categories. When we assess $1/case for inbound
cases, a penny a day per case storage and then $1/case for cases shipped out, the monthly math is a

very simple calculation








Question 7. In Section 3.0.12, Page 26, the RFP requires that the proposal shall list separtately all

charges which could be incurred by the NHSLC and all charges which could be incurred by the

suppliers in the operation of the warehouse. Are all charges included in Appendices D and D-

1? Specifically, identify where a charge, if any, for outbound handling is located. For example,

outbound handling may already be included in the charge for inbound handling.

Yes all charges are included in Appendices D, D1 and our proposed D2 alternative. Our basic approach

is to include all services, comprehensively —instead of using an al la carte service methodology.

Specifically, the outbound handling charge is included within the Handling/Management/Integration
fee. Inside the required rate quote format of Appendix D and D1 it—and payable by the wine/spirit
vendor of record. [Normally this is the supplier, occasionally it is the NHSLC if the inventory was

acquired or from a “buy-in”].

Our alternative billing model bundles all services into only 2 fees to the NHSLC ($2/case includes all
services; plus a penny day per case for storage). If the NHSLC wants to create various biases or
surcharges or warehouse price categories to bailment suppliers, the rate complexity that exists within
today’s billing system can be duplicated by Distributech. However, the cleanest, simplest, most
efficient system is a mere $1/case “in”; a penny a day storage; and $1/case “out” --when it is sold and

shipped out.

Exception Fees: Distributech waives all of the RFP's miscellaneous fees to the vendors of record except

(1) product destruction, (2) relabeling and (3) returns. Destruction and relabeling is a flat rate of

$0.75/case and returns are processed at a $1.00/case. Refrigerated space is 2 cents/case/day.







Additional pieces like 35K cases of free storage and the elimination of “Assesorial Fees” are also

included.

Billing Approach: We propose that any/all Distributech fees/charges be transparently invoiced from
warehouse to the SLC in digital formats defined by the SLC; and then passed-through to the suppliers
by the SLC... or marked-up by the SLC before being received by the Suppliers. We will provide the

NHSLC with supplier invoice data in a “ready-to-send” format to bill the suppliers.








Question 8. We have read Section 1.5.8 on Page 13 of your proposal. Nevertheless, Part |, Section

1.5.8, Page 9 of the RFP requires the vendor to provide audited financial statements for the past

three years or an alternative satisfactory to the NHSLC. Part 4, Section 4.4, Page 32 of the RFP

requires a new entity to provide other relevant financial materials to demonstrate its financial

stability and capacity. Please provide us with sufficient financial materials to demonstrate

Distributech’s financial stability and capacity.

Distributech: Our relationship with W.P. Carey allows us to eliminate cash needs from outside
sources, allows for future expansion, allows for increased borrowing capacity- and a line of credit if
necessary. At risk is approximately $S400K in analysis, feasibility and engineering fees. The up front
money has come from cash injections . by Tom Bullock and John Goclowski; another $200K is being
]spent to accelerate our “Pre-award” permitting and design costs. Both John and Tom are being added

as members of Distributech, LLC.

Attached are the audited financials for both W.P. Carey and Co, LLC and for the REIT, Corporate
Property Associates 17 — Global, Inc. for 2011 and 2010. The 2009 financials are also set forth in the

financial statements, so the full three years are included.

Both W.P. Carey and Co, LLC and Corporate Property Associates 17- Global, Inc. are public companies
under federal securities laws. As a result, they are required to file 10-K financial reports on an annual

basis, 10-Q financial reports quarterly, and 8-K reports as needed.







All financial information set forth in a 10-K is audited by outside accountants and covered by a letter
from the accounting firm stating the same. (The letter for each is also attached at the end of this

document as an Appendix to today’s answers) .

Distributech’s proforma was based upon our simplified billing proposal and business operation
projections and subject to review. (Distributech Proforma is also attached as an Appendix to today’s

answers).

The $40 million is specifically ear-marked to buy the necessary property, build the facility, set up the
automation, transition the merger of both existing warehouses and begin warehousing operations for

the NHSLC.

Yes this is “start-up” in nature; however we have secured 100% financing because the business and
the plan of execution has been reviewed, approved and is fundamentally structured upon the longevity
of the NHSLC itself, the proven track record and reliability of the New Hampshire wine and spirits

monopoly and the reliance upon continued strong business.

The impressive strength of this financial commitment is best summarized by the fact that W.P. Carey is
backing this transaction through its CPA:17 Fund that specializes in this types of build to suit contracts

—with more than $3 billion in dedicated assets.








Question 9a ./n your proposal on Page 74, you indicate that you plan to build a facility at 15 Integra

Drive in Concord, NH. We understand that the location was recently zoned industrial. Please provide

us with a construction schedule that establishes that the facility will be operational on or before

October 31, 2013.

D |Task Name Duratian I)u = Finizh I [2013
| nay | Jun | tul Sep | Oct [ Nov | Dec [ dan [ Feb [ Mar | Apr [y [ dun | tu [ Ay Oct | Now | Dec
1 |NEW DISTRIBUTION CENTER 355days  Mon 62512 Frill/1/13
2 | site Design & Permitting T5days  Mon6/25/12 Fril0/5/12 —
3 MH Fish & Game Review 3whe Mon7/2/12  Fri7/20/12 -
4 Traffic Study 3wk Mon7/2/12  FriTf20/12 [~
5 Site Design 4whe Mon 6/25/12  Fri7/20/12 -k
& Planning & Zoning Approval 9 wihe Mon7/23/12 Frigf21/12 534
7 State DES Significant Alteration of Terrain Permit  9whs Men7/23/12 Figfzjiz s p-——
[ Receive Site Construction Permit 1wk Mon 10/1/12  FrilQ/5/12 GRS+l wk L
9 | Building Design - 30% W/days  MonTf2/12  FriB/3f12
10 306% (5,A,M,E,P| Complete Designs for Bidding Swhs Mon 7/2/12  Frigf1f12 55541 wh
11 | Construction Bidding 30days  Mon7/30/12 Fri%f7/12
12 Site Waork Iwks Mon 7/312  Fr817/12  SFS+lwk
13 Steel, Concrete, Roof Wall Panels Fwhs Mon 8/20/12  Fri®y7/12 10F5+2 whs
12 | Select Contractors lodays  Fri§f3L/12  Frigj21/12 =
15 oward Site Contractor 1day Fig31/12  Figf31/12  12F50days i
16 Award Building Trade Contractors 1 day Fi921/12  Frigf21/12  13F5e0days —
17
18 | AWARDING OF NH LIQUOR BUSINESS 0days Fri8/31/12  Frig/31/12 iyl
19
20 | Final Building Design - 100% idays  Mon9/17/12 Mon 10/15/12 =
[ 21| complete (5.0, ME,7) Designs 21days  Mon/17/12  Mon 10/15/12 10,1BF5+11 day ‘—
22 | Construction 251days  Mon 10/15/12 Mon 9/30/13

n Site Prep Work Bwhks Mon 10/15/12 Fril12/7/12 1B6F5+3 whs B *I )

14 Building Construction 231 days  Mon 11/12/12 Mon9/30/13  16,23F5-4 whs

% Finish Site Work, Landscaping 31days Mon B/13/13  Mon §/30/13  24F5-31 days,23 ‘h‘_
2% | Inspection, Certificate of Occupancy 1wk Tue10/1/13  Meon10/7/13 24,25

7
m Materials Handling System 340 days
o] Study

1 Frillf1/13

: ke
» m Design s 105+ 1w L
1 | 5§ a0
2 Systirms Engineering Bwks 31
| ¥ | MHS Equigrment Prag et 12 wiks 3z
| 1B whs 3
) 3wks 34
e 1day 35,26 Sun

The project plan above is a high-level view. We have a more detailed project plan that can be reviewed
at the next level of discussion. We are very pleased that the evaluation committee is taking using an
accelerated calendar for the bidding review process. As you can see, the construction process for the
facility alone is marked at 251 days. This can be accelerated as well; however all delays serve only to
further pressurize an already tight “go-live” schedule. Many of the physical automation and IT-based
operations can begin concurrently with the contract award and will not suffer as greatly from the “1

year calendar”.








Question 9b. Given the amount of traffic currently on Manchester Street, as well as the commercial

traffic from Associated Grocer’s truck traffic; do you have approval from the City of Concord to use

Manchester Street in connection with your proposed site?

We had a meeting with the City of Concord Planning Department regarding the proposed traffic
increase on Manchester Street and specifically in the Integra Drive area. The group was presented with
the increased anticipated traffic counts on a daily basis and there were no major concerns with the

added traffic loads.

The Integra Drive intersection has been designed by the City of Concord to handle largetraffic loads
based on the city’s long range plans for the area. The City of Concord has a master plan for the area
behind the new distribution facility to be developed per the Garvin Falls Urban Reserve Area Study.
This area has been designated by the city as a potential area for future offices and warehouse
operations in a 50 year master plan. The Integra Drive intersection is planned to be a major access to

the industrial / office park area.

The City of Concord will still require a traffic study. The study is slated to be completed in July.

Question 9c. In addition to the schedule requested above, please provide us with the names of all

subcontractors that will be responsible for construction and infrastructure.

The facility design is slated to start in the middle of July with completion of the total project design mid-

October. At this time, no sub-contractors for the construction of the building structure have been selected.







Stahlman Group will provide the facility design and construction management services on the project. Stahlman

Group has provided engineering and construction services for over 100 projects in the beverage field.

The following is a sampling of distribution center projects in the northeast region that Stahlman Group has

provided design and construction services for.

1. Amoskeag Beverages — Bow, NH

2. Bellavance Beverages, Nashua, NH

3. New Hampshire Distributors — Concord, NH

4. Coca-Cola Northern New England, N. Londonderry, NH
5. Centrex Distributors, West Greenwich, Rl

6. Pine State Trading Co. - Gardiner, ME

7. Polar Beverages — Worchester, MA

8. Senecal Beverage, Inc. - Merrimack, NH

9. Onondaga Beverage Corp. - Syracuse, NY

10. DeCrescente Distributing Company, Inc. - Mechanicville, NY
11. Origlio Beverage - Philadelphia, PA

12. Pepsi Bottling Company — Numerous Locations

13. Coca-Cola Enterprises — Numerous Locations

14. DeMoulas Supermarkets, Andover, MA

15. Bozzuto’s Inc. — Cheshire, CT

16. Sysco Corporation — Numerous Locations

As design for the major components of the building structure are completed, they will be put out to bid to select
pre-qualified sub-contractors. Stahlman Group maintains a list of pre-qualified contractors, most if not all of

whom have successfully worked on similar Stahlman projects as sub-contractors.







The list of anticipated sub-contractor trades is as follows:

1. Site work

2. Landscape

3. Paving

4. Site Utility

5. Concrete Foundations

6. Concrete Slabs

7. Structural Steel Fabricator
8. Structural Steel Erector

9. Miscellaneous Metals Fabricator
10. Miscellaneous Metals Erect / Install
11. Mason

12. Rigging

13. Carpenters

14. Roofing

15. Doors and Windows

16. Painting

17. Drywall

18. Flooring

19. Ceiling

20. Accessories

21. Loading Dock Equipment
22. Elevator

23. Pallet Racking







24. Wall Panels

25. Plumbing

26. Electrical

27. Mechanical / HVAC

28. Automation Equipment Fabrication

29. Automation Equipment Installation

All contractors go through a pre-qualification process to determine their company size, financial standings,
project references, supplier references, financial references, etc. and ability to perform the necessary tasks for a
project of this type. There is no discrimination based on a company’s labor agreements (open shop or union).
Whenever possible, local contractors are utilized. It is anticipated there would be up to 30 sub-contractors

required to complete the project. There would be up to 200 trades people employed to construct this project.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the financiai position of W. P, Carey &
Co, LLC and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
peried ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generalty accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinien, the financial
statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents faitly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal controel over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0Q). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, inciuded under lem A, Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial staternents, on the {inanicial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemeats are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financiat reporting was maintained in all material respeets. Our audits of the financial stalements included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financiat reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materiat weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Our audifs also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audits provide a
reasonabie basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that {i) pertain to the mainterance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispesitions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company”s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Recause of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness io future periods are subject to the risk that controfs may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

New York, New York
February 29, 2012
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W.P. CAREY & CO. LLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounis}

December 31,

Asgetyi
Investments in real estate:
- Realestates ot st GichisHe of imotints Brbutiine o Sansolidated VIEC S 41,032 and $30. 718, respectivelyy
Operating real estate. at cost {inclusive of amounts attributable to consolidated VIEs of $26,318 and $25 665, rcspectwet }
A gbimGlated deprediation (inCIiive ot aratnis altrbutable 16 donsolidaed VIES of $22: 450 and 520,431, respecmely} 5
Net investments in properties
Nepinvestmenty iy dirsst Tianecinp: leases
Equity mvestment real estate and the
Met fmvestments m réaliedtate: iR

Cash and cash equi valems (mckus:ve nf amounr.s aimbutable to consohéated VIEs of $230 and $8
Ihie from affiiistes S : i ; i
Intangible assets and goodwail met T
Citherasiets; HerGnclnse of Wmeunis At n butable 1o cunsohdated ViBsof 52775 and 51 845 respetively);
Total assets

Lidbilities and Equity..
Noti-igéotirse -and limited-fecourse debt. Gnciusive of Armounts ttributable fo'consolidated VIks of $14.261:and $9.593 réspectively).
Lme oi credit

IncomI:s taxes. net
Distiibirtiohs payable s

Total liabil mes
Redeemable HonEontrolling: irte
Commitments and contmgencxes (Noie I2)

: 4

Llsted shares, 6o par value; !GQ H06.000 sharés authorized

Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings

Deferred compensaiion oblipation

Accumulasad other comprehenswe loss

Tolal W piCarey msmbers sy

Nnnconimllmg interests
Aol eguityi s : i T S SRR S GEE G : 54747
Total liabilities and eq:my 51 462 623 $1,172 326

9720,018 atid 30454 847 shares iSsied ahd Gustanding respectively

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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W. P, CAREY & CO. LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,
2018 2HHS

Reéventies LR
_Asset managemam revenue
SRR revenud i
_ Incentive, termination
LW aGsalng réveniis’
_Reimbursed costs from aff haies
i LeaseTdvenies i e
Other rea] estate s mceme

Operatmg Expenses

Rezmbursable costs
L Tentes it S d ATRbriization
. Property expenses o
SrEiOmErTesl estag snpehses L Y
Impairment charges

Sl(2s38y
(13.241) ),
erasey o Aty

(10,432)

Other fncome and Expens
SHOsher interéstindome 1 i =
o, BCOME frOm equity investments in real estate and the REETS .
FETGaIA on chafipe in controf bl interests i G

Other income and ( expeﬂses)
i interesexiensé i

s Income from continiing opetations before incoine taxes:

Provision for income taxes )

SR RooRe R Sontuing operationy i
Dtscontmued Operatmns

ncome fron operagions o distontinbed properiie

Gam on deconsolsdauon of a subsuila

Impa.lrment charges
ooy iﬁéﬁoi}ﬁeﬁ"{'r'd_r'd-'&i’%s’é{iﬁ_ﬁ;ziﬁgjc‘I’ operations
Net Income
A Net ok artributable'io noncontrolling inferdsty
Less: Net income attribuiable 1o redeemable nencontmllmg interest (1,293
Net Tacome Auiibutable to WP, Cirey Menibers : : i : Ghnin §1 390700 e g3hTEE
Basxc Earnings Per Share
s hcome fram Coniniing operations atmbutable 1o W P: Cargy. Tiatnbery’
(Loss) incorne from discontinued operations aftributable to W. P. Carey members
S T INCEIE S HDOtab1E 1o WP Clirey migbirs e
Dlluted Earnings Per Share
: THESHRE ffom Contiruing ‘operations stirbufable o W
(i_ess) income frorn discontinued operations aﬂnbutab[e 10
S NEneome dRHBIAbIE fo Wi R Chrey mermbers:
Wetghted Average Shares Outstanding
SRasnic

Diluted

v members;
P. Carey members

Amguiits Atéributatle to'W, P Carey Menibers.
income from contmmng operatlcns rel o% mx

" Net income . § 139,079 s 73912 5 69,023

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents.
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W.P.CAREY & CO. LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
i {0

Other Camprehenswe (Loss) Income:

S ROR BN Gty Trandlation ddjuetments
Unrealized loss on derivative instruments
Changs'in inrealized appreciation on marketablé secunties -

Comprehensive Ticome:

Ameunts Attnbutahl
s Netloss
Fomgn cun'ency transiation adjustments _ -

Comprehensivefoss {incomeyatnibitabléto noRcontrolling interests. w0

Noncontrolli

Amounts Attnbutable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest:

Comprehensive Income Attributable to W. P. Carey Members $134035  $7LISO 369, 170

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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W. P. CAREY & CO. LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

W. P Cavey Members

Distributions Accumuisted
in Exceas ul‘ Deferred Other
Listed A < ! Comprehenst Nonconerolling
Shares Shares Eamlngs Lass
Bilante it Faniney 1; 20007 SERTSTO R (T T80R0y i B28)

Cash proceeds on issuance ¢f shares net
Grantssesiid i coimection wih sevdides Tnasd:
Shares zued ander share incantive plans
Cotstititions:: E
Forfeituras of rhares

Distribntidiie daclated (L0 hex share)‘*‘
Distributions to noncontroliing interests
SindENE il Benefily-sihars mteinye plans
Siock-besed compen
Repiaohasg dnd insnsns of shares)
Redemption value adjustment
T £

(2.528)

Nel meome
Chige incoier somprehissive s
Balance al Becember 31, 2009

39,204,603 754,507 . {138,442)

shas;s‘ ibsiicd mxiefrishir&'a&icmm%-ﬁlm S
Conmblmons

Distributions declan;\d {$2 03 per shara)
Dristribaicns 1o ridiiconisrsBing lesdste =
Windfil 1ax benefis—share incennive plans
SR Comipasation expeuse 3
Repurchase and retirement of sh
Redempiion valigadjustmen i
Tax impact of purchase of W, P, Carev Inlemauonﬂ]
L1.C interest
Replagsificatial of tig Tnvisio LR
£ Sioraje (Mote 8
Net income . - L
Chenge rother conprotibnis 1oss
Balanre at December 31, 2050
CRpk prieecds on iviumsoi of Shivrds fiel
Grants issued in connection with services renders
Shiares is¥aad ider Share MEsave Ging
Cantnbutions
Foifeivares of shafes i S
Distributions declared ($2 19 per share)
Distiibutions o poncontrallifiy interasm
Windfall tax benefits—shars incentive plans
Keack-busa Cofipetivation Blpense . :
Repurchase and zetirernent of shares
Redesiption valos Bdjstivien: :
Purchase nfmncamm ing interes (Note
Mt ingome:
Change in ather comprehensive 10ss
Biglatice wt Deternberat; 201370000

Ly
(3.463)

3? 1.154 84T " {1 45,?.69_}
anGra
5283

S

CEA 0T

(a) Distributions declared per share excludes special distribution of $0.30 per share declared in December 2009,
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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W.P. CAREY & CO, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{in thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Ciigh Flows i Dperating Activities
Net income
Adjustents 1o hatineome:
Depreciation and amorlzlauun mciudmg mtanglble assets and defe
1088 Qb ane) TG BquItE TRVES S i toak éstare and e REITE in ey
Straight-dine rent and financing lease ad]ustrmems
EAmorization vl deferred renty b
Gain en deconsehidation of a subsidiary
sLass {paniy diisale ofeal:
Gair on extingoishment of debt
Unirealieed lows {gainy on forsign CITeRcY [FARSECHCS dAd Uikiers

Gy
(3.658)

_Realized gain on foreign Lurrency tansact d others . . :
: Allccanr:nnf(itnsﬁ)mmg&'mmﬁ?shmﬂ 2 L i HERES R e g e (761 SO0
Managernent and dispositicn income received in shares of a.fﬁilat:s . L ) . L (73936) (35235) 31721

Sl on' GanvErien ol shares

Gain on change in comrai of zn:eresis
i Inviphiament charg ;

Stock-kased compel

] Increase1n simcfunng TRVENUE reces
Sintrense (decionde) i intomi xS, et B

Wet changes in other operating assets.and lxablhﬁas

Netedsh provided by ppirktiig aetivitie:

Cas

5h Flowy — Investing Activities B »
Tristibitions TodeiVeR o baqung invistment in real ey ansand the RENTEn wreess qfcqum i
pital contmbutions to equity in
“Piichie bf inthfests i CPAT 16 Glokal 17
Puychaseg of rend estate and equity investments in real estats
NN paid i Sonnet s IR seguisifion: bEeal asme
VAT refunded in cmnacimn Freal

"Pruweds from sale of securitios

Fumding of short-term Joans to affilsates
SPrivgeeds froid repavient oF Short-iiii Totns 1 abilints
Funds reieased from escrow

S s P RS R i A R TR
Net cash {used in)} provided by investing activities {126,084y {37.843) 18,106

Cisl Flows 0 Finanding Aviivy
Distabutions paid
A BRGNS A Doncbntrolling Tnierbsts
Distributions te noncondrolling interests
S Cermsiond frony preflahimii ierst
Distsibutions to profit-sharing interest
T PR o nindrtiel g Biterii
Scheduled payments of mortgage principal
opay el iingage prineipal
Proceeds from mortgage financing
= Presds From lines of crédil’ :
. Repavments of fines of credit
 PraceEds T LONSE from Al
Repayments of Inans from affiliates
4 Painlarof finencing Yeusin
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Wiridfall Bk bbheRE sse ciated withistoek -hiased ‘eipensation ivirdy
Repurchase end refiremens of shares
Neteaily provided by (uséd in) Rnanting acvit

C‘hange in Cask and Cash Equivalenis During the Year
Bffect of e¥chisie Tate chatsgos dn Pash ; i i

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equwalems (35.396)
CCakh e cash bait valeits] bepming ST dar : B L RkE

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year £ 20207 §64 693 5 18438
{Continued)
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W.P. CAREY & CO. LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
Supplemental noncash activities:

On May 2, 2011, in conngction with entering into an amended and restated advisory agreement with CPA®:16 - Global as a result of the UPREIT Reorganization, we
received a special membership interest in CPA®:16 — Global’s operating partnership and recorded as consideration a $28.3 miliion adjustment to Equity investments in
real estate and the REITs to eeflect the fair value of our Special Member Interest in that opeeating partrership (Note 3).

Alsoe on May 2, 2031, we exchanged 11,113,050 shares of CPA®:14 for 13,260,091 shares of CPA®:16 — Global in connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger, resulting
in a gain of approximately $2.8 million {Note 3).

In connection with the acquisition of properties from CPA®: 14 in May 201 |, we assumed two non-recourse mortgages on the related properties with an aggregate fair
value of $87.6 million at the date of acquisition (Note 4).

In Septernber 2011, we deconsolidated a wholly-owned subsidiary because we no longer had controf over the activities that most significantly impact its economic
performance following possession of the subsidiary’s property by a receiver (Note 16). The following table presents the assets and liabifities of the subsidiary on the
date of deconsolidation {in thousands):

Assdrs i
) Netmvestmems in propemes )

S 3(6.333)

Supplemental cash flows information (in thousands):

Years Ended December 3%
[rterést paid: s j e ; 1514
Income taxes paid 333 641 $24 307 $35,039

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents.
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W.P. CAREY & CO, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Business

W. P. Carey provides long-term financing via sale-leaseback and build-to-suit transactions for companies worldwide and manages a global investment portfolio. We
invest primarily in cornmercial properties domestically and internationaily that are generally triple-net leased to single corporate tenants, which requires each tenant to
pay substantially all of the costs associated with operating and maintaining the property. We also eamn revenue as the advisor to pubkicly-owned, non-listed CPA®
REITs and invest in similar properties. At December 31, 2011, we were the advisor to the following CPA® REITs: CPA®:15, CPA®:16 — Global and CPA®:17 ~
Global, and we were the advisor to CPA®;14 until the CPA®:14/16 Merger (Note 3). We are also the advisor to CWI, which invests in fodging and lodging-related
properties. At December 31, 2011, we owned and/or managed more than 980 properties domestically and internationally. Our owned portfelio was comprised of our
full or partial ownership interest in 157 properties, substantiaily all of which were net leased to 73 tenants, and totaled approximately 13 million square feet (on a pro
rata basis) with an occupancy rate of approximately 93%. In addition, through our Carey Storage and Livho subsidiaries, we had inferests in 21 self-storage properties
and a hotel property, respectively, for an aggregate of approximately 0.8 million square feet {on a pro rata basis) at December 31, 2011,

Primary Business Segments

Tnvestment Management — We structure and negotiate investments and debt placement teansactions for the REITS, for which we eam stricturing revenue, amd manage
their portfolios of real estate investments, for which we eam asset-based management and performance revenue. We ¢arn asset-based management and performance
revenue from the REITs based on the value of their assets related to real estate, lodging, and seif-storage under management. As funds available to the REITs are
invested, the asset base from which we earn revenue increases. In addition, we also receive a percentage of distributions of available cash from the operating
partnerships of CPA®:17 — Global and CW1, as well as from the operating partnership of CPA®:16 — Global after the CPA®:14/16 Merger. We may also earn incentive
and disposition revenue and receive other compensation in connection with providing liquidity alternatives to the REIT shareholders.

Real Estate Ownership — We own and invest in commercial properties in the U.8. and the Eurapean Union that are then leased o companies, primarily on a tripie-net
lease basis. We may also invest in other properties if opportunities arise. Effective as of January 1, 2011, we include our equity investments in the REITs in our Real
Estate Ownership segment. The equily income or loss from the REITs that is now included in our Real Estate Ownership segment represents our proportionate share of
the revenue less expenses of the net-leased properties held by the REITs. This treatment is consistent with that of our directly-owned properties.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consafidation

The consolidated financial statements reflect atl of our accounts, including those of our majority-owned and/or conteolled subsidiaries. The portion of equity in 2
subsidiary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to us is presented as noncontrolling interests. All significant intercompany accounts and {ransactions have been
climinated.

We have investments in {enancy-in-common interests in various domestic and international properties. Consolidatien of these investments is not required as they do not
qualify as VIEs and do not meet the control requirement required for consolidation. Accordingly, we account for these investments using the equity method of
accounting. We use the equity method of accounting because the shared decision-making involved in a terancy-in-common interest investment creates an opportunity
for us 1o have significant influence on the operating and financial decistons of these investments and thereby creates some responsibility by us for a return on our
investment. Additionally, we own interests in single-tenant net leased properties Jeased to corporations through noncontroiling interests in partnerships and limited
Habiiity companies that we do not control but over which we exercise significant influence. We account for these investments under the equity method of accounting.
At times the carrying value of our eguily investments may fall beiow zero for certain investrents. We intend to fund our share of the ventures’ future operating deficits
should the need arise. However, we have no legal obligation to pay for any of the linbilities of such ventures nor do we have any fegal obligation to fund operating
deficits.

We formed CWI in March 2008 for the purpose of acquiring interests in lodging and lodging-related properties. fn Aprif 2010, CWI filed a registration statement with
the SEC to sell up to $1.0 billion of its common stock in an initial public offering plus up to an additional $237.5 million of its common stoek uader a dividend
reinvestment plan. This registration statement was declared effective

W. P. Carey 2011 10-K — 66

http://ir. wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html 6/21/2012







Document Contents Page 68 of 128

by the SEC in September 2010. Through December 31, 2010, the financial statements of CWIE, which had no significant assets, liabilities or operations, were included
in our consoiidated financial statements, as we owned all of CWI's outstanding common stock. Beginning in 2011, we have accounted for our interest in CW¥ under
the equity method of accounting because, as the advisor, we do not exert control over, but we have the ability o exercise significant influence on, CW1

Out-pf-Period Adjustment

During the fourth quarter of 2011, we identified an error in the consolidated financial statements related to prior years, The error relates to the misapplicatien of
accounting guidance retated to the modifications of certain leases. We concluded this adjustment, with 2 net impact of $0.2 million on our statement of operations for
the fourth quarter of 2011, was not material to our results for the prior year periods or to the period of adjustment. Accordingly, this cumulative change was recorded in
the consolidated financial statements in the fourth quarter of 2011 as an out-af-period adjustment as fotlows: a reduction to Net investment in direct financing leases of
$17.6 millien and an increase In net Operating real estate of $17.9 million on the consolidated balance sheet; and an increase in Lease revenues of $0.9 miltion, a
reduction of Impairmend charges of $1.6 million, and an increase in Depreciation expense of 32.2 million on the consolidated statement of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financia statements in conformity with GAAP reguires management to make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts and the
disclosure of contingent amounts in our consolidated financial stalements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications and Revisions

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to confarm to the current year presentation. The consolidated financial statements included in this Report have been
retrospectively adjusted o reflect the disposition (or planned disposition) of certain properties as discontinued operations fer all periods presented.

Purchase Price Allocation

In accordance with the guidance for business combinations, we determine whether a transaction or other event is a business combination, which requires that the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business. Each business combination ts then accounted for by applying the acquisition method. If the assets acquired are
not a business, we account for the transaction or other event as an asset acquisition. Under both methods, we recognize the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquired entity, as wetl as recognizing and measuring goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase. However, we
immediately expense acquisition-related costs and fees associated with business combinations.

When we acquire properiies accounted for as operating leases, we allocate the purchase costs to the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired based on their
estimated fair values. We determine the value of the tangible assets, consisting of land and buildings, as if vacant, and record intangible assets, including the above-
market and below-market value of leases, the value of in-place leases and the value of tenant relationships, at their refative estimated fair values. See Real Estate
Leased to Others and Depreciation below for a discussion of our significant accounting policies related to tangible assets. We include the value of below-market leases
in Aceounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.

We record above-market and below-market Jease values for owned properties based on the present value {using an interest rate reflecting the risks associated with the
leases acquired) of the difference beiween (i) the contractual amounts & be paid pursuant to the leases negotiated and in place at the time of acquisition of the
propenties and (ii) our estimate of fair market lease rates for the property of equivalant property, both of which are measured over a period equal to the estimated
market lease ferm. We amortize the capitalized above-market lease vatue as a reduction of rental income over the estimated market lease term, We amortize the
capitajized below-market tease value as an increase to rental income over the initial term and any fixed rate renewal periods in the respective leases.

We allocate the total amount of other intangibles to in-place lease vatues and tenant relationship intangible values based on our evaluation of the specific characteristics
of each tenant’s lease and our averall relationship with each tenant. The characteristics we consider in allecating these values include estimated market rent, the nature
and extent of the existing relationship with the tenant, the expectation of lease renewals, estimated carrying costs of the property if vacant and estimated costs fo
execute a new lease, among other factors. We determine these values using our estimates or by relying in part upon third-party appraisals. We amostize the capitalized
value of in-place Jease intangibles o expense over the remaining initial term of each lease. We amortize the capitalized value of tenani relationships to expense over
the initial and expected renewal terms of the lease. No amortization period for intangibles will exceed the remaining depreciable life of the building.
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If a lease is terminated, we charge the unamortized portion of above-market and below-market lease values to lease revenue, and in-place lease and tenant relationship
values to amortization expenses.

Operating Real Estate

We carry land and buildings and personal property at cost kess accurmubated depreciation. We capitalize improvements, while we expense replacements, maintenance
and repairs that do not improve or exiend the lives of the respective assets as incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivelents

We consider all short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to cash and have a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be
cash equivalents. Hems classified as cash equivalents include cornmercial paper and meney-market funds, Our cash and cash equivalents are held in the custody of
several financial institutions, and these balances, at times, exceed federally insurable limits. We seek to mitigate this risk by depositing funds only with major financiaj
imstitutions.

ther Assets and Liabilities

We include prepaid expenses, deferved rental income, tenant receivables, deferred charges, escrow balances held by lenders, restricted cash balances, marketable
securities, derivative asseis and corporate fixed assets in Other assets. We include derivative instruments; miscellaneous amounts held on behalf of tenants; and
deferred revenue, inciuding unamortized below-market rent intangibles in Other liabilities. Deferred charges are costs incurred in connection with mortgage financings
and refinancings that are amartized over the terms of the mortgages and included in Interest expense in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred rental income is
the aggregate cumulative difference for operating leases between scheduled rents that vary during the lease term, and rend recognized on a siraight-line basis.
Marketable securitics are classified as available-for-sale securities and reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses on these securities reported as a
cormponent of Gther comprehensive income until realized,

Real Estate Leased to (hthars

‘We lease real estate to others primarily on a triple-net leased basis, whereby the tenant is generally responsible for all operating expenses relating to the property,
including property taxes, insurance, maintenance, repairs, renewals and improvements, We charge expenditures for maintenance and repairs, including routine
betterments, to operations as incurred. We capitalize significant renovations that increase the useful life of the properties. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, although we are legally obkigated for payment pursuant to our lease agreements with our lenants, lessees were responsible for the direct payment to the
taxing authorities of reai estate taxes of approximately $6.4 miltion, $7.7 million and $8.8 million, respectively,

We diversify our real estate investments among various corporate tenants engaged in different industries, by property type and by geographic area (Note 9).
Substantially all of cur leases provide for either scheduled rent increases, periodic rent adjustments based on formulas indexed to changes in the CP1 or similar indices
or percentage rents. CPl-based adjustments are contingent on future events and are therefore not included in straight-line rent calculations, We recognize rents from
percentage rents as reported by the lessees, which is after the level of sales requiring a rental payment to us is reached. Percentage remts were insignificant for the
periods presented.

We account for leases as operating or direct financing leases, as described below:

Cperating leases — We record real estate at cost less accumutated depreciation; we recognize future minimum rental revenue on a straight-line basis ever the term of
the related leases and charge expenses (including depreciation) to operatiens as incurred (Note 4).

Direct financing method — We record leases accounted for under the direct financing method at their net investment (Note 5). We defer and amortize unearned income
to income over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on our net investment in the fease,

On an ongoing basis, we assess our ability o coliect rent and other tenant-based receivables and determine an appropriate allowance for uncoliected amounts, Because
we have a limited number of lessees (20 lessees represented 78% of lease revenues during 2011}, we believe that it is necessary to evajuate the collectability of these
receivables based on the facts and circumstances of each situation rather than solely using statistical methods. Therefore, in recognizing our provision for uncoilected
renss and other tenant receivables,
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we evaluate actual past due amounts and make subjective judgments as to the collectability of those amounts based on factors including, but not limited to, our
knowledge of a lessee’s circumstances, the age of the receivables, the tenant’s credit profile and prior experience with the tenant. Even if a lessee has been making
payments, we may reserve for the entire receivable amount if we believe there has been significant or conlinuing deterioration in the lessee’s ability to meet its lease
obligations,

Revenue Recognition

We eam structuring revenue and asset management revenue in connection with providing services to the REITs. We eam structuring revenue for services we provide in
connection with the analysis, negotiation and structuring of transactions, including acquisitions and dispositions and the placement of mortgage financing obtained by
the REITs. Asset management revenue consists of property management, teasing and advisory revenue. Receipt of the incentive revenue poriion of the asset
management revenue or performance revenue, however, is subordinated to the achievement of specified cumulative return requirements by the shareholders of the
REITs. At our option, the performance revenue may be collected in cash ar shares of the REIT (Note 3). In addition, we earn subordinated incentive and disposition
revenue related to the disposition of properties. We may 4lso earn terminaiion revenue in connection with the termination of the advisory agreements for the REITs.

We recopnize all revenue as earmned. We earn structuring revenue upon the consummation of a transaction and asset management revenue when services are performed.
We recognize revenue subject to subordination only when the performance criteria of the REIT is achieved and contractual limitations are not exceeded.

We earn subordinated disposition and incentive revenue afier sharcholders have received their initial investment plus a specified preferred return. We earn termination
revenue when a liquidity event is consummated.

We are also reimbursed for certain costs incurred in providing services, including breker-dealer commissions paid on behalf of the REITs, marketing costs and the cost
of personnel provided for the administration of the REITs. We record reimbursement income as the expenses are incurred, subject to limitations on 2 RETT’s ability to
incur offering costs.

We eamned wholesaling revenue of $0.15 per share sold in connection with CPA® 17 - Global’s initial public offering through its termination on April 7, 2011. In
addition, as discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, we earn 2 dealer manager fee of up to $0.35 per share sold in connection with CPA® 17 -
Global's foliow-on offering commencing April 7, 2011 and $0.3C per share sold in connection with CWIs initial offering. We re-allow all or a portion of the dealer
manager fees 1o selected dealers in the offerings. Dealer manager fees that are not re-allowed are classified as wholesaling revenue. Wholesaling revenue eamed is
generaily offset by underwsiting costs incurred in connection with the offerings, which are included in General and administeative expenses.

Depreciation

We compute depreciation of building and related improvements using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the properties {generally 40 years) and
farniture, fixtures and equipment (generatly up to seven years). We compute depreciation of tenant improvements using the straight-ling method over the lesser of the
remaining term of the leass or the estimated useful life.

Impairments

We periodically assess whether there are any indicators that the vatue of our long-tived assets, including goodwill, may be impaired or that their carrying value may not
be recoverable. These impairment indicators include, but are not limited to, the vacancy of a property that is not subject to a lease; a lease default by a tenant that is
experiencing financial difficulty; the termination of a lease by a tenant; or the rejection of a [ease in a bankruptcy proceeding. We may incur impairment charges on
tong-lived assets, including real estate, direct financing leases, assets held for sale and equity investments in real estate. We may also incur impairment charges on
markeiable securities and goodwill. Qur policies for evaluating whether these agsets are impaired are presented below.

Real Estate

For real estate assets in which an impairment indicator is identified, we follow a two-step process to determine whether an asset is impaired and to determine the
amount of the charge. First, we compare the carrying value of the property to the future net undiscounted cash flow that we expect the property will generate, including
any estimated proceeds from the eventual sale of the property. The undiscounted cash flow analysis requires us to make our best estimate of market rents, residual
values and holding periods. Depending on the assumptions made and estimates used, the future cash flow projected in the evaluation of long-lived assets can vary
within a range of outcomes, We consider the likelihood of possible outcotnes in determining the best possible estimate of future cash flows. If the future net
undiscounted cash flow of the property is less than the carrying value, the property is considered to be impaired. We then measure the loss as the excess of the carrying
value of the property over its estimated fair value.

W. P. Carey 2011 10-K — 6%

http://ir. wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html 6/21/2012







Document Contents Page 71 of 128

Direct Financing Leases

We review our direct financing leases at least annually to determine whether there has been an other-than-temporary decline in the current estimate of residual value of
the properly. The residual vahse is our estimate of what we could realize upon the sale of the property at the end of the lease term, based on market information. If this
review indicates that a decline in residual value has occurred that is other-than-temporary, we recognize an impairment charge and revise the accounting for the direct
financing lease to reflect a portion of the future cash flow from the lessee as a return of principal rather than as revenue.

When we enter into a contract to sell the real estate assets that are recorded as direet financing leases, we evaluate whether we believe it is probable that the disposition
wiil occur. If we determine that the disposition is probable and therefore the asset’s holding period is reduced, we record an atlowance for credit losses to reflect the
change in the estimate of the undiscounted future renis. Accordingly, the net investment balance is written down to fair value.

Assets Held for Sale

We classify real estate assets that are accounied for as operating leases as held for sale when we have entered inte a contract te sell the property, afl material due
diligence requirements have been satisfied and we believe it 13 probable that the dispesition will occur within one year, When we classify an asset as held for sale, we
calculate its estimated fair value as the expected sale price, less expected selling costs. We then compare the asset’s estimated fair value to its carrying vaiue, and if the
estimated fair value is less than the property’s carrying value, we reduce the carrying value {o the estimated fair value. We will continue to review the initial
impairment for subsequent changes in the estimated fair value, and may recognize an additional impairment charge if warranted.

If circumstances arise that we previously considered unlikely and, as a result, we decide not 1o sell a property previously classified as held for sale, we reclassify the
preperty s held and used. We measure and record a property that is reclassified as held and used at the lower of (i) its carrying amsount before the property was
ciassified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation expense that would have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used, or
{it) the estimated fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to selk,

Equity Investments in Real Estate and the REITs

We evaluate our equity investments in real estate and in the REITs on a pericdic basis to determine if there are any indicators that the value of our equity investment
may be impaired and whether or not that impairment is other-than-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, we measure the charge as the excess of the
carrying velue of our investmeni over its estimated fair value. For equity investments in real estate, we calculate estimated fair value by multiplying the estimated fair
value of the underlying venture's net assets by our ownership interest percentage. For our investments in the REITs, we calculate the estimated fair value of our
investment using the most recently published NAV of each REIT.

Muarketable Securities

We evaluate our marketable securities for impairment if a decline in estimated fair value below cost basis is considered other-than-temporary. In: determining whether
the decline is other-than-temporary, we consider the underlying cause of the decline in value, the estimated recovery period, the severity and duration of the decline, as
weil as whether we plan to sell the security or will more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its cost basis. If we determine that the decline
is other-than-temporary, we record an impairment charge 1o reduce our cast basts to the estimated fair value of the security. In accordance with current accounting
guidance, the credit component of an other-than-temporary (mpaisment is recognized in eamings white the non-credit component is recognized in Other comprehensive
INCcomeE.

Goodwill

We evaluate goodwil recorded by our Investment Management segment for possible impairment at least annually using a two-step process. To identify any
impairment, we first compare the estimated fair value of cur Investment Management segment with its carrying amount, including goodwill. We calculate the
estimated fair value of the Invesiment Management segment by applying a multiple, based on comparable companies, to earnings. I the fair vaiue of the Investment
Management segment exceeds its carrying amouns, we do not consider goodwill to be impaired and no further analysis is required. If the carrying amount of the
investment Management segment exceeds its estimated fair valye, we then perform the second step to measure the amount of the impairment charge.
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For the second step, we determine the impairment charge by comparing the implied fair value of the goodwill with its canrying amount and record an impairment
charge equal to the excess of the carrying amount over the implied fair value. We determine the implied fair value of the goodwill by allocating the estimated fair value
of the Investment Management segment to its assets and liabilities. The excess of the estimated fair value of the Investment Management segment over the amounts
assigned to s assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the goodwilt.

Assets Held for Sale

We classify assets that are accounted for as operating leases as held for sale when we have entered into a contract to self the property, ail material due diligence
requirements have been satisfied and we believe it is probable that the disposition will occur within one year. Assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of carrying
value or estimated fair value, which is generally calculated as the expected sale price, less expected selling costs. The results of operations and the related gain or loss
on sale of properties that heve been soid or that are classified as held for sale are included in discontinued operations {Note 16).

if circumstances arise that we previously considered uniikely and, as a result, we decide not to sell a property previously classified as held for sale, we reclassify the
property as held and used. We measure and record a property that is reclassified as held and used at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the property was
classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation expense that would have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used or
(i) the estimated fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

We recognize gains and losses on the sale of properties when, among other criteria we ne longer have continuing involvement, the parties are bound by the terms of the
contract, all consideration has been exchanged and all conditions precedent to closing have been performed. At the time the sale is consummated, a gain or loss is
recognized as the difference between the sale price, less any selling costs, and the carrying value of the property.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have granted resiricted shares, stock options, RSUs and PSUs to certain employees and independent directors. Grants were awarded in the name of the recipient
subject {o certain restrictions of transferability and a risk of forfeiture. The forfeiture provisions on the awards generally expire annuatly, over their respective vesting
periods. Stock-based compensation expense for all equity-classified stock-based compensation awards is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with current accounting guidance for share-based payments. We recogrize these compensation costs for only those shares expected to vest on a straight-line or graded-
vesting basis, as appropriate, over the reguisite service period of the award, We include stock-based compensation within the listed shares caption of equity.

Faoreign Currency
Translation

We have interests in real estate investments in the European Union for which the functional currency is the Euro, We perform the translation from the Euro to the U.5.
dollar for assets and Habilities using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using a weighted average exchange
rae during the period. We report the gains and losses resulting from such translation as a component of other comprehensive income in equity. At December 31, 2011
and 2010, the cumujative foreign currency translation adjustment losses were $3.3 million and $1.9 millicn, respectively.

Transaction Gains or Losses

Foreign currency transactions may produce receivables or payables that ase fixed in terms of the amount of foreign cureency that will be received or paid. A change in
the exchange rates between the functional currency and the currency in whieh a transaction is denominated increases or decreases the expected amount of funetional
currency cash flows upon settlement of that transaction. That increase or decrease in the expected functionat currency cash flows is an unreatized foreign currency
transaction gain or loss that generally will be included in the determination of net income for the period in which the exchange rate changes, Likewise, 2 iransaction
gain or loss (measured from the transaction date or the most recent intervening balance sheet date, whichever is later), realized upon setttement of a foreign currency
transaction generally will be included in net income for the periad in which the transaction is settled, Foreign currency transactions that are (i) designated as, and are
effective as, economic hedges of a net
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investment and (ii) inter-company foreign currency transactions that are of a iong-term nature (that is, settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable futuse),
when the entities to the transactions are consolidated or accounted for by the equity method in our financial staternents, are not included in determining net income but
are accounted for in the same manner as foreign currency translation adjustments and reported as a component of other comprehensive income in equity.

Fereign currency intercompany transactions that are scheduled for settlement, consisting primarily of accrued interest and the translation to the reporting curency of
subordinated intercompany debt with scheduled principal payments, are included in the determination of net income. We recognized net unreatized gains (fosses) of
$(0.1) million, ${0.3) million and $0.2 million from such transactions for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2005, we recognized net realized (losses) gains of $0.4 million, $(0.1) million and fess than 80.1 million, respectively, on foreign
currency transactions in connection with the transfer of cash from foreign eperations of subsidiaries to the parent company.

Derivative Instriements

We measure derivative instruments at fair value and record them as assets or Habilities, depending on our rights or obligations under the applicable derivative contract.
Derivatives that are not designated as hedges must be adjusted to fair value through earnings. If a derivative is designated as a hedge, depending on the nature of the
hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative will either be offset against the change in fair value of the hedged asset, Hability, or firm comsmitment through
earnings, or recognized in other comprehensive income untit the hedged item is recognized in eamings. For cash flow hedges, any ineffective portion of a derivative’s
change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.

Income Taxes

We have clected to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, Deferred income taxes are recorded for the corporate subsidiaries based on
earnings reporied. The provision for income taxes differs from the amounis currently payable because of temporary differences in the recognition of certain income and
expense items for financial reporting and tax reporting purposes. Income taxes are computed under the asset and liability method. The asset and liability method
requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between tax bases and financial bases of
assets and liahilities (Note 15).

Real Estate Ownership Operations

Qur real estate operations are conducted through subsidiaries that are real estate investment trusts, As such, our real estate operations are generally not subject to
federal tax, and accordingly, no provision has been made for U.S. federal income taxes in the consolidated financial statements for these operations, These operations
are subject to certain state, local and forsign taxes, as applicable.

We hold our real estate assets under a subsidiary, Carey REIT 11, Ine. (“Carey REIT H™). Carey REIT I has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust under
the Internal Revenue Code. We believe we have operated, and we intend to continue to operate, in a manner that altows Carey REIT 11 to continue to qualify as a real
estate investment trust. Under the real estate investment trust operating structure, Carey REIT 11 is permitted to deduct distributions paid to our shareholders and
generally will not be required to pay U.5. federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision has been made for U.S. federal incoms taxes in the consolidated financial
statements reated to Carey REIT II.

Investment Management Operations

We conduct our investment management operations primarify through taxable subsidiaries. These operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign taxes, as
applicable. Our finarcial staternents are prepared on a consolidated basis including these taxable subsidiaries and include a provision for current and deferred taxes on
these operations.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders, as adjusted for unallocated sarnings attributable to the unvested RSUs
by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects potentially dilwtive securities (options,
restricted shares and RSUs) using the treasury stock method, except when the effect woutd be anti-ditutive,
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Future Accoumting Requirements
The following Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs™) promuigated by FASB are applicable to us in future reports, as indicated:

ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs — In May 2011, the FASB issued an
update to ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements. The amendments in the update explain how to measure fair value and do not require additional fair value
measurements, nor are they intended to establish valuation standards or affect valuation practices outside of financial reporting, These new amendments wili impact the
level of information we provide, particulasly for tevel 3 fair value measurements and the measurement’s sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs, our use of &
nonfinancial asset in a way that differs from that asset’s highest and best use, and the categorization by leve! of the fair value hierarchy for items that are not measured
at fair value in the balance sheet but for which the fair value is required to be disclosed. These amendments are expected to impact the form of our disclosures only, are
applicable to us prospectively and are effective for our interim and annuel periods beginning in 2032,

ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2011-12, Presentation of Comprehensive Income — In June and December 201 1, the FASB issued updates to ASC 220, Comprehensive
Income. The amendiments in the initial update change the reporting options applicable to the presentation of ether comprehensive income and its components in the
financial statements. The initia} update eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in
stockholders® equity. Additionally, the initial update requires the consecutive presentation of the statement of net income and other comprehensive income, Finally, the
initial update required an entity to present reclassification adjustments on the face of the financial statements from other comprehensive income to net income;
however, the update issued in December 2011 tabled this requirement for further deliberation. These amendments impact the form of our disclosures only, are
applicable to us retrospectively and are effective for our interim and annual periods beginning in 2012,

ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment — In September 2011, the FASB issved an update to ASC 350, Intangibizs — Goodwill and Other. The objective of
this ASU is to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment. The amendsments in the ASU permit an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether
it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is fess than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step
goodwill impairment test described in topic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. Previous guidance under
topic 350 required an entity 1o test goodwill for impairment, on at jeast an annual basis, by corparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its canying amount,
including goodwill (step one). If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then the second step of the test must be performed to measure the
amount of the impairment loss, if any. Under the amendments in this ASU, an entity is not required 1o calculate the fair value of a reporting unit unless the entity
determines that it is more lkely than not that its fair value is Jess than its carrying amount. We are currently assessing the potential impact that the adoption of the new
guidance will have on our financial position and results of operations.

ASU 2011-10, Derscognition of in Substance Real Estate—a Scope Clarification -— In December 2011, the FASB issued an update to clarify that when a parent
{reporting eatity) ceases to have a controliing financial interest (as described in ASC subtopic 810-10, Conselidarion) in a subsidiary that is in substance real estate as a
result of default on the subsidiary’s nonrecourse debt, the reporting entity should apply the guidance in subtopic 360-20, Property, Plant and Equipment, to determine
whether it should derecognize the in substance real estate. Generally, a reporting entity would not satisfy the requirements to derecognize the in substance real estate
before the Jegal transfer of the reat estate to the lender and the extinguishment of the refated nonrecourse indebtedness. Under this new guidance, even if the reporting
entity ceases 1o have s controiling financial interest under subtopic 810-10, the reporting entity would continue to include the real estate, debt, and the results of the
subsidiary’s operations in its consolidated financial statements until legal title to the real estate is transferred to legally satisfy the debt. This amendment is appiicabie to
us prospectively for deconsolidation events eccurring after June 15, 2012 and will impact the timing in which we recognize the impact of such transactions, which may
be material, within our results of operations.

ASU 2011-11, Disclosures about Qffsetting Assets and Liabilities — In December 2011, the FASE issued an update to ASC 210, Balance Sheet, which enhances
current disclosures about financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either offset on the statement of financial position or subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are offset on the statement of finaneial position. Entities are required to provide both net and
gross information for these assets and liabilities in order to facilitate comparability between financial statements prepared on the basis of U.S. GAAP and financial
statements prepared on the basis of [FRS. This standard will be effective for our fiscal quarter beginning January 1, 2014 with retrospective application required. We
do not expect the adoption will have a material impact on our statement of financial position.
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Note 3. Agreements and Transactions with Related Partles
Advisory Agreements with the REITs

‘We have advisory agreements with each of the REITs pursuant to which we eam certain fees or are entitled to receive distributions of cash flow. In: connection with
CPA®:16 - Global’s internal reorganization on May 2, 2011 following the CPA®;14/16 Merger, we entered inte an amended and restated advisery agreement with
CPA®:16 ~ Global (see “CPA®:16 - Global UPREIT Reorganization” below). The CPA® REIT advisory agreements, which were scheduled to expire on September 30,
2011, were extended twice for three-month periods since that date and are currently scheduled to expire on March 31, 2012 unless otherwise extended. The CW!
advisory agreement, which was also scheduled 1o expire on September 30, 2011, was renewed for an additional vear pursuant to its terms, effective as of October i,
2011, The foliowing table presenis a summary of revenue earned and/or cash received from the REITs in connection with providing services as the advisor to the
REITs {in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2950 009

&3 0680851 76,2461

Assetmatagement tevenie i
Reimbursed costs from affi

Tncentive; rérminalion and suliordirated disposition revents’:
Structuring revenue
Whilesiling 7evani
Distributions of available cash
Dieferred revenus samsdi

263844 5196358  $157279

Asset Management Revenue

We earn asset management revenue from each REIT, which is based on average invested assets and is calculated according to the advisory agreement for each REIT.
For CPA®:16 — Global prior to the CPA®:14/16 Merger and for CPA®: 15, this revenue generally totaled 1% per annum, with a portion of this revenue, or 0.5%,
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance criteria. For CPA®:16 — Global subsequent to the CPA®;14/16 Merger, we earn asset management revenue of
0.5% of average invested assets. For CPA®:17 - Global, we earn asset management revenue ranging from 0.5% of average market value for long-term net leases and
certain other types of real estate investments up to 1.75% of average equity value for certain types of securities. For CWI, we eamn assef management revenue of 0.5%
of the average market value of lodging-related investmenis. We do not earn performance revenue from CPA®:17 — Global, CWI and, subsequent to the CPA®E4/16
Merger, from CPA®:16 ~ Global.

Under the terms of the advisory agreements, we may elect to receive cash or shares of stock for any revenue due from each REIT. In both 2011 and 2010, we elected to
receive alf asset management revenue in cash, with the exception of the assei management revenue received from CPA®;17 — Global and CPA®;16 — Global subsequent
to the CPA%:14/16 Merger, which we elected to receive in shares, For both 2011 and 2010, we also elected to receive performance revenue from CPA®:16 — Global
prior to the CPA®:14/16 Merger in shares, while for CPA®:14 prior to CPA®:14/16 Merger and CPA®: 15 we ¢lected to receive 80% of all performance ravenue in
shares, with the remaining 20% payable in cash.

Reimbursed Costs from Affiliates and Wholesaling Revenue

The REITs reimburse us for certain costs, primarily broker-dealer commissions paid on behalf of the REITs and marketing and personnei costs. Under the terms of a
sales agency agreement between our wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary and CPA®: 17 — Global, we earn a selling commission of up to 30.65 per share sold and a
dealer manager fee of up to $0.35 per share sold. We re-allow all or a portion of the selling commissions to selected dealers participating in CPA®:17 ~ Global’s
offering and may re-allow up to the full selected dealer revenue to selected dealers. In addition, our wholly-owned broker-dealer subsidiary entered imto a dealer
manages agreement with CWI, whereby we receive a selling commission of up to $0,70 per share sold and a dealer manager fee of up to $0.30 per share sold, a portion
of which may be re-allowed to the selected broker dealers. Dealer manager fees that are not re-allowed are classified as wholesaling revenue. Total underwriting
compensation earned in connection with CPA®:17 - Global and CWI's offerings, including selling commissions, selected dealer revenue, wholesaling revenue and
reimbursements made by us to selected dealers, cannot exceed the limitations prescribed by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. The limit on underwriting
compensation is currently 10% of gross offering proceeds. We may also be reimbursed for reasonable bona fide due diligence expenses ingurred which are supported
by a detailed and itemized invoice. Such reimbursements are subject to the limitations on organization and offering expenses described above.
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Pursuant to our advisory agreement with CWI, upox reaching the minimum offering amount of $10.0 miltion on March 3, 2011, CWI became obligated to reimburse us
for aif organization and a portion of offering costs incurred in connection with its offering, up to a maximum amount {excluding selling commissions and the dealer
manager fee) of 2% of the gross proceeds of its offering and distribution reinvestment plan, Through December 31, 2011, we have incurred organization and offering
costs on behalf of CWI of approximately $5.1 million. However, at December 31, 2011, CWT was only obligated to reimburse us $0.9 miltion of these costs because of
the 2% limitation described above, and no such costs had been reimbursed as of that date because CW1 had no available cash.

Incentive, Termination and Subordinated Disposition Revenue

We earn revenue related to the disposition of properties by the REITs, subject to subordination provisions, which will only be recognized as the relevant conditions are
met. Such revenue may include subordinated disposition revenue of no more than 3% of the value of any assets sold, payable only after sharebolders have received
back their initial investment plus a specified preferred retum, and subordinated incentive revenue of 15% of the net cash proceeds distributable to sharehoiders from the
disposition of properties, after recoupment by shareholders of their initial investment plus a specified preferred return. 'We may also, in connection with the {ermination
of the advisory agreements for the REITs, be entitled to a termination payment based on the amount by which the fair value of a REITs” properties, less indebtedness,
exceeds investors” capital plus a specified preferred return,

We waived any acquisition fees pavable by CPA®:16 - Global under its advisory agreement with us in respect of the properties it acquired in the CPA®:14/16 Merger
and also waived any disposition fees that may subsequently be payable by CPA®:16 — Global upon a sale of such assets. As the advisor to CPA®: 14, we earned
acquisition fees related to those properties when they were acquired by CPA®:14 and disposition fees on those properties to CPA®:16 - Global by CPA® 14 in the
CPA®:14/16 Merger and, as a result, we and CPA®;16 - Global agreed that we should not receive fees upon the acquisition or disposition of the same propesties by
CPA®:16 - Global. As a condition of the Proposed Merger, we have agreed to waive our subordinated disposttion and termination fees from CPA®:15.

Structuring Revenue

Under the ferms of the advisory agreements, we earn revenue in connection with structuring and negotiating investments and related firancing for the REITs, which we
call acquisition revenue. We may receive acquisition revenue of up to an average of 4.5% of the total cost of all investments made by each CPA® REIT. A portion of
this revenue (generally 2.5%) is paid when the transaction is completed, while the remainder (generally 2%) is payable in annual instzllments ranging from three to
eight years, provided the relevant CPA® REIT meets its performance criterion. For certain types of nen-long term net lease imvestments acquired on behatf of CPA®: 17
- Global, initial acquisition revenue may range from (% to 1.75% of the equity invested plus the related acquisition revenue, with no deferred acquisition revenue
being earned. For CW1, we eam initial acquisition revenue of 2.5% of the total investment cost of the properties acquired and loans originated by us not to exceed 6%
of the aggregate contract purchase price of all investments and foans with no deferred acquisition revenue being earned. We may also be entitled, subject to the REIT
board approval, fo fees for structuring loan refinancing of up te 1% of the principal amount. This ioan refinancing revenue, together with the acquisition revenue, is
referred 10 as structuring revenue.

Unpaid transaction fees, including acerued interest, are included in Due from affiliates in the consolidated financial statements. Unpaid transaction fees bear interest at
annaual rates ranging from 5% 10 7%. The following tables present the amount of unpaid transaction fees and interest earned on these fees (in thousands):

At E}ccernherl’ol, 2511 At Decembor 3_1_ 2010
Unjidid deferred acquisition fees: gD U 8 31419

Years Ended December 31,

Intérgst earned on vnpaid deferrsd acquisition fees

Distributions of Available Cash and Deferved Revenue Earned

We receive distributions of our proportionate share of earnings up to 10% of availabte cash from CPA®;17 — Global, CWI, and after the UPREIT reorganization,
CPA®:16 ~ Global, as defined in the respective advisory agreements, from their operating partnerships. As discussed under “CPA®:16 ~ Global UPREIT
Reorganization” below, we acquired the Special Member Interest in CPA%:16 - Global's operating partnership for 30.3 million during the second quarter of 2031 1. We
recorded the Special Member Interest at its fair value of $28.3 million, which is net of approximately $6.0 million refated to our ownership interest in CPA®:16
Global that was

W. P, Carey 2011 10-K —175

hitp://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html 6/21/2012







Document Contents Page 77 of 128

eliminated in our consolidated financial statement, to be amortized into carnings over the expected period of performance, Cash distributions of our proporticnate share
of earnings from the CPA®:16 - Global and CPA®:17 - Global operating partnerships as well as deferred revenue earned from our Special Member Interest in

CPA®: 16 — Global’s operating parinership are recorded as Income from equity investrneats in real estate and the REITs within the Irvestment Management segment.
We have not yet received any cash distributions of our proportionate share of eamings from CWI's operating partnership because CWI had no eamings through
December 31, 2011.

tieher Transactions with Affiliates
CPA%: 14716 Merger

On May 2, 2011, CPA®:14 merged with and into a subsidiaty of CPA®:16 — Global. In connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger, on May 2, 2011, we purchased the
remaining interests in three ventures from CPA®:14, in which we already had a partial ownership interest, for an aggregate purchase price of $31.8 million, plus the
assumption of $87.6 miflion of indebtedness (Note 4), The purchase price was based on the appraised values of the ventures’ underlying properties and debt.

In the CPA®:14/16 Merger, CPA®: 14 shareholders were entitled to receive $11.50 per share, which was equal to the estimated NAV of CPA®:14 as of September 30,
2016. For each share of CPA®: 14 slock owned, each CPA®: 14 shareholder received a $1.00 per share special cash dividend and a choice of either (i) $10.50 in cash or
(i) 1.1932 shares of CPA®:16 - Global. The merger consideration: of §954.5 million was paid by CPA®:16 — Global, including payment of $444.0 million to
liquidating sharehoiders and issuing 57,365,145 shares of common stock with a fair value of $510.5 million on the date of closing to shareholders of CPA®:14 in
exchange for 48,076,723 shares of CPA®;14 common stock. The $1.00 per share special cash distribution, totaling $90.4 million in the aggregate, was funded from the
proceeds of the CPA®:14 Asset Sales. In connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger, we agreed to purchase a sufficient number of shares of CPA®:16 - Global commen
stock from CPA®:16 — Global to enable it to pay the merger consideration if the cash on hand and avaitable to CPA®:14 and CPA®:10 — Global, including the proceeds
of the CPA%:14 Asset Sales and a new $320.0 million senior credit facility of CPA®:16 ~ Global, were not sufficient. Accordingly, we purchased 13,750,000 shares of
CPA®:16 - Global on May 2, 2011 for $121.0 million, which we funded, along with other obligations, with cash on hand and $121.4 milifon drawn on our then-
existing unsecured Hne of crediy

Upon consemimation of the CPA®:14/16 Merger, we earned revenues of $31.2 million in connection with the termination of the advisory agreemient with CPA®:14 and
$21.3 million of subordinated disposition revenues. We elected 1o receive our termination revenue in 2,717,138 shares of CPA®:14, which were exchanged into

3,242 {089 shares of CPA®:16 - Global in the CPA®:14/16 Merger. In addition, we received $11.1 million in cash as a result of the $1.00 per share special cash
distribution paid by CPA®:14 to its shareholders. Upon closing of the CPA®:14/16 Merger, we received 13,260,091 shares of common stock of CPA®:16 ~ Global in
respect of our shares of CPA®:14.

CAM waived any acquisition fees payable by CPA®:16 — Global under its advisory agreement with CAM in respect of the properties acquired in the CPA®:14/16
Merger and also waived any disposition fees that may subsequently be payable by CPA®:16 — Global upon a sale of such assets. As the advisor to CPA®:14, CAM
earned acquisition fees refated to those properties acquired by CPA®;14 and disposition fees on those properties upon the liquidation of CPA®:14 and, as a result, CAM
and CPA®:16 —~ Globat agreed that CAM should not receive fees upon the acquisition or disposition of the same properties by CPA®16 ~ Global.

CPAY 16 — Global UPREIT Reorganization

Immediately following the CPA®:14/16 Merger on May 2, 2011, CPA®:16 — Global completed an internal reorganization whereby CPA®:16 — Global formed an
UPREIT, which was approved by CPA®:16 — Global shareholders in connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger. In connection with the formation of the UPREIT,
CPA®:16 — Global contributed substantially ail of its assets and liabilifies to an operating partnership in exchange for a managing member interest and units of
membership interest in the operating partnership, which together represent a 99.985% capital interest of the Managing Member. Through Carey REIT 111, we acquired
a Special Member Interest of G.G15% in the operating partnership for $0.3 million, entitting us to receive certain profit allocations and distributions of cash.

As consideration for the Special Member Interest, we amended our advisory agreement with CPA®:16 — Global to give effect to this UPREIT reorganization and to
reflect a revised fee structure whereby (i) our asset management fees are prospectively reduced to 0.5% from 1.0% of the asset value of a property under management,
(ii} the former 15% subordinated incentive fee and termination fees have been eliminated and replaced by (iii} a 10% Special General Fartner Available Cash
Distribution and (iv) the 15% Final Distribution, each defined betow. The sum of the new 0.5% asset management fee and the Available Cash Distribution is expected
10 be lower than the original 1.0% asset management fee; accordingly, the Available Cash Distribution is contractualiy limited to 0.5% of
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the value of CPA®:16 — Global’s assets under management. However, the amount of afier-tax cash we receive pursuant to this revised structure is anticipated to be
greater than the amount we received under the previous arrangement. The fee structure related to initial acquisition fees, subordinated acquisition fees and subosdinated
disposition fees for CPA®:16 — Glebal remains unchanged.

As Special General Pariner, we are entitied to 10% of the operating partnership’s available cash (the “Available Cash Distribution™), which is defined as the operating
partnership’s cash generated from operations, excluding capital proceeds, as reduced by operating expenses and debt service, excluding prepayments and balioon
payments, We may eltect 10 receive our Available Cash Distribution in shares of CPA®:16 — Global’s comtmon stock. In the event of a capital transaction such as a sale,
exchange, disposition or refinancing of CPA®:16 — Global’s assets, we are also entitled to receive a Final Distribution equat to 15% of residual returns after giving
effect to a 100% return of the Managing Membet’s invested capital plus a 6% priority return.

We recorded the Special Member Interest as an equity investment at its fair value of $28.3 million and an equal amount of deferred revenues (Note 6), which is net of
approximately $6.0 miilion related 1o our cwnership interest of approximately 17.5% in CPA®: 16 — Global that was eliminated in our consolidated financial statements.
We will recognize the deferred revenue earned from our Special Member Interest in CPA®:16 - Global’s operating partnership inio eamnings on a straight-line basis
over the expected period of performance, which is currently estimated at three years based on the stated intended life of CPA®:16 — Global as described in its offering
documents, The amount of deferred revenue recognized during the year ended December 31, 2011 was 35,7 million, which is net of $0.6 million in amortization
associated with the basis differential generated by the Special Member Interest in CPA®:16 — (Global’s operating partnership and our underlying claim on the net assets
of CPA®:16 — Global, We determined the fair value of the Special Member Interest based upon a discounted cash flow model, which included assurnptions retated to
estimated future cash flows of CPA®:16 — Global and the estimated duration of the fee stream of three years. The equity investment is evaluated for impairment
congistent with the policy described in Note 2.

COther

We are the general partner in a limited partnership (which we consolidate for financial statement purposes) that leases our office space and participates in an agreement
with certain affiliates, including the REITS, for the purpose of leasing office space used for the administeation of our operations and the operations of our affiliates and
for sharing the associated costs. This limited partnership does not have any significant assets, liabilities or operations other than its inferest in the office lease. The
average estimated minimum lease payments for the office lease, inclusive of noncontrolling interests, at December 31, 2011 approximates $3.0 million annualiy
through 2016, The table below presents income from noncontrolling interest pariners related to reimbursements from these affiliates (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2008

Intor from monconirolling fterest panhers e TR

The following table presents deferred rent due to affiliates related to this limited partnership, which are included in Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
fiabilities in the consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

December 31,

Dreferred ient dus tooaftiliates

We own interests in entities ranging from 5% to 95%, as well as jointly-controlled tenancy-in-common interesis in properties, with the remaining interests generally
held by affiliates, and own common stock in each of the REITs, We consolidate certain of these investments and account for the remainder under the equity method of
accoumnting.

Cne of our directors and officers is the sole shareholder of Livho, a subsidiary that operates a hotel investment. We consolidate the accounts of Livho in our
consclidated financial statements because it is a VIE and we are its primary beneficiary,

A family member of one of our directors has an ownership interest in certain companies that own a noncontrolling interest in one of our French majority-owned
subsidiaries. This ownership interest is subject to substantially the same terms as all other ownership interests in the subsidiary companies.
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An officer swns a redeemable noncontrolling interest (Note 13) in W. P. Carey International LLC (“WPCI™), a subsidiary that structores net lease transactions on
behalf of the CPA® REITs outside of the 1.5, as well as certain related entities.

In February 2011, we loaned $90.0 million at an annual interest rate of 1.15% 10 CPA®:17 - Global, which was repaid on April 8, 2011. In May 2011, we loaned $4.0
million at an annual interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.5% to CWI, which was repaid on Jung 6, 2011. In Septernber 2011, we loaned $2.0 miition at an annual
interest rate equel to LIBOR ptug 0.9% to CWI, of which $1.0 miltion was repaid on September 13, 2011 and the remaining $1.0 million was repaid on October 6,
2011. All of these Joans were repaid by or before their respective maturity dates. In connection with these loans, we received interest income totaling $6.2 million
during the year ended December 31, 2011,

Note 4, Net Investments in Properties

Real Estate
Real estate, which consists of Jand and buildings leased to others, at cost, and which are subject to operating leases, is summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
) 2011 . . 201G _
G BETINASE S s BOTR660
534,999 448,932

{118,054y 2 (1081032,
$ 528428 $ 452,560

Luss’ Accimilated depreciation’ 77

Real Estate Acquired During 2011 — As discussed in Note 3, in connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger in May 2011, we purchased the remaining interests in ceriain
vendures, in which we already had a joint interest, from CPA®:14 ss part of the CPA®:14 Asset Sales. These three ventures, which lease properties to Checkfree,
Federal Express and Amylin, had an aggregate fair vatue of $174.8 miltion at the date of acquisition. Prior to this purchase, we had consolidated the Checkfree venture
and accounted for the Federal Express and Amylin ventures under the equity method. As part of the transaction, we assumed the related non-recourse morigages on the
Federal Express and Amylin ventures. These $wo morigages and the mortgage on the Checkfree venture had an aggregate fair value of $117.1 million at the date of
acguisition (Note 11), Amounts provided are the total amounis attributable to the venture properties and do not represent the proportionate share that we purchased,
Upon acquiring the remaining intetests in the ventures ieased to Federal Express and Amylin, we owned 100% of these ventures and accounted for these acquisitions
as step acquisitions utitizing the purchase method of accounting. Due to the changs in control of the ventures that occurred, and in accordance with ASC 810 involving
a step acquisition where control is obtained and there is a previously held equity interest, we recorded an aggregate gain of approximately $27.9 million related to the
difference between our respective carrying values and the fair vatues of our previously held interests on the acquisition date. Subsequent 1o our acquisition, we
consolidate ali of these wholly-owned ventures. The consolidation of these ventures resulted in an increase of $90.2 million and $40.8 million to Real estate, net and
net lease intangibles, respectively, in May 2011.

During 2011, we reclassified reat estate with a net carrying value of $17.9 million 1o Real estate in connection with an out-of-period adjustment (Note 2.

Real Estate Acquired During 2010 — In February 2010, we entered into & domestic investment that was deemed to be a renl estate asset acquisition at a total cost of
$47.6 million and capitalized acquisition-related costs of $0.1 million, We funded the investment with the escrowed proceeds of $36.1 million from a sale of property
in December 2009 in an exchange {ransaction under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code and $11.5 million from our line of credit.

In June 2010, a venture in which we and an affiliate hold 70% and 30% interests, respectively, and which we consolidate, entered into an investment in Spain for a total
cost of $27.2 million, inclusive of a noncentrolling interest of $8.4 million. We funded our share of the purchase price with proceeds from our prior line of credit. In
connection with this trensaction, which was deemed to be a real estate asset acquisition, we capitalized acquisition-related costs and fees totating $1.0 militon, inclusive
of amounts attributable to a noncontrolling interest of $0.6 million. Dollar amounts are based on the exchange rate of the Euro on the date of acquisition.
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Operating Real Estate

Operating real estate, which consists primarily of our investments in 21 self-storage properties through Carey Storage and our Livho hotel subsidiary, at cost, is
summarized as follows {in thousands):

Brecember 31,
708k 7810
Listid: 403 - §94030
Buildings . 5821
LesgAsaumolated depreciation” i = Yoo 28
3 $ 95571

In January 2009, Carey Storage completed a transaction whereby it received cash proceeds of $21.9 million, plus a commitment to invest up to a further $8.1 million of
equity, from the Investor to fund the purchase of self-storage assets in the future in exchange for an interest of approximately 60% in its self-storage porifolio (“Carey
Storage Venture™). We reflect the Carey Storage Venture's operations in our Reat Estate Ownership segmens. Costs totaling $1.0 million incurred in structuring the
transaction and bringing in the Investor into these operations were reflected in General and administrative expenses in our [nvestment Management segment during
2009, Prior to September 2010, we accounted for this transaction under the profit-sharing method because Carey Storage had a contingent option 1o repurchase this
inferest from the Investor at fair value. During the third guarier of 2010, Carey Storage amended its agreement with the Investor to, among other matters, remove the
contingent purchase option in the original agreement, However, Carey Storage retained a controfling interest in the Carey Storage Venture, As of September 30, 2010,
we have reclassified the Investor’s interest from Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities to Noncontrolling interests on our consolidated balance sheet.

Operating Real Estate Acquired During 2010 — During 2010, the Carey Storage Venture and an entity owned 100% by Carey Storage acquired eight sell-storage
properiies in the 11.5. at a total cost of $22.0 million, inclusive of amounts attributable to the Investor’s interest of $11.5 million. These investments were deemed to be
Bbusiness combinations, and as a result, Carey Storage expensed acquisition-related costs of $0.4 million, inclusive of amounts atiributable to the Investor’s interest of
$6.2 miilion.

Seheduled Future Minimum Rents

Scheduled future minimum rents, exclusive of renewats and expenses paid by tenants and future CPI-based jncreases under non-cancelable operating leases, at
December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ending December 31, Total
2 = s e
2013
1A
015
W06

Note 5. Finance Receivables

Assets representing rights to receive money on demand or at fixed or determinable dates are referred to as finance receivables. Our finance receivable portfolios consist
of our Net investments in direct financing leases and deferred acquisition fees. Operating leases are not included in finance receivables as such amounts are pot
recognized as an asset in the consclidated balance sheets.
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Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases

Net investment in direct financing leases is summarized as follows (in thousands);

December 31,

Mitiini Tesse payinents receivable?
Unguaranteed residual value

" (56.425)
$ 76550

L.ess; unearned incoms

Ligs8.000%
st b

During the yeats ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, in connection with our annual reviews of our estimated residual values of our properties, we recorded
impairment charges related to several direct financing leases of $1.1 million and $2.6 million, respectively. Impairment charges retated primarily to other-than-
temporary declines in the estimated residual values of the underlying properties due to market conditions (Note 10). In the fourth quarter of 2011, we also recorded
$1.6 million in connection with an out-of-period adjustment (Note 2). At December 2, 2011 and 2010, Other assets, net included less than $0.1 million and 30.3
miltion, respectively, of accounts receivable related to amounts billed under these direct financing leases.

During 2011, we reciassified $17.6 miltion out of Net investments in direct financing leases in connection with an cut-of-period adjustment (Note 2).

Scheduled future minimum rents, exclusive of renewals and expenses paid by tenants, pereentage of sales rents and future CPI-based adjustments, under non-
cancelable direct financing leases at December 31, 2011 are as foilows {in thousands):

Years Ending Derember 31,
wWE
2013
2014
2015
WtE

Deferred Acquisition Fees Receivable
As described in Note 3, we earn revenue in connection with structuring and negotiating investments and related mortgage financing for the REITs. A portion of this

revenue is due in equal annual instaliments ranging from three to four years, provided the relevant CPA® REIT meets its performance criterion. Unpaid deferred
instaliments, including accrued interest, from all of the CPA® REITs were included in Due from affifiates in the consolidated financial statements.

Credit Quality of Finance Receivables

We generally seek investments in facilities that we believe are critical to a tenant’s business and that we believe bave a low risk of tenant defaults, At December 31,
2011 and 2010, none of the balances of our finance receivables were past due and we had not established any allowances for credit losses. Additionally, there have
been ne modifications of finance receivables. We evaluate the credit quality of our tenant receivables utilizing an internal S-point credit rating scale, with |
representing the highest credit quality and 5 representing the lowest. The credit quality evaluation of our ienant receivables was last updated in the fourth quarter of
2011. We believe the credit quality of our deferred acquisition fees receivable falls under category 1, as all of the CPA® REITs are expected to have the available cash
to make such payments.
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A summary of our finance receivables by internal credit quality rating for the periods presented is as follows {dobars in thousands):

Numbeyr of Tenants Net Investments i Divect ¥inancing Leases
at December 31, at Pecember 31,
2011 1010

Entexnal Credit Quality Indicator

py

R A

Note 6. Equity Investments in Real Estate and the REITs

We own interests in the REITs and unconsolidated real estate investments. We account for cur interests in these investments under the equity method of accounting
(i.e., at cost, increased or decreased by our share of earnings or losses, less distributions, plus contributions and other adjustments required by equity method
accounting, such as basis differences from other-than-temporary impairments). These investments are summarized below,

REITs

We own interests in the REITs and account for these interests under the equity method because, as their advisor and threugh our ownership in their cormmon shares, we
do not exert control over, but have the ability to exercise significant influence on, the REFT's. Shares of the REITs are publicly registered and the REITs file perodic
reports with the SEC, but the shares are not lisied on any exchange and are not actively traded. We earn asset management and performance revenue from the REITs
and have elected, in cerfain cases, t0 receive a portion of this revenue in the form of common stock of the REITSs rather than cash.

The foliowing table sets forth certain information about our investments in the REITs (dollars in thousands):

% of Dutstanding Shares a1 Carrying Amount of Investment at
] December 3,

December 31, (%

Wi

$ 454012 § 245035

(a) Includes asset management fees receivable, for which shares that witl be issued during the subsequent period.

(b} Inconnection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger, we earned termination fees of $31.2 mitlion, which were received in shares of CPA®:14. Upon closing of the
CPA®:14/16 Merger (Note 3), our shares of CPA®:14 were exchanged into 13,260,091 shares of CPA®:16 — Global with a fair value of $118.0 million. In
connection: with this share exchange, we recognized 2 gain of $2,8 miltion, which is the difference between the camying value of cur investment in CPA®:14 and
the estimated fair value of consideration received in shares of CPA®:16 — Global. This gain is included in Other income and {expenses) within our Investment
Management segment.

(e)  Ourinvestment in CPA®:16 — Global cxceaded 20% of our total assets at Deeember 31, 2011. As such, audited annual financial statements of CPA®:16 — Global
are provided with this Report. In addition to rormal operating activities, the increase in carrying value was due to severat factors, including (i) our purchase of
13,750,000 shares of CPA®;16 — Global for $121.0 million; (ii) an increase of $118.0 miliion as a result of the exchange of our shares of CPA®:14 into shares of
CPAZY: 16 — Global in the CPA®: 14/16 Merger; (i1} a $0.3 million contribution to acquire the Special Member Interest in CPA®:16 — Global’s operating
partnership; and (iv) $28.3 million to refiect the receipt of the Speciai Member Interest in CPA®:16 — Global’s operating partnership (Note 3).

(d)  Priorto 2011, the operating results of CW4, which had no significant assets, Habilities or operations, were included in our consolidated financial statements, as
we owned all of CWT's outstanding common stock.
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The following tables present preliminary combined summarized financial information for the REITs. Amounts provided are expected total amounts attributable to the

REITs and do not represent our proportionate share (in thousands).

Becember 3,
2011
Assets e R TR B SRR Ol
Lisbihties _ - (4‘896_,116_) 4, 632 709}
Redeeifidble noncontroiing interest ¢ 21306 :
Noncontrolling mterests (330, 873) (376 560}
Sharekoldersegints 830358161 3502 8250

2011 2016

Reveii! 789,935 £

Expensese {599 822) _ (501 21(-:) {603 558)
Metinsime from continuing-operations: - 3 : S 25645 395 RIT.
Nat income {toss) attributable 1o the REITs® $ 123,479 3 189,155 $ (5,]73)

(a)  Total net expenses recognized by the REITs during the year ended December 31, 2011 included the following items related to the CPA®:14/16 Merger: (i) $78.8
milfion of net gains recognized by CPA®:14 in connection with the CPA®: 14 Asset Sales, of which our share was approximately $7.4 million; (it) a net bargain
purchase gain of $28.7 million recognized by CPA®:16 — Global in connection with the CPA®: 14/16 Merger as a result of the fair value of CPA®:14 exceeding
the total merger consideration, of which our share was approximately $5.0 million; (iii) approximately $13.6 miliion of expenses incurred by CPA®:16 ~ Global
related to the CPA®: 14716 Merger, of which our share was approximately $2.4 million; and (iv) a $2.8 million net loss recognized by CPA®:16 - Global in

connection with the prepayment of certain non-recourse mostgages, of which our share was approximately $0.5 miilion.

(b} Inclusive of impairment charges recognized by the REITs totalling $61.7 méllion, $40.7 miflion and 3170.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively, which reduced our income earned from these investments by $7.8 million, §3.0 million, and $1 1.5 million, respectively.

We recognized income (loss) from our equity investments in the REITs of $16.9 million, $10.5 million, and $(2.5} million for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010, and 2005, respectively. In addition, we received distributions from and recorded fee income from the CPA®:16 - Global and CPA®:17 — Global operating
partnerships totaling $15.5 million, $4.5 million, and $2.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively, which we recorded as Income
from equity investments in the REITs within the Investment Management segment. We alse earned defen’ed revenue relaicd to our Special Member Interest in the

operating partnership of CPA®:16 — Global of $5.7 million: during the year ended December 31, 2011

Interests in Unconsolidated Real Estate Investments

We own interests in single-tenant net leased properties that are leased to corporations through noncontrolling interests (i) in partnerships and limited liabifity
companies that we do not centrol but over which we exercise significant influence or (ii) as tenants-in-common subject to common caatrol. Generally, the underlying

investments are jointly-owned with affiliates. We account for these investments under the equity method of accounting.
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The following table sets forth our ownership interests in our equity investments in real estate and their respective carrying values. The camying value of these ventures
is affected by the timing and nature of distributicns (doliars in thousands):

()]
(&

Owaership Interest Careying Value 3t Ber 31,
Lessee o at December 31, 2011 o
Carrefour France SAS & A6%:

Schuler AG. W® )
The:New York Tifnes Company.= 1
.8 Airways Group, Inc. ®
Medicas France S K B,
Hologic, Ine ®»
Chilttimé Childéare 4ni
Consolidated Svstems, Inc, ® o
Hetliveg Die ProfiiBadmiirkte GribH & Co.KG W
Symphony IRE Group, Inc. #@
Fedenit Eiprest Corporation it
Ataylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc. G0 @

The carrying value of the investment is affected by the impact of fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Euro.

Represents a tenancy-in-commeon interest.

The decrease in carrying vatue was due to cash distributions made to us by the venture,

In 2011, we made a contribution of $2.1 million 1o the venture to pay off our share of its maturing mortgage loan.

In 2011, this venture sold one of its properties and distributed the proceeds to the venture partners. Qur share of the proceeds was approximately §1.4 miliion,
which exceeded our total investment in the venture at that time.

In 2010, this venture refinanced its maturing non-recourse mortgage debt with new non-recourse financing and distributed the net proceeds to the venture
partners, Our share of the distribution was $5.5 million, which exceeded our total investment in the venture at that time.

At December 31, 2011 or 2010, as applicable, we intended to fund our share of the venture’s future operating deficits if the need arose. However, we had no
legal obligation to pay for any of the venture’s fiabilities nor did we have any legat obligation to fund operating deficits.

In connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger in May 2011, we purchased the remaining interest in this investment from CPA®:14. Subsequent to the acquisision,
we consolidate this investment as our ownership interest in the investment is now 100% (Note 4).

In 2007, this venture refinanced its existing non-recourse mortgage debt with new non-recourse financing based on the appratsed value of its underlying real
estate and distributed the proceeds to the venture partners. Cuur share of the distribution was $17.6 miltion, which exceeded our total investment in the venture at
that tirpe.

The fotlowing lables present combined summarized financiat information of our venture properties. Amounts provided are the total amounts attributable to the venture
properties and do not represent our proportionate share (in thousands):

December 31,

01
S102s024
.{706.244)

23198807

Panr e bers ety
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Years Ended December 31,

- 2011 2010 2009
Revetities. codne g0 1462147 §hioges
Expenses {75,592
Imphisient charge e ot SRRy S --
Net income from continying operations § 34225 3 66,549 $ 57,746

et iEomis dttihlitabls to the joint ventires L3228 108066549

(8}  Represents an impairment charge incurred by a venture that feases property to the Symphony IRI Group, Inc. in connection with a potential sale of the property,

of which pur share was approximately $0.4 million. The venturs completed the sale in June 20£ 1.

We recognized income from equity investments in real estate of $13.1 million, $16.0 million, and $13.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. Income from equity investments in real estate represents our propertionate share of the income or losses of these ventures as well as cerlain

depreciation and amortization adjusiments related to other-than-temporary impairment charges.

Note 7. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

In connection with our acquisitions of properties, we have recorded net lease intangibles of $76.6 million, which are being amortized over periods ranging from one
year to 40 years, In-place lease, tenant relationship and above-market rent intangibles are included in Intangible assets and goodwill, net in the consotidated financial
statements. Below-market rent intangibles are included in Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other Habilities in the consolidated financial statements.

Intangibles and goodwill are summarized as follows {in thousands).

Becember 31,

2811
Aminrtizable Hitangible Assets
Management contraets
Libssy adctmulated dmoitization:

eide Intangibtesie G s
In-place lease 62162 23028
Tenait relatiansh : D 2sY
9,737
(26,560

iilatéAmontization

Unamortizable Goodwill and fedefinite-Lived tntanginte Assets
Goodwill
Trade fame

Amortizable Below
Belgwrnarkel rent:
Less: accumulated amortization

-Market Rent Intangible Liabilitics
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(a) In September 2011, we deconsolidated a wholly-owned subsidiary because we no longer had contro over the activities that most significantly impact its
economic performance following possession of the subsidiary’s property by a receiver (Note 16}, As of the date of deconselidation, the subsidiary had lease
intangibles consisting of the following: $1.5 million of in-place lease; $1.1 million of tenant relationship, $1.8 million of above-market rent and $4.4 million of
accurnulated amortization, :

Current accourting guidance requires that we test for the recoverability of goodwill at the reporting unit level, The test for recoverability must be conducted at least
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverable. We performed our annual test
for impairment during the fourth quarter of 2011 and no impairment was indicated.

Net amortization of intangibles was $6.0 million, $5.6 million and $6.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Amortization of
below-market and above-market rent intangibles is recorded as an adjustment to Lease revenues, while amortization of in-place lease and {enant relationship
intangibles is included in Depreciation and amortization.

Rascd on the intangible assets and liabilities recorded at December 31, 2011, scheduled annual net amostization of intangibies for each of the next five years is as
follows (in thousands):

Note 8. Fair Value Measurements

Under current authoritative accounting guidance for fair value measurements, the fair value of an asset is defined as the exit price, which is the amount that would
either be received when as asset is sold or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The guidance
establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers are: Level 1, for which quoted market prices for identical
instruments are available in active markets, such as money market funds, equity securities and U.S. Treasury securities; Level 2, for which there are inputs other than
quoted prices included within Leve! | that are observable for the instrument, such as certain derivative instrarents including interest rate caps and swaps; and Leve! 3,
for which litte or no market data exists, thersfore requiring us to develop our own assumptions, such as certain securities.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
The following methods and assumptions were used to estismate the fair value of each class of financial instrument:

Money Market Funds — Our money market funds consisted of government securities and U.S. Treasury bills. These funds were classified as Level 1 as we used quoted
prices from active markets to determine their fair values.

Derivative Assets and Liabilities — Our derivative assets and liabilities are primarily comprised of interest rate swaps or caps. These derivative instruments were
measured at fair value using readily observable market inputs, such as quotations on interest rates, These derivative insiruments were classified as Level 2 because they
are custom, over-the-counter contracts with various bank counterparties that are not traded in an active market.

Other Securities — Qur other securities are primarily comprised of our investment in an India growth fund and our interest in a commercial morigage loan
securitization. These funds are not traded in an active market. We estimated the fair value of these securities using internal vaiuation models that incorporate market
inputs and our cwn assumptions about future cash flows. We classified these assets as Level 3.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest — We account for our noneontrolling interest in WPCl as a redeemable noncontrelling interest (Note 13). We determined the
valuation of the redeemable noncontrolling interest using widely accepted valuation techniques, including expected discounted cash flows of the investment as well as
the income capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates. We classified this Jiabitity as Level 3.

W.P. Carey 2011 10-K — 858

http://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522.html 6/21/2012







Document Contents Page 87 of 128

The following tables set forth our assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis. Assets and liabilities presented below exciude assets
and liabilities owned by unconsolidaied ventures (ir thousands):

Falr Velue Mensurements at December 31, 2031 Using:

Quioted Prices in
Active Markets for Signilicant Other Unaobservable
identical Assels Observable laputs
5 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Assois : e T T
Money market funds
Oiner agcuritiey 0 0

Redeeinible riondontrolling interest’

4175

Total
Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2010 Hstugs
Quoted Prices in Unobservable
Active Markets fos Significan Other

Identical Asseis Ohservabie Inputs Inputs
Bescriptian (Level 1} (Level 3)
Alsatsi sEE . G :
Money market funds
Other gesuritied

Derivative assets
‘!‘utal :
Liabilities:

Drerivative Habilities
Redeemable noncontrolling interest
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Fair Value Measurements Using
Sipoificant Unobservable Inguts (Jevel 3 Only)

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Year Ended December 31, 2010
Assers Liabilities Assets

Liabilities
Redeemable Redeemahle
Nonconiralling Noncentredling
Other Securities Interest Oﬂaer Securmes Interesl
Begitining balance’ e : B TS4e &
Totai gains or losses (rea] ed 3

sInclided in eafhings
In{:luded m other comprehenswe (less) income
i Purchasesiing : i
_Settiements
TS bton paid .
Redampuon value ad;ustment
Eriding balance: 5 : e
The amount of total gains or (losses} for the period mcluded
in earnings attributabie ta the change in unrealized gains
or losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date $ £20)

i
{3)

We did not have any transfess into or out of Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 measurements during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, Gains and losses
(realized and unrealized) inctuded in earnings for other securities are reported in Other income and (expenses) in the consolidated financial statements

Cur other financial instruments had the following carrying values and fair values as of the dates shown (in thousands):

Pecember 31, 2011 December 3%, 20183
o o e . Carrying Value ) Faiy Value ) Fair Value
Notsigeonrse @nd Hinited-recourse deli SRS BSA209 L B30T 4R 8 A60;
Line of credit

ne of T . » 233160 233060 141,750 140600'
Deférred acqiisiton fees recelvable : : . g '_2_9,‘4}'0'..'-1; Eans DT NE CREAg 3
We determined the estimated fair value of our debt instruments using a discounted cash flow model with rates that take info account the credit of the tenants and

interest rate risk, We estimated that our other financial assets and tabilities {excluding net investments in direct financing leases) had fair values that approximated
their carrying values at both December 31, 2011 and 2010,

Items Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

We perform an assessment, when required, of the value of certain of our real estate investments in accordance with current authoritative accounting guidance. As part
of that assessment, we determine the valuation of these assets using widely accepted valuation techniques, including expected discounted cash flows or an income
capitalization approach, which considers prevailing market capitalization rates, We review each investment based on the highest and best use of the investment and
markes participation assumptions, We determined that the significant inputs used to value these investroents fall within Level 3. As a result of our assessments, we

calculated impairment charges, which were based on market conditions and assumptions that existed at the time. The valuation of real estate is subject to significant
judgment and actual results may Qiffer materially if market conditions or the underlying assumptions change.
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The following table presents information about our other assets that were measured on a fair value basis for the periods presented. All of the impairment charges were
measured using unobservable inputs (Level 3) and were recorded based on market conditions and assumptions that existed at the time {in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Vear Ended Decensber 31, 201¢ Year Ended December 31, 2008
Total Fair Value ‘Total Impairment Tatal Fair Value Total Impakrraersd Total Fair Value ‘Fotat Impairment

3 Charges Charges ) Measurements Charg

Imipairiient Churges
HEvOperation
Rag! eviate
Mepinvestisnts in direct fmanciig feases @) i
Equity invesiments in real eslate
Intanpible dsgefs i
Intanegibie fabilities

(8) In the fourth quarter of 2011, we recorded an out-of-period adjustment of $1.6 million (Note 2},

Note 9. Risk Management and Use of Derivative Financial Instruments
Risk Management

In the normal course of our ongoing busingss operations, we encounter economic risk. There aze three main corponents of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk
and market risk. We are primarily subject 1o inierest rate risk on our interest-bearing liabilities. Credit risk is the risk of default on our operations and tenants’ inability
or unwillingness to make contractualty required payments. Market risk includes changes in the vatue of our properties and related foans, as weil as changes in the value
of our other securities and the shares we hold in the REITs due to changes in interest rates or other market factors. In addition, we own investments in the European
Union and are subject to the risks associated with changing foreign currency exchange rates,

Foreign Currency Exchange

We are exposed to foreign curency exchange rale movements, primarily in the Euro. We manage foreign currency exchange rate movements by generalty placing both
our debt obligation to the lender and the tenant’s rental obligation to us in the same currency, but we are subject i¢ foreign currency exchange rate movements lo the
extent there may be a difference in the timing and amount of the rertal obligation and the debt service. We alse face challenges with repatriating cash from our foreign
investments. We may encounter instances where it is difficult to repatriate cash because of jurisdictional restrictions or because repatriating cash may result in current
or future tax liabifities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses related to foreign currency transactions are recogrized in eamings and are included in Other income
and (expenses) in the consolidated financial statlements.

Use of Derivative Financlad Instrumenits

When we use derivative instruments, it is generally to reduce our exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. We have not entered, and do not plan to enter into financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. In addition to derivative instruments that we entered into on our own behalf, we may also be a party to derivative
instruments that are embedded in other contracts, and we may own common stock warrants, gramted to us by lessees when structuring lease transactions, that are
considered 1o be dexivative instruments. The primary risks related to our use of derivative instruments are that a counterparty fo a hedging arrangement could default on
its obligation or that the credit quality of the counterparty may be downgraded to such an extent that it impairs our ability to sell or assign our side of the hedging
transaction. While we seek 1o mitigate these risks by entering into hedging arrangements with cousterparties that are large financial institutions that we deem to be
creditworthy, it is possible that our hedging transactions, which are intended to limit losses, could adversely affect our samings. Furthermore, if we terminate a hedging
arrangement, we may be obligated to pay certain costs, such as wansaction or breakage fees. We have established policies and procedures for risk assessment and the
approval, reporting and monitoring of derivative financial instrument activities.
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We measure derivative instruments at fair value and record them as assefs or liabilities, depending on our rights or obligations under the applicable derivative contract.
Derivatives that are not desigaated as hedges must be adjusted to fair value through eemings. For a derivative designated and qualified as a fair value hedge, the change
in the fair value of the derivative is offset against the change in fair value of the hedged asset, liabitity, or firm commitment through eamings. For a derivative
designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our derivative instruments for the periods presented (in thousands):

Asset Derivatives Fair YValue Liability Derivatives Fair Value
Derivatives Designated at Decemtber 31, at December 31,
2011 2010

as Hedging Instrumenty Balance Sheet Location

Iritevest fate Swap G o Otherassets; nets s Hia
Interest rate swaps Accounts payvable, accrued expenses and

other liabilities — e @175 (969
Total derivativesti i S ' F ooy

The following table presents the impact of derivative instruments on Other comprehensive income within our consofidated financtal statements (in thousands):

Amaunt of Galo {Loss) Recognized in

Oiher compreh intome on Derivatives (Effective Portion)
Years Ended December 31,
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Ry ps 2L 2010
Interest e swapsi : : (3564 i

ot i ; L S __$_ 3 en ; o

(a)  During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, no gains or losses were reclassified from Other comprehensive income into income related to
effective or ineffective portions of hedging relationships or amounts excluded from effectiveness testing.

See below for information on our purposes for entering inio derivative instruments and for information on derivative instruments owned by unconsolidated ventures,
which are excluded from the tables above.

Interest Rate Swaps and Caps

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes primarily through our borrowing activities. To limil this exposure, we attempt to obtain mortgage financing on a
long-term, fixed-rate basis. However, from time to lime, we or our venture partners may obtain variable rate non-recourse mortgage loans and, as a result, may enter
inte interest rate swap agreements or interest rate cap agreements with counterparties. Interest rate swaps, which effectively convert the variable-rate debt service
obligations of the loan to a fixed rate, are agreements in which one party exchanges a siream of interest payments for a counterparty’s stream of cash flow over a
specific period. The notional, or face, amount on which the swaps are based is not exchanged. Interest rate caps limit the effective borrowing rate of variable rate debt
obligations while allowing participants to share in downward shifts in interest rates. Our objective in using these derivatives is to limit our exposure to interest raie
movements.
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The interest rate swap derivative instruments that we had outstanding at December 31, 2011 were designated as cash flow hedges and are summarized as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Notionat Effective Effective Expiration
Interest Rate Date

4% 35008

Instrument
3-Month Biribor .
1-Month LIBOR

IEMERREIRORS

: Type
SrPap-fixed gwap il
“Pay-fixed” swap

gy

‘Pavefikediwap

(a)  Amounts are based upon the exchange rate of the Euro at December 31, 2011,

The interest rate cap derivative instruments that our unconsolidated ventures had outstanding at Decernber 31, 2081 were designated as cash flow hedges and are
surmmarized as follows (doilars in thousands}):

Ownership Interest
in Ventiere at Notionat Effective Expiration
Instrument _ December 31, 2011 e TapE ) L Awmount o
IMonth LIBOR i e s s Anterestyateicdp i 8122679 iy 87204
Interest rate cap 17,793 3.0%® 4/2014

i-Month LIBOR 7895%

(a)  The applicable interest rate of the related loan was 2.9% at December 31, 2011; therefors, the interest rate cap was not being utilized at that date,
{b}  The applicable inferest rate of the related loan was 4.3% at December 31, 2011; therefore, the interest rate cap was not being utilized at that date.

Other

Armounts reported in Other comprehensive income related to derivatives will be reclassified to interest expense as interest paymenis are made 0n our non-fecourse
variable-rate debt. At December 31, 2011, we estimate that an additional $1.4 million will be reclassified as interest expense during the next twelve months.

We measure cradit exposure on a counterparty basis as the net positive aggregate estimated fair value, net of collateral received, if any, None was received as of
December 31, 2011. The total credit exposure as of December 31, 2011 was less than $0.1 million.

Some of the agreements we have with derivative counterparties contain certain credit contingent provisions that coutd result in a declaration of default against us
regarding our derivative obligations if we either default or are capable of being declared in default on certain of our indebtedness. At December 31, 2011, we had not
been declared in default on any of our derivative obligations. The estimated fair value of our derivatives that were in a net liability position was $4.3 million at
Decemtber 31, 2011, which includes accrued interest but excludes any adjustment for nonperformance risk. If we had breached any of these provisions at December 31,
2011, we could have been required to settle our obligations under these agreements at their termination value of $4.8 million.
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Porifolio Concentration Risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a group of tenants is engaged in similar business activitias or is subject to similar economic risks or conditions that could cause
them to defauit on their lease obligations to us. We regularly monitor our porifolio to assess potential concentrations of credit risk. While we believe our portfolio is
reasonably well diversified, it does contain concentrations in excess of 10%, based on the percentage of our annuatized contractual minimurn base rent at December 31,
2011, in certain areas, as shown in the table below. The percentages in the table below represent our directly-owned real estate properties and do net include our pro
rata share of equity investments,

California
TenHessteT
Georgia
Alvother 11400
Total IS
Toial Eurcpe
Total
Asser T9pes
Office
Tidugrrial
Warshouse/Distribution
Al pthers’ e
Total

Tenant Industry:
Bugsiness and commercial services
Trarsporiaen - Carge
All others
SiTolal

Except for our investment in CPA®:16 — Global, there were no significant concentrations, individually or in the aggregate, related to our unconsolidated ventures. At
December 31, 2011, we owned 17.9% of CPA®; 16 - Global, which had total assets of approximately $3.6 billion consisting of a porifolio comprised of full or partial
ownership inferests in 512 properiies substantially all of which were triple-net leased to 150 tenants, and had certain concentrations within its portfolio, which are
outlined in its periodic filings.

Note 10, Impairment Charges

We periodically assess whether there are any indicators that the value of our real estate investments may be impaired or that their carrying value may not be
recoverable. For investments in real estate in which an impairment indicator is identified, we foliow a two-step process to determine whether the imvestment is
impaired and 1o determine the amount of the charge, First, we compare the carrying value of the real estate to the future net undiscounted cash flow that we expect the
real estate will generate, including any estimated proceeds from the eventual sale of the real estate. H this amount is less than the carrying value, the real estate is
considered to be impaired, and we then measure the foss as the excess of the carrying value of the real estate over the estimated fair vatue of the real estate, which is
primarily determined using market information such as recent comparable sates or broker quotes. If relevant market information is not available o is not deemed
appropriate, we then perform a future net cash flow analysis diseounted for inherent risk associated with each investment.
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The foliowing tabte summarizes impairment charges recognized on our consolidated and unconsolidated real estate investments for ali periods presented (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2611 B

BT 0400
(1 608)

Realestate

Nei mvestments in direct fmancmg leases
* Yordl impajtmeént Chirges it uded in expensed:z o S

E mty investments in real estate ®

i talimpairsatichirgss felnded in oonnnmng ‘Operations

Impamnent charges included n dnscontmued operatzons

: ‘Totalimpaliment Charges :

1 140

(a)  TImpairment charges on our equity investments in real estate are included in Income from equity investments in real estate and the REITs within the consolidated
financial statements.

Real Estate

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2009, we recognized impairment charges on various properties totaling $12.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively.
These impairmenis weee primarily the result of writing down the properties” carrying values to their respective estimated fair values in connection with potential sales
subsequent to tenants vacating or not renewing their leases.

Direct Finaneing Leases

In connection witk ocur annual review of the estimated residual vaiues on our propertics classified as net investments in direct financing leases, we determined that an
other-than-{emporary decline in estimated residual value had ocourred at various properties due to market conditions, The changes in estimates resulied in the
recognition of impairment charges fotaling $1.1 million and $2.6 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. In the fourth quarter of 20 1, we recorded an out-of-period
adiustment of $1.6 miltion (Note 2},

Equity Investments in Real Estate

Dhuring the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $0.2 million on a venture as a resuft of the anticipated sale of
the veniure property. The venture completed the sale of its property in the third quarter of 2011. In connection with cur annual review of the fair value of our equity
investments, we recognized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $1.4 miltlion during the year ended December 31, 2010 to reflect the deciine in the estimated
fair value of the venture’s undertying net assets in comparison with the carrying value of our interest in the venture.

Praoperties Sold

During the vears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2609, we recognized impairment charges on properties sold totaling less than 30.1 milkion, $14.2 miliion and
$6.9 million, respectively. These impairment charges, which are included in discontinued operations, were the result of reducing these properties’ carrying values to
their estimated fair values (Note 16) in connection with anticipated sales,

Nate 11, Debt

Line of Credit

At December 31, 2016, we had a $250.0 million unsecured revolving line of eredit that was scheduled to mature in June 2012, On May 2, 201!, we obtained 2 $30.0
miikon secured revolving line of credit from Bank of America that was coterminous with the unsecured line of credit, expiring in June 2012. In December 2011, we
terminated the secured and unsecured lines of credit. We entered into a new unsecured revolving line of credit in order to extend the maturity and to provide for
additional commitments as described below and accounted for this transaction as a modification of the original loan and capitalized the related financing costs totaling
$6 .7 million, which wili be amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the credit facility. The previous unsecured revoiving line of credit had an
cutstanding balance of $233.2 milkion, which we rolled over to the new unsecured line of credit. The secured line of credit had no outstanding balance on the date of
termination,
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‘The new jine of credit provides for an aggregate principal amount of up to $450.0 million that matures in December 2614, but may be extended by one year at our
option, subject to the conditions provided in the credit agreement. At our election, the principal amount available under the new line of credit may be increased by up to
an additional $125.0 million, subject to the conditions provided in the credit facility agreement. The new line of credit also permits (i} up to $150.0 million under the
line of ¢redit to be borrowed in certain currencies other than the U5, doltars, {it) swing line loans of up to $35.0 miition under the line of credit, and {iii) the issuance
of letters of credit under the line of credit in an aggregate amount not to exceed $50.0 mitlion.

The new line of credit provides for an annual interest rate, at our election, of either (i) the Eurocurrency Rate or (i) the Base Rate, in each case plus the Applicabie
Rate {each as defined in the credit agreement). Prior to us cbtaining an Investment Grade Debt Rating (as defined in the credit agreement), the Applicable Rate on
Evrocumrency Rate foans and letters of credit ranges from 1.75% ta 2.50% and the Applicable Rate on Base Rate loans ranges from $.75% to 1.50%. After an
Investment Grade Debt Rating has been obtained, the Applicable Rate on Eurocurrency Rate loans and letters of credit ranges from 1.10% te 2.00% and the Applicable
Rate on Base Rate loans ranges from 0.10% 1o 1.00%. Swing line joans will bear interest at the Base Rate plus the Applicable Rate then in effect. In additien, prior to
obtaining an Investment Grade Debt Rating, we pay a quarterly fee ranging from 0,3% to 0.4% of the unused portion of the line of credit, depending on our leverage
ratio. After an Investment Grade Debt Rating has been obtained, we will pay a facility fee ranging from 0.2% to 0.4% of the total commitment. At December 31, 2011,
the outstanding balance on this line of credit was $233.2 million with an annual inferest rate consisting of a Base Rate of 3.5% plus 0.5%. On January 2, 2012, we
converted the interest rate to a Eurccurrency Rate, which is equat to LIBOR of 0.30% plus 1.75%. In addition, as of December 31, 2011, our lenders had issued letters
of credit totaling $6.8 million on our behalf in connection with certain contractual obligations. At December 31, 2011, the line of credit had unused capacity of $210.0
million, reflecting cutstanding letters of credit, which reduce amounts that may be drawn. The bine of credii is expected to be utilized primarily for potential new
mvestments, repayment of existing debt and general corporate purposes.

The line of credit requires us to ensure that the total Restricted Payments {as defined in the credit agreement) made in the current quarter, when added to the total for
the three preceding fiscal quarters, does not exceed 90% of Adjusted Total EBITDA (as defined in the credit agreement), for the four preceding fiscal quarters.
Restricted Pay ments inchude quarterly dividends and the total amount of shares repurchased by us, if any, in excess of $10.0 million per year. In addition to placing
limitations on gividend distributions and share repurchases, the credit agreement stipulates six financial covenants that require us to maintain the following ratios and
benchmarks at the end of each quarter (the quoted variables are specifically defined in the credit facility agreement):

(i  a“maximum leverage” ratio, which requires us to maintain a ratio for “total outstanding indebtedness™ to “total value” of 60% or less;

(in  a“maximum secured debt” ratio, which requires us to maintain a ratio for “total secured outstanding indebtedness” {inclusive of permitted “indebtedness of
subsidiaries™) to “total value” of 40% or less;

{iif) a“minimum combined equity value,” which requires us to maintain a “total valse” less “lotal outstanding indebledness” of at least $850.0 million. This amount
must be adjusted in the event of any securities offering by adding 80% of the “fair market value of all net offering proceeds;”

(iv)  a‘“minimum fixed charge coverage ratio,” which requires us to maintain a ratio for “adjusted total EBITDA” to “fixed charges” of 1.40 to 1.00;

(v)  a“‘minimum unsecured interest coverage ratic,” which requires us to maintain & ratio of “unencumbered property NOT plus unencumbered management
EBITDA™ to “interest expense on total ungecured outstanding indebtedness of 2,00 to 1,00; and

(vi) alimitation on “recourse indebtedness,” which prohibits us from incurring additional secured indebtedness other than “non-recourse indebtedness™ or
indebtedness that is recourse to us that exceeds $75.0 million or 5% of the “total value,” whichever is greater.

We were in compliance with these covenanis at December 31, 2041,

Non-Recourse and Limited-Recourse Debt

Non-recourse and limited-recourse debt consists of mortgage notes payable, which are collateralized by the assignment of real property, and direct financing leases,
with an aggregate carrying valve of $458.6 million ai December 31, 2011. Our mortgage notes payable had fixed annual interest rates ranging from 3.1% to 7.8% and
variable anrual interest rates ranging from 2.8% to 7.3% with maturity dates ranging from 2012 to 2025 at December 31, 2011,
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2011 — In connection with our acquisition of three properties from CPA®:14 in May 2011 as part of the CPA® 14 Asset Sales (Note 4), we assumed two non-recousse
mortgages with an aggregate fair value of $87.6 million (and a carrying value of 388.7 miliion) on the date of acquisition and recorded a net fair market value
adjustment of $1.1 million. The fair market vajue adjustment will be amortized to interest expense over the remaining lives of the loans. These morigages have a
weighted-average annual fixed interest rate and remaining term of 5.8% and 8.3 years, respectively.

During the year ended Decersber 31, 2011, we refinanced two mafuring non-recourse mortgages totaling $16.5 million with new financing totaling $11.9 million and
obtained new financing on two unencumbered properties totalling $29.0 million, of which $24.0 million was limited-recourse. These mortgage foans have a weighted-
average annual interest rate and term of 5.1% and 10.4 years, respectively. Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 201 [, the Carey Storage Venture
borrowed a total of $4.6 million, inclusive of amounts attributabile to the Investor’s interest of $2.8 million, with a weighted-average annual interest rate and term of
6.7% and 8.2 years, respectively.

2010 — In connection with an acquisition in Febeuary 2010, we obtained non-recourse mortgage financing of $35.0 millior at an annual interest rate of LIBOR plas
2,5% 1hat has been fixed at 5.5% through the use of an interest rate swap. This financing has a tertn of 10 years,

In connection with their acquisitions in 2010, the Carey Storage Venture and an entity 100% owned by Carey Storage obtained new non-recourse mortgage financing
and assumed existing morigage loans from the sellers totaling $17.1 million, inclusive of amounts atiributable to the Investor’s interest of $8.2 million. The mortgage
loans have a weighted-average annual fixed interest rate and {erm of 6.3% and 8.5 years, respectively.

2009 — In 2009, the Carey Storage Venture repaid in full the $35.0 million outstanding balance on its secured credit facility at a discount for £28.0 million, terminated
the facility, and recognized a gain of $7.0 million on the repayment of this debt, inclusive of the Investor’s interest of $4 2 miition. The debt repayment was financed
with a portion of the proceeds from the exchange of the 60% interest and non-recourse debt with a new lender totaling $25.0 million at an annuai fixed interest rate of
7% and term of 1G years with a rate reset after five years. The gain recognized on the debt repayment and the Investor’s inferest in this gain are both reflected in Other
income and {expenses) in the consolidated financial staterents.

Scheduled Debt Principal Payments
Scheduied debt principal payments during each of the next five calendar years following December 31, 2011 and thereafler are as foliows (in thousands):

Csyret
i 800414
Fair market value adjustments _ £1.045)

Totalsi iy TR

(a} Includes $233.2 million outstanding under our new unsecured line of credit at December 31, 2011, which is scheduled to mature in 2014 unless extended
pursuant to its terms.

Certain amounts in the table above are based on the applicabie foreign currency exchange rate at December 31, 2011.
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Note 12, Commitmenis and Contingencies
At December 31, 201, we were not involved in any matedal Hitigation.

Various claims and lawsuits arising in the normai course of business are pending against us. The results of these proceedings are not expected to have a material
adverse effect on gur consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We have provided certain representations in connection with divestitures of certain of our properties, These representations address a variety of matters inciuding
environmental liabilities. We are not aware of any claims or other information that would give rise to material payments under such representations,

Note 13. Equity
Distributions Payable

We declared a quarterly distribution of $0.563 per share in December 2011, which was paid in January 2012 to shareholders of record at December 31, 20113 and a
quarterly distribution of $0.510 per share in December 2010, which was paid in January 2011 to shareholders of record at December 31, 2010.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest

On June 30, 2003, WPCI granted an incentive award to two officers of WPCI consisting of 1,500,000 restricted units, representing an approximate 13% interest in
WEPCI, and 1,500,000 options for WPCI units with a combined fair value of $2.5 miltion at that date. Both the options and restricted units vested ratably over five
years, with full vesting occurring December 31, 2007. During 2008, the officers exercised atl of their 1,500,000 options to purchase £,500,000 units of WPCLat 31 per
unit. Upon the exercise of the WPCI options, the officers had a total interest of approximately 23% in WPCL The terms of the vested restricted units and units received
in connection with the exercise of options of WPCI by noncontroiling intetest holders provided that the units could be redeemned, commencing December 31, 2012 and
thereafter, solely in exchange for our shares and that any redemption would be subject to a third-party valuation of WPCL In connection with a reorganization of WPCI
into three separate entities in 2008, the officers also owned equivalent interests in the three new entities.

in December 2009, one of those officers resigned from W. P. Carey, WPCI and all affiliated entities pursuant 1o & mutualiy agreed separation, As part of this
separation, we effected the purchase of all of the interests in WPCI and certain related entities held by that officer for cash, at a negotiated fair market value of $15.4
million. The tax sffect of approximately $4.8 million relating to the acquisition of this interest, which resulted in an increase in contributed capital, was recorded as an
adjustment to Listed shares in the consolidated balance sheets, The remaining officer currently has a total interest of approximately 7.7% in each of WPCI and the
reiated entities.

We account for the noncontrolling interest in WPCL held by the officer as a redeemable noncontrolling interest, as we have an obtigation to repurchase the interest from
that officer for shares of our common stock, subject to certain conditions. As the redemption provisions inciude certain terms that are rot solely within our contrel, the
nencontroliing interest is classified as redeemable. The officer’s interest is reflected at estimated redemption value for all periods presented. Redeematile
noncentroliing interests, as presented on the consolidated balance sheets, reflect adjustments of $(G.5) million, $(0.5) million and $6.8 million at December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively, to present the officer’s interest at redemption value.

The following table presents a reconciliation of redeemable noneontrotling interast {in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007
Beghiifig balance 18085
Redemption value adjustment 6,773

Metiieome ; FI5E
Distributions - ) {4.056)
purchiseof nonconiroling anterests - 53,3803

Change 1n other comprehensive (loss) income _ — 12
Ending balancel iy e SR
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
The following table presents the components of eccumulated other comprehensive loss reflected in equity, net of tax. Amounts include our preportionate share of other
comprehensive income or loss from our unconsolidated investments (in thousands):

December 34,
2011

F 37
(5 246)

Untdalized gain oo tisrkeluble securities™
Unrealized loss on derivative instraments

Fureigi currency: franslation adjustinent RS SRR TSy
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $(8.507) $(3,463)
Earnings Per Share

Under current authoritative guidance for determining earnings per share, all univested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to distributions
are considered to be participating securities and therefore are included in the computation of earnings per share under the two-class method. The two-class method is an
carnings allocation formula that determines earnings per share for each class of common shares and participating security according to dividends declared (or
accumulated) and participation rghts in undistributed earnings, Our unvested RSUs contain rights to receive non-forfeitable distribution equivalents, and therefore we
apply the two-class method of computing eamings per share. The calculation of earnings per share below excludes the income attributable to the unvested RSUs from
the numerator. The foitowing table summarizes basic and diluted eamings per share for the periods indicated {in thousands, except share amounts);

_ Years Ended December 31

2011
Net incose attribiitable to' W, P; Cargy metnbery R 139,079 T
Allocation of (2.130)

TTTRe0A9

Netndofne S diluted $%0m49
Weighted average shares ¢ 35819475
Bt ol dilimnve secumties: i : g ETIS 0 5
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 40,098,095 39,712,735

Securities included in our diluted earnings per share determination consist of stock options and restricted stock awards. Securities totaling 207,258 shares, 247,750
shares and 485,408 shares for the years ended December 31, 201, 2010 and 2009, respectively, were excluded from the earnings per share computations above as their
effect would have been anti-dilutive.

In January 2012, the Compensation Committee approved Jong-term incentive plan awards to key employees consisting of 168,500 R5Us and 282,400 PSUs that coutd
have a dilutive impact on our earnings per share calculation.

Share Repurchase Programs

In December 2008, the Executive Committee of our board of directors (the “Executive Committee™) approved a program to repurchase up to $10.0 million of our
commor: stock through March 4, 2009 or the date the maximum was reached, if earlier. During the term of this program, we repurchased a total of §9.3 million of our
common stock, In March 2009, the Executive Committee approved an additional program to repurchase up to $3.5 mitlion of our common stock through March 27,
2009 or the date the maximum was reached, if earlier. During the term of this program, we repuschased a total of $2.8 miltion of our common stock,

W. P, Carey 2011 10-K — %6

http://ir. wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522.html 6/21/2012







Document Contents Page 98 of 128

Note 14, Stock-Based and Other Compensation
Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2011, we maintained several stock-based compensation plans as described below. The total compansation expense (net of forfeitures) for awards
issued under these plans was $17.8 million, $7.4 million and $9.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, all of which are
included in General and administrative expenses in the consclidated financial instruments, Stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2011
included an additional $4.5 million of compensation expense as a result of revising the expected vesting of PSUs granted during 2009 and 2010. Stock-based
compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 included net forfeitures of $2.0 million as a result of the resignation of two senior officers. The tax
benefit recognized by us refated to these awards totaled $7.8 miltion, $3.3 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

2009 Incemtive Plan and 1997 Incentive Plans

We maintain the 1997 Share Incentive Plan (as amended, the “1997 Incentive Plan™), which authorized the issuance of up te 6,200,000 shares of our common stock. In
June 2009, our shareholders approved the 2009 Share Incentive Pian (the “2009 Incentive Plan”} to replace the 1997 Incentive Plan, except with respect 1o outstanding
contractual ebligations under the 1997 Incentive Plan, so that no firther awards can be made under that plan. The 2009 Incentive Plan authorizes the issuance of up o
3,600,000 shares of our commaon stock, of which 1,102,605 were issued or reserved for issuance upon vesting of RSUs and PSUs at Decetnber 31, 2011, The 1997
Incentive Plan provided for the grant of (i) share options, which may or may not qualify as incentive stock options under the Code, (ii) performance shares or PSUs,
(iif) dividend equivalent rights and (iv) restricted shares or RSUs. The 2009 Incentive Plan provides for the grant of (i) share options, {it) restricted shares or RSUs,
(iii} performance shares or PSUs, and (iv) dividend equivalent rights. The vesting of grants under both plans is accelerated upon a change in our control and under
certain other conditions.

In December 2007, the Compensation Committee approved the long-term incentive plan (“LTIP™) and terminated further contributions to the Partnership Equity Unit
Plan described below. The following table presents LTIP awards granted in the past three years:

2009 Ineentive Plan _ 1997 Incentive Flan

Fiscal Year RSUs awarded . SUs Awarded ] Us awarded
H20100 a5 G 1592507 260500
011 @ 524,550 91,600

{2} Includes 340,000 RSUs and 100,000 PSUs issued in connection with entering into employment agresments with certain employees, and excludes 20,000 PSUs
for which the terms and conditions were not determined at the time of grant.

As a result of issuing the LTIP awards, we currently expect to recognize compensation expense totaling approximately $47.% million over the vesting period, of which
$15.7 million, $5.7 million and $4.2 million was recognized during 2011, 2010 and 2089, respectively.

2009 Nen-Employee Directors ncentive Plan and 1997 Non-Employee Directors’ Plan

We maintain the 1997 Non-Employee Disectors’ Plan (the “1997 Directors’ Plan™), which authorized the issuance of up to 300,000 shares of our Common Stock, In
June 2007, the 1997 Director’s Plan, which had been due to expire in October 2007, was extended through October 2017. e June 2009, our sharcholders approved the
2009 Non-Employee Directors’ Incentive Plan (the “200% Directors’ Plan”) o replace the 1997 Directors’ Plan, except with respect to outstanding contractual
obligations under the predecessor pian, so that no further awards can be made under that plan. The 1997 Directors” Plan provided for the grant of (i) share options,
which may or may not qualify as incentive stock options, (ii) performance shares, (iii) dividend equivalent rights and {iv) restricted shares. The 2009 Directors” Plan
authorizes the issuance of 325,000 shares of our commen stock in the aggregate and initially provided for the avtomatic annual grant of RSUs with a total value of
$50,000 to each director. In January 2011, the Compensation Committee approved an increase in the value of the annual grant to $70,000 per directar, effective as of
July 1, 2011, In the discrstion of our board of directors, the awards may also be in the form of share options or restricted shares, or any combination of the permitted
awards. At December 31, 2011, thers were 64,903 shares issued or reserved for issuance upon vesting of RSUs under this plan.
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Employee Share Purchase Plan

We sponsor an Employee Share Purchase Plan {“ESPP™) pursuant to which eligible employees may contribute up to 10% of compensation, subject to certain tmits, to
purchase our common stock. Employees can purchase stock semi-annually at a price equal to 85% of the fair market vaiue af certain plan defined dates. Compensation
expense under this plan for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 200% was $0.6 million, $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Partnership Equity Unit Plan

During 2003, we adopted a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the “Partnership Equity Plan”, or “PEP”) under which a portion of any participating officer’s
cash compensation in excess of designated amounts was deferred and the officer was awarded Partnership Equity Plan Units (“PEP Units™). The value of each PEP
Unit was intended 1o correspond fo the value of a share of the CPA® REIT designated at the time of such award. During 2005, further contributions to the initial PEP
were terminated and it was succeeded by a second PEP. As amended, payment under these plans will occur at the carlier of December 16, 2013 (in the case of the
initial PEP) or tweive years from the date of swerd. The award is fully vested upon grant. Each of the PEPs is a deferred compensation plan and is therefore considered
to be outside the scope of current accounting guidance for stock-based compensation and subject to Hability award accounting. The value of each PEP Unit will be
adjusted to reflect the underlying appraised value of the designated CPA® REIT. Additionally, each PEP Unit will be entitled to distributions equal to the distribution
rate of the CPA® REIT. All issuances of PEP Units, changes in the fair value of PEP Units and distributions paid are included in our compensation expense,

The plans are carried at fair valus each quarter and are subject to changes in the fair value of the PEP units. Compensation expense under these Plans for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was less than $0.1 million, $0.} miltion and $0.2 miflion, respectively, Further contributions to the second PEP were
terminated at Decemnber 31, 2007; however, this termination did not affect any awardees’ rights pursuant to awards granted under this plan. In December 2008,
participants in the PEPs were required to make an election 10 either (i) remain in the PEPs, (if) receive cash for their PEP Units (avaitable to former employees only) or
(iii) convert their PEP Units to fully vested RSUs (available to current employees onfy) to be issued under the 1997 Incentive Plan on June 15, 2009. Substantially all
of the PEP participants elected to receive cash or convert their existing PEP Units to RSUs. In January 2009, we paid $2.0 million in cash to former employee
participants who elected to receive cash for their PEP Units. As a result of the election to convert PEP Units to RSUs, we derecognized $9.3 million of our existing
PEP liability and recorded a deferred compensation obligation within W. P. Carey members’ equity in the same amount during the second quarter of 2009. The PEP
participants that elected RSUs received a total of 356,416 RSUs, which was equal 1o the total value of their PEP Units divided by the closing price of our common
stock on June 15, 2009. The PEP participants electing to receive RSUs were required to defer receipt of the underlying shares of our common stock for a minimum of
two years. While employed by us, these participants are entitled to receive dividend equivalents equal to the amount of dividends paid on the underlying common stock
during the deferral period. At Drecember 31, 2011, we are obligated to issue 108,441 shares of our common stock underlying these RSUs, which is recorded within W.
P Carey members’ equity as a Deferred compensation obligation of $2.8 million. The remaining PEP liability pertaining to participants who elected to remain in the
plans was $0.7 million at December 31, 2011
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Stock Options
Option activity and changes for all periods presented were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,2011
Weighted

Aversge
Weighted Remaining
Average Cantractual Aggregate
Exertise Price Ferm (i i

in Yeary

Outstanding at bepinningof year
_Exercised

2857

S P Bpived et . S
Ousandngatendofyerr o e T
Vested:and expeciod to'vestatend of year: s B1Ra 2 S814.484. 260
Exercisable at end of year 95877 $12,073,268

Years Ended December 31,
010 2000
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Remaining Remuaining
Weighted Contraciuzal Weighted Contracfual
Average Term Average Terns
Shaves Exercise Price {in Years) Shares Exercise Price {in Years) )

T 55004
(399,507 .
IS a0eY g

1,699,701 s
GoERELeRI g 9T

Otistariding i egitining of ar

~ Exercised
i Porfdited T Expired
Qutstanding at end of year
Eséréisable si eadof vear

e

Options granted under the 1997 Incentive Plan generally have a 10-year term and generally vest in four equal annual instaliments, Options granted under the 1997
Directors’ Plan have a 10-year ferm and vest generally over three years from the date of grant. We have not issued option awards since 2008. The total intrinsic vaiue
of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $4.6 million, $2.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, approximately $24 4 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to nonvested stock-based compensation awards was expected
{0 be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.3 years.

We have the ability and infent 1o issue shares upon stock option exercises. Historically, we have issued authorized but unissued common stock to satisfy such exercises.
Cash received from stock option exercises and purchases under the ESPP during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $1.2 million, $3.7 million
and $1.5 million, respectively.
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Restricted and Conditional Awardy
Nonvested restricted stock, RSUs and PSUs at December 31, 2011 and changes during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
Restricted Stock and RSU Awards PSY Awards

Weighted Average Weighted Average
Girant Date

Nonvested at Fanwary 1,2009. 500 ey
Granted

Vesiid®

Forfeited

Athustmient® : e {51408
Nonvested at December 31, 2009 381,878 170,375
Grarie : : S 86 68T IS as

Vested w (175225) )
Forfeited 0515y 295 165;725)
Adjustment & _ —= (19,506}

Nonvested ar Décember 31; 21 63820 F43,904"
Granted 541,890

Visted ! SlezAIn

Forfeited (18,480)

Adjuseisn ™

Nenvested at December 3'1', 2011 - 624,793 b

(a)  The total fair vatue of shares vested during the vears ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $6.9 million, $5.0 million and $7.2 million, respectively,

(b)  Vesting and payment of the PSUs is conditional on certain company and market performance goals being met during the relevant three-year performance period.
The ultimate number of PSUs to be vested will depend on the extent to which the performance goals are met and can range from zero to three times the original
awards. Pursuant to a review of our current and expected performance versus the performance goals, we revised our estimate of the ultimate number of certain of
the PSUs to be vested. As a result, we recorded an adjustment in 2611, 2010 and 2009 to reflect the number of shares expected 1o be issued whea the PSUs vest.

At the end of each reporting period, we evaluate the ultimate number of PSUs we expect to vest based upon the extent to which we have met and expect to meet the
performance goals and where appropriate tevise our estimate and associated expense. We do not adjust the associated expense for revision on PSUs expected to vest
based on market performance. Upon vesting, the R3Us and PSUs may be converted into shares of our common stock. Both the RSUs and PSUs cary dividend
equivalent rights. Dividend equivalent rights on RSUs are paid in cash on a quarterly basts whereas dividend eguivalent rights or PSUs accrue during the performance
period and may be converted into additional shares of common stock at the eonclusion of the performance period te the extent the PSUs vest. Dividend equivalent
rights are accounted for as a reduction to retained earmnings to the extent that the awards are expected to vest. For awards that are not expected to vest or do not
ultimately vest, dividend equivalent rights are accounted for as additional compensation expense.

Other Compensation

Profit-Sharing Flan

We sponsor a qualified profit-sharing plan and trust that generally permits alt employees, as defined by the plan, to make pre-tax contributions into the plan. We are
under ne obligation to contribute to the pian and the amount of zny contribution is determined by and at the discretion of our board of directors. Our board of directors
can authorize contributions to a maximum of 15% of an eligible participant’s compensation, limited to less than $0.1 million annually per participant. For the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, amonnts expensed for contributions 1o the trust were $3.4 miliion, $3.3 million and $3.3 million, respectively, which were
included in General and adeministrative expenses in the accompanying consclidated financial statements. The profit-sharing plan is a deferred compensation pian and is
therefore considered to be outside the scope of current accounting guidance for stock-based compensation.
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Other

‘We have employment contracts with certain senior executives. These contracts provide for severance payments in the event of termination under certain conditions
inctuding a change of control. During 2011, 2010 and 2009, we recognized severance costs totaling approxitately $0.4 mitlion, $1.1 mittion and $1.7 miltion,
respectively, reiated to severat former employees who did not have employment contracts. Such costs are included in General and adminisirative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated financial staternents.

Note 15. Income Taxes
The componests of our provision for income taxes for the periods presented are as follows (in thousands):

Yoare Ended December 31,
2011 010 panl

Federal:
Current
Deferred:

' '24,76'5' 15,328 13.408

Stite; Locatand Foreign’
Current
Deferred

Total Provision

Deferrad income taxes at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following (in thousands):

204t 2618
.. .1 S— ]

Deférred tax agsetd :
Unearned and deferred {:ompeﬁsatmn
Qthier £

Deferred tax Habilities : o
Receivables from affiliates o (14378 (14 290)
In¥ééimientes : Siie CIASRRYE 2077,
Ciher — _ __g_?S );

Net deferred tax liability $(44 127) $(35,293)
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A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes with the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before provision for income
taxes for the periods presented is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended Dacember 31,
0ig

B4 283
17, 35.0%
& et

Prictuy incotris front fsable subsidisdes s Dy
Federal pravision at statutory tax rate {35%)
Btiteiand localtaies net of federal benighe o
Amortization of intangible assets
Ofigr s
Tax provision — taxable subsidiaries
Cothiet stie; Tocal and foréipn tives
Fotal provision

5.0
VLR

%

FotT
322,79

Included in Income taxes, net in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are accrued income taxes totating $0.7 million and $6.1 million,
respectively, and deferred income taxes totaling $44.1 mitlion and $35.3 million, respectively.

We have elected to be treated as a partnership for U.8, federal income tax purposes. As partnerships, we and our partnership subsidiaries are generally not directly
subject to tax. We conduct our investment management services primarily through taxable subsidiaries. These operations are subject 1o federal, state, local and foreign
taxes, as applicable. We conduel business in the U.S. and the European Union, and as a result, we or one or more of our subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S,
federal jurisdiction angd various state and certain foreign jurisdictions. Certain of our inter-company transactions that have been eliminated in consolidation for financial
accounting purposes are also subject to taxation. Periodically, shares in the REITs that are payable to our taxable subsidiaries in consideration for services rendered are
distributed from these subsidiaries to us.

At January 1, 2010, we had unrecognized tax benefits of $0.6 miifion (net of federal benefits}, if recognized, would affect our effective tax rate. During 2010, we
reversed the unrecognized tax benefits, including all related interest totaling 30.1 million, as they were no longer required.

Our tax returns are subject to audit by taxing authorities. Such audits can often take years to complete and setie. The tax years 2008 through 2011 remain open to
examination by the major taxing jurisdictions to which we are subject.

Our subsidiary, Carey REIT 11, owns our real estate assets and has elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code. In connection with the CPA®;14/16 Merger in May 2011, we formed Carey REIT I to hold the Special Member Interest in the newly formed
operating partnership of CPA®:16 ~ Global (Note 3). Carey REIT HI has also elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code. We
believe we have operated, and we intend to continue to operate, in a manner that allows Carey REIT Il and Carey REIT IH to continue to qualify as real estate
invesiment trusts. Under the real estate investment trust operating structure, Carey REIT IE and Carey REIT III are permitted to deduct distributions paid to our
shareholders and generally wili not be required to pay U.S. federal income taxes. Accordingly, ne provision has been made for U.S. federal income taxes in the
consolidated financial statements related to either Carey REIT II or Carey REFT 111

Note 16, Discontineed Operations

From fime {0 tire, tenants may vacate space due to lease buy-outs, elections not te renew their leases, insolvency or lease rejection in the bankruptey process. In these
cases, we assess whether we can obtain the highest value from the property by re-leasing or selling it. In addition, in certain cases, we may try to sell a property that is
occupied. Wher it is appropriate to do 50 under current accountiag guidance for the disposal of long-tived assets, we classify the property as an asset held for sale on
our consolidated balance sheet and the current and prior period results of operations of the property are reclassified as discontinued operasions.
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The results of operations for properties that are held for sale or have been sold are reflected in the conselidated financial statements as discontinued operations for all
periods presented and are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011

Revénuesi i

Expenses N i
Graf o deconsolidation of:a subsidiar
(Loss) gain on sale of real estate
Tinpairment charges:

(Loss) income from discontinued operations

2011 — During the vear ended December 31, 2011, we sold seven domestic properties for $12.5 million, net of selling costs, and recognized a net foss on these sales of
$3.4 million, excluding impairment charges of less than $0.1 million and $2.7 miition previously recognized during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

In September 2011, one of our subsidiaries consented to a court order appointing a receiver when it stopped making payments on the nor-recourse debt obligation on a
property after the tenant, Career Education Institute, vacated it. As we no longer had control over the activities that most significantly impact the economic
performance of this subsidiary following possession of the property by the receiver, we deconsolidated the subsidiary during the third quarter of 2011. As of the date of
deconsolidation, the property had a carrying value of $5.3 million, reflecting the impact of impairment charges totaling $5.6 million recognized during 2010, and the
related nen-recourse mortgage loan had an outstanding balance of $6.3 million, In connection with the deconsolidation, we recognized a gain of $1.0 million during the
third quarter of 2011. We believe that our retained interest in this deconsolidated entity had no value at the date of deconsotidation.

2010 — We sold seven properties [or a total of $14.6 million, net of selling costs, and recognized a net gain on these sales totaling $0.5 million, excluding impairment
charges totating $5.9 million and $6.0 million that were previously recognized in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

2009 — We sold five properties for $43.5 million, net of selling costs, and recognized a net gain on sale of $7.7 million, excluding impairment charges of $0.9 million,
$0.5 miilion and $0.6 miliion recognized in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Note 17. Segment Reporiing

‘We evaluate our resulis from operations by our two major business segments — Investment Management and Real Estate Ownership (Note 1), Effective January 1,
2011, we include our equity investments in the REITS in our Real Estate Ownership segment, The equity income or loss from the REITs that is now included in our
Real Estate Ownership segment represents our proportionate share of the revenue less expenses of the net-leased properties held by the REITs. This treaiment is
consistent with that of our directly-owned properites. Results for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 have been reclassifted to conform to the current peried
presentation. The following table presents a summary of comparative results of these business segments (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010

Tnivestmenit Minagement
Revenues® )
Operating expenses ¢

Other, net®
Provision for incomme taxes .

Income from continuing operations atiributabl
Keal Estate Ownérship
Revenwes
Dperating expense

é td W P, Carey members

59T
(21,9209
B3

ers 269,454 3228381
Operating expenses @ 175,733 (149.754)
Interesrespense: IS5 14462Y

COther, net®

Frovisiot for incen i Yorty e {22I0%y
Income from continuing operations attributable te W. P. Carey members 3 141,320 3 85262 § 62322
Total Long-Lived Assets Total Asgets
at December 31, ¢ #t December 31,

201E 2010
o - : : T T e
Real Estate Ownership 1217.931
Total Corpany: (UET 950,504

(a)  Included in revenues and operating expenses are reimbursable costs from affitiates totaling $64.8 million, $60.0 million, and $47.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

(b)  Includes Other interest income, Income from equity investmenis in real estate and the REITs, Gain on change in control of interests, Incomse (loss) attributable to
nencontrolling interests, Income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest and Other income and (expenses). Equity earnings that represent our
proportionate share of revenue less expenses of the net-leased properties held by the REITs are included in Real Estate Ownership segment. However, cash
distributions of our proportionate share of earnings from the operating partnerships of CPA®:16 - Global and CPA®:17 - Glebal and the amortization of deferred
revenue related to our Special Member Interest in the operating partnership of CPA®:16 — Global are included in the Investment Management segment.

(¢)  Included within the Real Estate Ownership segment is our total investment in shares of CPA®:16 — Global, which represents approximately 23% of our total
assets at December 31, 2011 (Note 6).

(d) Longlived assets include Net investments in real estate and intangible assets refated 1o management contraets.
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Geographic information for our Real Estate Ownership segment is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2011
Regvenieg i o
Operating expenses

Dnmesnc

BA0I3

_ (59 108)
Trierestexpange’ i
Other, net ®
Prévision for meome saxes. ; S S 1i
Income from ccmtmu:ng opera%zons mnbutable to W P Carey members & 58088 £ 9,243 § 67 331

T

I3 $.1334.086
Total long-lived assets $ 1,131,845

£,217.931

Domesuc

Opératlng expenses

Interest@xpanse:

Other, net ®

Pravision forinceme tayes :
Income frum conimumg operatlnns attﬂbutab]e to W, P. Carey members 3 37 554

Total ssstss G $ooesqie % 7

Total !ong—l weé assets $ 877849 § 69126

Year Ended December 31, i ) e Domestic angg ®

Reévenues: g e : SRI65289 IS TN

Ogperating expenses o (37 175) ] (2 419y

Intérestiéxpense - SUZARY 05‘!);

Urther, net @

Provision Tor ncomes faxss: L 063N M8y
Income from contmumg Dperatmns attributable to W. P, Carey members 3 22934 $ 8,321 $ 31263

Tolabageste i = CEBLGARR g DS 0R

Total long-lived assets $ 836,549 $ 47911 $ 884460

{8} Al years include operations in France, Germany and Poland; and 2010 and 2011 also include operations in Spaia.
{p)  Includes Interest income, Income from equity investments in real estate and the REITs, Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests and Other income
and (expenses),
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Note 18, Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaundited)
{Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Thiee Months Ended
Hei G e March 38 2011 Fune 30, 2011
pnieat® ' U 17 8es
Expenses ® 17843

Metincome. TR
384
S

Add: tiributable to noncontroling
S P ase Nt IncOmE AR butable 15 fedesmabie hioncontrolling Tnferésts’
Net income attributable to W, P, Carey members

il Shar ttribitable 16 WP CArdy vismburs

0512 6.550 0,560 G.563

Three Months Ended
Seplember 30, 2010
e 8.04

... March 31,2010
42341

Add: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests o
LRSS N ndomie Stibitable fo'fedeemable fontontrolling intérests
Net income attributable to W. P, Carey members
Batiings per shaie AtrTBITEbIE v WP Catey membBerios
Basic
dinDilied:

Distributions declared per share

{(a)  Cerfain amounts from previous quarters have been reclassified to discontinued operations (Note 16}
() Amount for the three months ended June 30, 2011 includes $52.5 million of incentive, termination and subordinated disposition revenue recognized in
connection with the CPA®:14/16 Merger (Note 3).

Note 19, Subsequent Event
Proposed Merger

On February 17, 2012, we and CPA®:15 entered into a definitive agreement pursuant to which CPA®:15 will merge with and into one of our subsidiaries for a
combination of cash and shares of our common stock as described below. In connection with the Proposed Merger, we plan to file a registration staternent with the
SEC regarding the shares of our common stock to be issued to shareholders of CPA®:15 in the Proposed Merger. Special meetings will be scheduled to obtain the
approval of CPA®:15"s shareholders of the Proposed Merger and the approvat of our shareholders of the Proposed Merger and the Proposed REIT Reorganization
described below. The closing of the Proposed Merger is also subject te customary closing conditions. I the Proposed Merger is approved and the other closing
conditions are met, we currently expect that the closing will oceur by the third quarter of 2012, although there can be no assurance of such iming.

At December 31, 2011, CPA®:15"s portfolio was comprised of full or partial ownership in 315 properties, substantiatly all of which were triple-net leased with an
average remaining life of 10.4 years and an estimated annual contractual minimum base rent of $223.0 million (on a pro raia basis). We expect to assume the refated
property debt comprised of 74 fixed-rate and seven variable-rate non-
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recourse mortgage oans with an aggregate fair value of $1.2 billion and a weighted-average annual interest rate of 5.7% at Pecember 31, 2011 (on a pro rata basis).
During 2011, we eamed $26.0 million in fees from CPA®:15 and recognized $3.4 million in equity earnings based on our ownership of shares in CPA®:15.

We have also obtained a commitment for a $175.0 million term loan as part of our credit facility in order to pay for the cash portion of the consideration in the
Proposed Merger. Our commitment expires on the earlier of the termination or closing of the Proposed Merger or September 30, 2012. The commitment fetters are
subject t0 a number of ¢losing conditions, including the lenders® satisfaciory completion of due diligence and determination that no material adverse change has
occurred, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the term [oan on aceeptable terms or at ail.

In the Proposed Merger, CPA®:15 shareholders will be entitled to receive a $1.25 in cash and 0.2326 shares of our common stock for each share of CPA®: 15 common
stock owned, which equated to $11.73 per share of CPA®:15 common stock based on our $45.07 per share closing price as of February 17, 2012, the date that the
merger agreement was signed. The estimated total Proposed Merger consideration includes cash of approximately $151.8 million and the issuance of approximately
28,241,600 of our shares, based on the toial shares of CPA®:15 outstanding of 131,566,206, of which 10,153,074 shares were owned by us, on February 17,2012, Asa
condition of the Proposed Merger, we have agreed fo waive our subordinated disposition and termination fees.

If the Proposed Merger is approved, immediately prier to merging, we plan to reorganize as a real estate investment trust, The Propesed REIT Reorganization is an
internal reorganization of cur corporate streciure into a real estate investment trust to hold substantially all of our real estate assets attributable o our Real Estate
Cwhiership segment while the activities conducted by our Investment Management segment subsidiaries will be organized under taxable real estate investment trust
subsidiaries. This Proposed REIT Reorganization is expected to be tax-free for U.S. Federal purposes, except for the cash consideration.
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W. P. CAREY & CO. LLC
SCHEDULE III — REAL ESTATE and ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION

December 31, 2011
{in thousands)
1ile on which
Grass Amsount at which Depreciation in
Costs Capitallzed increase Curried Eafest Statement
Ineitind Cost o Company Subseq to (D in Net at Close of Peried & Accunulated Date of Incame iz

Depreé;atinn

Description, Lang Buildings Acquisition Investments <0 Land  Buildiags Total Computed
 Operating Lease
Office facilities in

Broomfield. CO_ 8 — 85 248 % 2538 § 4844 5 (1784) $2528 §$ 2918 S 5846 § 1143  Jan 1998 a0 yrs
T .

& i

Re!all stores in
Montgormery and
Brewton, AL i L3867 o 1A W4y A2

Wﬂr&fhouse!dlsls ution

Gomreres, CA
OfflCE famhty in
’foledo O_H

'Gosi—u& :
Office faclll;‘y in
t, T

 Raleigh N
Of’ﬁce faczllty in ng

of Prussia, PA 1219 6,283 1,295 1219 7578 8797 2461  Jan 199% _d0ys.
" b

Industnal Tacilities in
Pinconning, MS
Tndustrial faeilid

Land leased in several
cities in: the
following states:
Alabama, Florida,
Georgia, Blinois,
Louisiana,
Missouri, New
Mexico, North
Carolina, South
Carolina and Texas

: gd'iﬂ :
Industnal facxllty in
Doraw!ie GA,

Land in Irving and
Houston, TX
Higustrat facility |

! £r;
Warehousefdistr:butlon
facilities in
Heusmn ’I'X

Office faciiities i m
Bridgeton, MO

Emiusma] facilitys
S Indusiny GA
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Life on which

Bepreciation in
Cns!s Capitalized {Decrease) Gross Amount at which Corried Lattat Statement
Initial Cost to O ¢ te T in Net at Close of Period () A lated Date of Income is
. Deprectation
Description Encumbrances Land Buildings Acquisition #) Tnvestments @ Land Buildings Tetal [ Acquired Computed

Retail stores in
Drayton Plains, MI

and Citrus Heighis,
1,039 5.146 6,185 920 ian. 1998 35yrs,

AT 110, 855
Retaii store in
Bellevue, WA
Oﬂ‘we faciisy:
 Hetston
Office fagility in Rio
Rancho, NM
Vidatitorice
% in Moo N
Office facility i in
Nm‘crcss GA

16330

Off ce faminy in '
Illklrch France 14,098 — 18,520 - 8555 — 27,075 27075 7971 Dec.200f 40yrs

Office bmldmgs in
Venice, CA

8383
(5,530)

!adustria] famhty in
Scottsdaie AZ

Retmi faclimes n
__Charlotte_ NC

Industnal facility in
Sunmrvaie CA

Retasl store in
Wroclaw, Poland .

faciiity in Mailorca,
Spain )
Indusiﬂal and

3286216 $120905 $526762 3 57,384 % (58 569} $111483 §534.950 3646452 § 118,054
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Gross Amount at

Casts Capitalized which Carried
Initinl Cast te Company Subsequent to Decrease in Net # Cloge of Date
Ime_e‘!g;:emn

Descrighen Encumbrances Land _Bulldings Acquisition ® ) L Period Total  Atquired

Divect Financiig Methody R T : : B LR ; : ; R

Retai! stores in several cities in the {ollowing states: Alabama,

Florida, Georgia, filinois, Louisiana, Missour, New

Meﬂco Neﬁ.b Carolina. South Carnima and chas 3
2 . . .

Indus‘h 2 facihues in Thurmons, MD and Farmmglor, INY
i v aidk How o TTx

: _ aTsoN s s
21,805 § 1R 5 G 8 5 3 (6551 8§

Life om which
Depreciation
Gross Amount at which Carried in Latest
Initial Cost to Company Costs Capitalized  Decrease at Clase of Perlod Statement of
In Net Aceumulated
Perwnnl Sub t to n ts Personal Depregiation Date Income is
Description ances  Land  Bulldings Property Acgulsibon {2} ) nd  Buildings Propert Totat () Acquired Compated
Operating Real Estaler o SORPE et ik SRS : i
Hotel located in L1vonis,
ML 32765 § 11087 § 3816 ¥ 12,623 A 3 $ 0468 3 26319

SelfsiniagETaaliE
Lon: N

Belt slei’ége faciiity in
Newdngton, CT

Selfsmnr@_ T

S FortWorhs

Self storage facthizy m
GA

X
Se!r storage fanlny n
Lawrenceulle GA

oriille,

Self siorage fam]ny in
Tallahasses, FL
Self sioragy Naciily i
i Parpaeola;
Self storage facility in
hicago, IL 2,118 1,785 2,617 —_
SR 1Vt N LT R T ) (e e
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(a)
]

{c}

W, P. CAREY & CO. LLC

NOTES TO SCHEDULE I . REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
(in thousands)

Consists of the cost of improvements and acquisition costs subsequent to acquisition, including legal fees, appraisal fees, title costs, other related professional
fees and purchases of furniture, fixtures, equipment and improvements at the hotel properties.

The increase {decrease) in net investment is primarily due to (i} the amertization of unearned incerne from net investment in direct financing leases, which
produces a periodic rate of refurn that at times may be greater or less than lease payments received, {ii} sales of properties, (iif) impairment charges, {iv) changes
in foreign currency exchange rates, and {v) adjustmenis in connection with purchasing certain noncontrolling interests.

Reconciliation of real estate and accurnulated depreciation (see below):

Reconcifiation of Reaf Estate Subject to

Dyperating Leyses
Years Ended Becember 31,

2011 2010 2009
EURTSE0,8020 IS a8 B0 i g 663¢044.5“;
107,484 67,787
Yooy 4 :
(1,237

Halance at'beginning of vear
Additions
Didpaiitishg:
Foreign currency translat: on ad]ustment
Rectussitication from{
“pekets held for sale :
Deconsolldaﬂon of real estate asset

Imipiadeanent Chiarges H{13:554): e Y.
Bazlance at end of year 3 646 482 $ 560592 § 525 607

Reconciliation of Accumudated Depreciatioa for

Reat Estate Subject to Operating Leases
Years Ended D ber 31,

Dlsposxtmns‘_: :
Fareign currencv lranslatlon

Deconsohdatlon of real estate asset '_ B '
Balanceatend oliyeas '

Reconciliation of (Operatng Real Extate

Years Ended December 31,
EOIT 2007

Ralines s beginning of Year/
Additions/Capital expenditures

Balince @t endofvear: !
Reconciliation of Acenmulated Depreciation for
Operating Real Estate
Years Ended December 31, i
Bralance at beginning of vei

Depreciation expense
Balaniceat end 6f veuar

At December 31, 2011, the aggregate cost of real estate that we and our consolidated subsidiaries own for federal income tax purposes was approximately $824.3

million.
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Ttem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants o Accounting and Figancial Disclosure,
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures,

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our disclosure controls and procedures include our controls and other procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in
this and other reports filed undet the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”} is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
required time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, 1o aflow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. It shoutd be noted that no system of controis can provide
cémplete assurance of achieving a company’s objectives and that future events may impact the effectiveness of a system of controls,

Qur chief executive officer and chief financial officer, after conducting an evaluation, together with members of our management, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2011, have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
under the Exchange Act) were effective as of December 31, 2011 at a reasonable level of assurance,

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act).
Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extermal purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Our internal contro] over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (i} provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of
firtancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that our receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (fii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
uhauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitafions, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect missiatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of cotnpliance with
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting at December 31, 201 1. In making this assessment, we used criteria set forth in Intemal
Controf — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Based on our assessmend, we concluded
shat, at Decerober 31, 2011, our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of our internaj control over financial reporting at Decemnber 31, 2011 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an mdependent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their atestation report in Item 8.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internat control over financial reposting during our most recently completed fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or arc
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None,
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PART HI

Item 16. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance,

This information wifl be contained in our definitive progy statement for the 2012 Annua! Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed within 120 days following the end of our
fiscal year, and is incorporated by reference.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.

This information will be contained in our definitive proxy statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, 10 be filed within 120 days following the end of our
fiscat year, and is incorporated by reference.

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockhoider Matters,

This information will be contained in our definitive proxy statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed within 120 days following the end of our
fiseal year, and is incorporated by reference.

Tem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

This information will be contained in our definitive proxy statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed within 120 days foliowing the end of our
fiscal year, and is incorporated by reference.

Rem 14, Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

This information will be contained in our definitive proxy statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed within 120 days foltowing the end of our
fiscal year, and is incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Ttem 15. Exhibits, Financial Staterment Schedules,

(1) and (2} — Financial statements and schedules — see index to financial statements and schedules included in Item 8,

Other Financial Statements:

Corporate Property Associates 16 — Global Incorporated

{3) Exhibits:

The Following exhibits are filed as part of ¢his Report. Documents other than those designated as being filed herewith are incorporated herein by reference.

Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

1.2

3

10.4

10.5

10.6

£0.7

i0.8

1¢.10

10.11

10.12

Description

Method of Filing

Amended and Restaled Limited Liability Company Agreement
Amended and Restated Bylaws
Form of Listed Share Stock Certificate

Management Agreement Between Carey Management L1.C and the
Company

1997 Non-Employee Directors” Incentive Plan (Amended and restated as
of April 23, 2007) *

W. P, Carey & Co. LLC 1997 Share [ncentive Plan (Amended through
June 11, 2009) (the “1997 Share Incentive Plan™) *

W. P. Carey & Co. Long-Term Incentive Program
W.P. Carey & Co. LLC Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees *

W. P. Carey & Co. LLC 2009 Share Incentive Plan (the *“2009 Share
Incentive Plan”™) *

Form of Share Option Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive Plan *

Form of Restricted Share Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive Plan
*

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive
Plan *

Form of Long-Term Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the
2009 Share Incentive Plan *

W. P. Carey & Co. LLC 200% Non-Employee Directors’ Incentive Plan
(the “2009 Directors Plan™) *

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2009 Directors Plan *

http://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html

Incerporated by teference 1o Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2006 filed August 9, 2006

Incerporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference 1o Registration Staternent on Form S-4 (No.
333.37901) filed October 15, 1997

Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No,
333-37901) filed October 15, 1957

Incorporated by reference 1o Schedule 14A filed April 30, 2007

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Ferm 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 3 1, 2008 filed March 2, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Annuat Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2008 filed March 2, 2000

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to definitive proxy statement filed
April 30, 2009 (the “200% Proxy Statérnent™)

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Repori on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B te the 2009 Proxy Statement

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-() for the
quarter ended June 30, 2609 filed August &, 2009
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Exhibit No., Description Method of Filing

10,13 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement dated as of October 1, 2009 Incorporaied by reference to Quarterly Report en Form 10-Q for the
between Corporate Property Associates 13 Incorporated and Carey Asset guarter ended Septernber 30, 2009 filed November 6, 2009
Management Corp.

i0.14 Asset Management Agreement dated as of July 1, 2008 between Corporate  Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report or: Form 10-Q for the
Property Associates 15 Incorporated and W. P. Carey & Co. B. V. quarter ended June 30, 2008 filed August 8, 2008

10.15 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement dated as of October 1, 2009 Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
between Corporate Property Associates 17 — Global Incorporated and quarter ended September 30, 2009 fifed November 6, 2009
Carey Asset Management Corp.

10.16 Asset Management Agresment dated as of July 1, 2008 between Corporate  Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the
Property Associates 17 — Global Incorporated and W, P. Carey & Co. B quarter ended June 30, 2008 filed August 8, 2008
V.

1017 Advisory Agreement dated September 15, 2010 between Carey Watermark  Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
investors Incorporated, CWI1 OP, LP, and Carey Lodging Advisars, LLC guarter ended September 30, 2010 fited November 5, 2010

10,18 Agreement and Pian of Merger dated as of December 13, 2010 by and Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
among Corporate Property Associates 14 Incorporated, Corporate Property  December 14, 2010
Associates |6 ~ Global Incorporated, CPA. 16 Merger Sub Inc., a
subsidiary of CPA #;16, CPA 16 Holdings Inc., CPA 16 Acquisition Inc.,
CPA 14 Sub Inc., W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, and, for the limited purposes
set forth therein, Carey Asset Managemeni Corp. and W. P. Carey & Co.
B. V., each a subsidiary of W. P. Carey

10.19 Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 13, 2010 by and Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
among Corporate Property Associates 14 Incorporated and W. P Carey &  December 14, 2010
o LLC

10.20 Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement, dated May 2, 2011, by and Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on
among Carey Asset Management Corp., Corporate Property Associales 16 Form 8-K filed May 6, 2011 by Corporate Property Associates 16—~
~ Global Incorporated and CPA 16 LL.C Global Incorporated, Commission File No, 001-32162

10.21 Asset Management Agreement, dated May 2, 2011, by and among W. P. Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Carey & Co. BV, Corporate Property Associates 16 — Global quarter ended June 30, 2011 filed August 9, 2011
Incorporated and CPA 16 LLC

10.22 Credit Agreement dated as of December 28, 2011, by and among the Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed

Borrowers set forth therein, W. P. Carey & Co. LLC as guarantor, the
Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A, a3
Administrative Agent
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Exbibit No. Deseription - _ Method of Filing
1023 Agreement and Plan of Merger Agreement dated as of February 17, 2012, Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
by and among W, P. Carey & Co. LLC and W, P. Carey REIT, Inc. Februaey 21, 2012
1024 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 7, 2012, by and Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
between Corporate Property Associates 15 Incorporated, CPA 15 Holdeo,  February 21,2012
Inc., W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, W, P. Carey REIT, Inc., CPA 15 Merger
Sub Inc., a subsidiary of W. P. Carey REIT, Inc., and, for the limited
purposes set forth therein, Carey Asset Management Corp. and W. P,
Carey & Co. B. V., each a subsidiary of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC.
10.25 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 17, 2012, incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-X filed
by and among the Borrowers set forth therein, W. P, Carey & Co, LLC as February 21, 2012
guarantor, the Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent.
2311 List of Registrant Subsidiaries Filed herewith
231 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LEP Filed herewith
311 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
312 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
32 Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
59.1 Director and Officer Indemnification Policy Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report en Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August §, 2009
99.2 Financizl Statements and Supplemental Data of Corporate Property Incorporated by reference to Item 8 of the Annuzl Report on Form 10-XK

Associates 16 — Global Incorporated

http://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 htmi
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£xbibit Mo, Description Method of Filing
101 The foliowing materials from W, P. Carey & Co. LLC’s Annual Report Filed herewith

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201§, formatted in
XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated
Balance Sheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010, (i) Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, (iit) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
years ended December 31, 2G11, 2010 and 2009, (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
20609, (v} Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, (vi) Notes to Conselidated Financial
Statements, {vii) Schedute I - Real Estate and Accumulated
Depreciations, and {viii} Notes to Schedule [[1**

The referenced exhibit is a management contract or compensation plan or arrangetnient described in Itern 601{b¥ 10)(iii) of SEC Regulation S-K.

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Datz Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of a regisiration statement or prospectus
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securlies Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

*k
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the

undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date February 29, 2012

W. P. Carey & Co. LLC

By: /s/ Mark J. DeCesaris

Mark 3. DeCesaris

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant o the reguirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the

capacities and on the dates indicated.

S5

/s/ Trevor P. Bond

Trevor P, Bond
s/ Mark J. DeCesaris

Mark J. DeCesaris
/s/ Hisham A Kader

Hisham A. Kader
/s/ Benjamin H. Griswold, IV

Benjamin H. Griswold, IV

/5! Franeis §, Carey

Francis J. Carey
/s/ Nathanie} §. Coolidge

Nathaniel 8. Coolidge
/s/ Eberhard Faber IV

Ebherhard Faber [V
fsf Axel KA. Hansing

Axel K A Hansing

s/ Dr. Karsten von Kéiler

Dr. Karsten von Koller
fs/ Richard C. Marston

Richard C. Marston
/s/ Roberi E, Mittelstaedt

Robert E. Mittelstaedt

/s/ Nicolaas J.M. van Ommen

Nicolaas J.M. van Ommen
5/ Charles E. Patente

Charles E. Parente
/s/ Reginald Winssinger

Reginald Winssinger

http://ir. wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 . html

Title

Chief Execntive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

{Principal Financiat Officer)}

Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller

{Principal Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board and Director

Bhirector

Director

BPirector

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Dhirector

Date

Pebruary 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012
February 29, 2012

February 29, 2012
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Report. Documents other than those designated as being filed herewith are incorporated herein by reference.

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Incarporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form 5-4 (No.
Incorporated by reference to Registration Staternent on Form $-4 (No.
Incorporated by reference to Schedule 14A filed April 30, 2007
Incorporated by reference to Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the
Encorporated by reference to Annual Repost ont Form 10-K for the year
Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
Encorporated by reference to Exhibit A 1o definitive proxy statement filed
Incorporated by reference to Guarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

Incorperated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-G for the

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B 10 the 2009 Proxy Statement

ExBibit No, Degeviption
31 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement
quarter ended June 30, 2006 filed August 8, 2006
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws
quarter ended June 30, 200% filed August 6, 2009
4.1 Form of Listed Share Stock Certificate
333-37901} filed October 15, 1997
B Management Agreement Between Carey Management LLC and the
Company 333-37901) filed October 15, 1997
£0.2 1297 Non-Employee Directors’ Incentive Plan {Amended and restated as
of Apri 23, 2007y *
10.3 W. P. Carey & Co. LLC 1997 Share Incentive Plan {Amended through
June 11, 2009) (the “1997 Share Incentive Plan™} * quarter ended Fune 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
10.4 W. P. Carey & Co. Long-Term Incentive Program
ended December 31, 2008 filed March 2, 2009
10.5 W.P. Carey & Co. LLC Deferred Compensation Plan for Employees *
ended December 31, 2008 filed March 2, 2009
10.6 W_P. Carey & Co. LLC 2009 Share Incentive Plan (the “2009 Share
Incentive Plan™) * April 30, 2009 {the “2009 Proxy Statement™)
10.7 Form of Share Option Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive Plan *
quarter ended June 39, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
10.8 Form of Restricted Share Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive Plan
* quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
10.9 Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2009 Share Incentive
Plan * quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
10.10 Form of Long-Term Performance Share Unit Award Agreement under the
2009 Share Incentive Plan * quarter ended June 30, 2069 filed August 6, 2009
10.1% W. P. Carey & Co. LLC 2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Incentive Plan
(the “2009 Directors Plan™) *
10,12 Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement under the 2009 Directors Plan *

http://ir. wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
guarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
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Exhibit No.

168.13

10.14

1015

10.16

10.17

10.18

16.1%

14.20

10.21

1022

Bescription

Method of Filing

Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement dated as of October 1, 2009
between Corporate Property Associates 15 Incorporated and Carey Asset
Management Corp.

Asset Management Agreement dated as of July 1, 2008 between Corporate
Property Associates 15 Incorporated and W. P. Carey & Co. B. V.

Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement dated as of October 1, 2009
between Corporate Property Associates 17 — Global Incorporated and
Carey Asset Management Corp.

Asset Management Agreement dated as of July [, 2008 between Corporate
Property Associates 17 — Global Incorporated and W. P. Carey & Co. B.
V.

Advisory Agreement dated September 15, 2010 between Carey Watermark
Investors Incorporated, CW1 OP, LP, and Carey Lodging Advisors, LLC

Agreement and Pian of Merger dated as of December {3, 2010 by and
amaong Corporate Property Associates 14 Incorporated, Corporate Property
Associates 16 — Global Incorporated, CPA 16 Merger SubInc, 2
subsidiary of CPA ®:16, CPA 16 Holdings Inc., CPA 16 Acquisition Inc.,
CPA 14 Sub inc., W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, and, for the limited purposes
set forth therein, Carey Asset Management Corp. and W. P. Carey & Co.
B. V., each a subsidiary of W. P. Carey

Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of December 13, 2010 by and
among Corporate Property Associates 14 Incorporated and W. P. Carey &
Co. LLC

Amended and Restated Advisory Agreement, dated May 2, 2011, by and
ameng Carey Asset Management Corp., Corporate Property Associates 16
- lobal Incorporated and CPA 161.1.C

Asset Management Agreement, dated May 2, 2011, by and among W. P,
Carey & Co. B.V,, Corporaie Property Associates {6 — Global
Encorporated and CPA 16 LLC

Credit Apreement dated as of December 28, 2011, by and among the
Borrowers set forth therein, W, P. Carey & Co. 1LLC as guarantor, the
Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A_, a8
Administrative Agent

http://ir.wpcarey com/Cache/c12801522 html

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2009 filed November 6, 2009

Incorperated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
uarter ended June 30, 2008 filed August 8, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2009 filed November 6, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2008 filed August 8, 2008

incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter encted Septemnber 30, 20190 filed November 5, 2010

Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-X filed
Becember 14, 2010

Incorporated by reference to the Current Repert on Form 8-K filed
December 14, 2010

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May &, 2011 by Corporate Property Associates 16 —lobal
Incorporated, Commission File No. 00132162

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended Fune 30, 201 | filed August 9, 2011

Incorporated by reference to the Curreni Report on Form 8-K filed
January 4, 2012
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Exhibit No, Description — Method of ¥illng
16.23 Agreement and Plan of Merger Agreement dated as of February 17, 2012, incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
by and among W, P. Carey & Co. LLC and W. P. Carey REIT, Inc. February 21, 2012
10.24 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 17, 2012, by and Encorposated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-X filed
between Corporate Property Associates 15 incorporated, CPA 15 Holdeo,  February 21, 2012
Inc., W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, W, P. Carey REIT, Inc, CPA |5 Merger
Sub inc., a subsidiary of W. P, Carey REIT, Inc., and, for the limited
purposes set forth therein, Carey Asset Management Corp. and W. P.
Carey & Co. BV, each a subsidiary of W. P, Carey & Co. LLC.
10.25 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 17, 2012, Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
by and among the Borrowers set forth therein, W. P, Carey & Co, LLC as February 21, 2012
guarantor, the Lenders from time to time party thereto, and Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent.
21.1 List of Registrant Subsidiaries Filed herewith
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Filed herewith
311 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
32 Certifications pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
99.1 Director and Officer Indemmification Policy Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report on Form 16-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2009 filed August 6, 2009
99.2 Firancial Staterments and Supplemental Data of Corporate Property Incorporated by reference 1o Item § of the Annual Report on Form 16-K

Associates 16—Global Incorporated

hitp://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html

filed February 29, 2012 by Corporate Property Associates 16 — Global
Incorporated, Commission Fite No. 001-32162
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Exhibit Na. _ Degeription _ _ - Method of Filing
101 The following materials from W. P. Carey & Co. LLC’s Annual Report Filed herewith

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, formatted in
XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i} Consolidated
Baiance Sheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 20kE, 2010 and
2009, (iii} Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, (iv) Consolidated
Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, {vi} Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, (vii) Schedule I1T - Real Estate and Accumulated
Depreciations, and {viii) Notes to Schedule 1I1.**

* The referenced exhibit is a management contract or compensation plan or arrangement described in Fem 601(b)(10){iii} of SEC Regulation S-K.

**  Pyursuang to Rule 4067 of Regulation 5-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not fifed or part of a registration statement or prospectus
for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amendead, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections,

Back To Top)

Section 2: EX-21.1 (EX-21.1)

W. P. Carey 2011 10-K — 122

Exhibit 21.1
W.P. CAREY & CO, LLC
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

Statg or Counfry
Name of Subsidiary of Encorporation
{CA) Ads, LLC Delaware
{CA)CHCLP Prelaware
24 HR TX {TX) Limited Partoership Delaware
24 BR-TX {MDj} Business Trust Maryiand
24 HR-TX GP{TX) QRS 12-66, Inc. Delaware
308 Route 38 LLC Delaware
308 Route 38, Inc. Delaware
50 Rock Partners New York
620 Eighth Lender NYT (NY) Limited Partnership Delaware
620 Eighth NYT (NY) Limited Partnership Delaware
&7th Street Storage {ILYLLC Delaware
87th Street Storage Owner {IL) LL.C Delaware
Amin {CA) QRS 14-147, Inc. Delaware
Amin Landlord LL.C Delaware
Amin Member {CA) QRS 14-108, Inc. Delaware
ANTHWPC (CAYLLC Delaware
Asiainvest LLC Delaware
AW WPC(KY)LLC Delaware
AZO Driver (DE)LLC Delaware
AZQ Mechanic {DE) LLC Delaware
AZQ Navigater (DE) LLC Delaware
AZO Valet (DE) LLC Delaware
AZQ-ALP. Delgware
AZO-BL.P. Delaware
AZO-CL.P. Delaware
AZO-DLP. Delaware
Bedford WPC Storage (1L} LLC Delaware
Best Storage {(FLYLLC Delaware
BiliCDLLC Delaware
Bone (DEYLLC Delaware
Bone Manager, Inc. Exelaware
Brassington Limited Hong Kong
BRI (MNYLLC Delaware
Broomfieid Properties Corp. Colorado
Build (CA} QRS 12-24, Inc. California
Cati LLC Delaware
{arey Asset Management Corp. Dielaware
Cargy Financial, LL.C Delaware
Carey Lodging Advisors, LLC Delaware
Carey Management LLC Delaware
Carey Management Services, Inc. Delaware
Carey Noreross, LL.C. Delaware
Carey REIT ], Inc. Maryland
Carey REIT 111, Inc. Maryland
Carey REIT, Inc, Maryland
Carey Seif-Storage Participation, LLC Delaware
http://ir.wpcarey.com/Cache/c12801522 html 6/21/2012
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Carey Storage ACES GP LLC Texas
Carey Storage Asset Management LLC Delaware
Carey Storage I {CA) Rohnert LLC Delaware
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SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT {Continued)

State or Country
Name of Subsidiary of Iucorporation
Carey Storage 1 (FL) Buji Run LLC Delaware
Carey Storage I (GA) Ameristor LLC Delaware
Carey Storage 1 (GA) Store House LLC Delaware
Carey Storage 1 (MA) LLL.C Delaware
Carey Storage 1 (OH) Artmor LLC Delaware
Carey Storage I {TX) Aces LI.C Delaware
Carey Storage § (TX) Beltline LP Texas
Carey Storage I (TX) Tarrant LP Texas
Carey Storage Management LLC Delaware
Carey Storage Member LLC Delaware
Carey Storage Mezz [ LLC Delaware
Carey Storage Opportunity Fund | LLC Delaware
Carey Storage Participation LLC Delaware
Cargy Storage TRS DE 16-155 Inc, Delaware
Carey Techrolegy Properties II LLC Delaware
Carey Waternmark Holdings, LLC llinois
Carey/HUSREFIV Self-Storage Holdings LLC llinois
Carlog 1 SARL France
Carlog 2 SARL France
Carlog SCI France
CCARE {Multi) Limited Partnership Delaware
CDUPLP Delaware
CDC Paying Agent LL.C Delaware
Chkfree WPC Member (GA) LLC Delaware
Citrus Heights (CA} GP, LLC Delaware
CLA Holdings, LLC Delaware
Comaguest West (AZ) 11-68, Inc. Delaware
Consys-9 (SC}LLC Delaware
Corporate Property Associates 4-A California Limnited Partnership Califomia
Corporate Property Associates 9-A California Limited Partnership California
Corpozate Property Associates 9-A Delaware Limited Pastnership Delaware
Corporate Property Associates LP California
CPA Burnhaven LP Delaware
CPA Paper, Inc. Delaware
CPALSLLC Delaware
Cross LLC Georgia
CWA, LLC Nlincis
Deliver (TN) QRS [4-49, Inc., Delaware
Denton {TX) Trust Maryland
DPWPC(TX)HLLC Delaware
Drayton Plains (M), LLC Delaware
Emerald Development Company, Inc, Delaware
Eros (ESP) CR GRS Inc. Delaware
Eros Il Spain 17-16 B.V. The Netherlands
Faur WPC (OH) LLC Delaware
Fifth Rock Limited Parinership New York
Fly CD,LLC Delaware
Food WPC (MI) LLC Delaware
Four Werld Landiord {GA) LLC Delaware
Four World Manager (GA) LLC Delaware
Gotdyard S.L. Spain
H2 Investor (GER) QRS 14-104, Inc, Delaware
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SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT (Continued)

State or Country
Name of Subsidiary of Incorpocation
H2 Lender (GER) QRS 14-105, Inc. Delaware )
H2 Lender WPC LLC Delaware
Harlem WPC Storage (L} LLC Delaware
Hibbett {AL} 11-41, Inc. Delaware
HLWG Two Lender SARL Luxembourg
Hlkinvest SAS France
Jamesinvest sprl Belgium
JPCerire (TX) LLC Delaware
Keystone Capital Company, Inc. Washington
Lincolnshire WPC Storage (IL) LLC Delaware
Livho, Inc. Delaware
Map Invest 1 SARL France
Map Invest 2 SARL France
Map Invest SCI France
Mapi Invest SPRL Belgium
Mapinvest Delaware LLC Delaware
Mauritius Iniernational 1 LLC Delaware
Nor (GA) QRS 14-17, Inc. Georgia
Olimpia [nvesimenis Sp. 2 0.0, Poland
Paper Limited Liability Company Delaware
Pensacola Storage (FL) LLC Delaware
Pensacola Storage Member (FL) LL.C Delaware
Phone (LA}, LLC Delaware
Phone Managing Member, L1.C Delaware
Pilbara Investments Limited Cyprus
Polkinvest Sprl Belgium
Pulaski WPC Storage (IL) LLC Delaware
QRS 10-18{FL), LLC Delaware
QRS 11-12{FL), 1L1.C Delaware
QRS 11-14(NC), LLC Delaware
QRS 1141 {AL), LLC Delaware
Quest-US West {AZ) QRS 11-68, LLC Delaware
Rush # LLC Delaware
Schobi (Ger-Poi} LLC Delaware
SPEC (CA)Y QRS 12.20, Inc. California
Storage 1 (CT)LLC Pelaware
Stor-Move UH 14 Business Trust Massachusetts
Telegraph (MO) LLC Pelaware
Telegraph Manager (MO} WPC, Inc. Delaware
Three Aircraft Seats (DE) LP Delaware
Three Cabin Seats (DE)LLC Delaware
Torrey Pines Limited Partnership California
Torrey Pines, LLC Delaware
Total Storage (AR) LLC Delaware
Tours Invest SAS France
UPCDLLC Delaware
Venice (CA3LP Pelaware
W. P. Carey & Co. BV, Netherlands
W, P, Carey Holdings, LLC Delaware
W.P. Carey & Co. Limited Delaware
W.P. Carey International LLC Delaware
Wals (TN} LLC Delzware
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SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT {Continued)

Steate or Country
Name of Subgidiary of fucorporation
WPCI Holdings 1 LLC Delaware
WPCI Holdings 11 L1L.C Delaware
{Back To Top)
Section 3: EX-23.1 (EX-23.1)
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form 5-8 (MNos.333-160078, 333-16007%, 333-90880, 333-64549 and 333-
56121) of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC of our report dated February 29, 2012 relating 10 the financial statements, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of
internal control ever financial reporting of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, which appears in this Form 10-K and our report dated February 29, 2012 relating to the financial
statements and financial statement schedules of Corporate Property Associates 16 — Global Incorporated, which is incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K.

/s PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 29, 2012

(Back To Top)

Section 4: EX-31.1 (EX-31.1)
Exhibit 3L}
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002
1, Trevor P. Bond, certify that:
5. I have reviewed this Annuat Report on Form 10-K of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue staternent of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this repost;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are respansible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(g} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15{f)) for the registrant and
have;

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, 1o ensure that
material information relating 1o the regisirant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared,

{b)  Designed such intestial control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control aver financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, 10
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles;

(¢)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an Annual Report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal contro] over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability 1o record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.
Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ Trevor P, Bond
Trever P. Bond
Chief Executive Officer

(Back To Top}

Section 5: EX-31.2 (EX-31.2)

Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 072002
I, Mark J. DeCesaris, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-X of W, P. Carey & Co. L1.C,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a matenal fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the cireumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this repert;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other finaneial information inciuded in this report, fairly present in all materiaf respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report,
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4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsibie for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 154-15(f)) for the regisirant and
have:

{8y  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed undes our supervision, to ensure that
materiat information relating to the registrant, inchiding its cansolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this repori is being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control aver financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiai reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure conirels and procedures and presented in this repert our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that cecurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an Annual Report) that has materially affected, or is reasenably likely to materially affect, the
reglstrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal contrel aver financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent fuactions):

(2}  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

()  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls over
financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012

/s/ Miark J, DeCesaris
Mark J. DeCesaris
Chief Financial Qfficer

(Back To Top)

Section 6: EX-32 (EX-32)

Exhibit 32
Certifications Pursnant to Section %06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), each of the undersigned officers of W. P. Carey & Co. LLC, does hereby certify, to the best of such officer’s knowledge
and belief, pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

I. The Report fully complies with the reguirements of section 13(a) or [5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all roaterial respects, the finangial condition and results of operations of W. P. Carey & Co.
LLC.
Date February 29, 2012

s/ Trevor 2, Bond
Trevor P. Bond
Chief Executive Officer

{ate February 29, 2012

/s/ Mark J. DeCesaris
Mark J. DeCesaris
Chief Financial Officer

The certification set forth above is being furnished as an exhibit solely pursuant io Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and is not being filed as part of the
Report as g separate disclosure document of W, P. Carey & Co. LLC or the certifying officers.

A signed original of this writien statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the signature that appears
in typad form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has besn provided to W. P. Carey & Co. LLC and will be retained by W.
P. Carey & Co. LLC and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cotmmission or its staff upon request,

(Back To Top)
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Audited Financials of Corporate Property Associates 17-Global Inc and its subsidiaries.pdf

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of Corporate Property Associates 17 -
Global Incorporated

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related
consalidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, equity

and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Corporate Property Associates 17 - Global Incorporated and its subsidiaries

(the “Company”) at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on

a test basis, evidence supporting the amousnts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

New York, New York
March 22, 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER 31,
{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS} 2011 2010

Investrnents in real estate:

Real estate, at cost $1,504,151 $ 930,404
Operaling real estate, at cost 178,141 12,177
Accumulated depreciation {43,267) {16,574}
NET INVESTMENTS IN PROPERTIES 1,635,025 926,007

Real estate under construction 90,176 53,041
Net investments in direct financing leases 462,505 397,006
Equity investments in real estate 187,067 50,853
NET INVESTMENTS IN REAL ESTATE 2,374,773 1,426,907
Notes receivable 70,000 89,560
Cash and cash equivalents 180,726 162,745
Intangible assets, net 334,137 252,078
Other assets, net 86,176 56,965
TOTAL ASSETS $3,045,812 $1,988,255

Lia&htwé;

Non-recourse and limited-recourse debt $1,154,254 $667,478
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other Habilities 48,035 14,719
Prepaid and deferred rental income 56,029 27,020
Due to affiliates 27,747 21,009
Distributions payable 32,288 21,520

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,318,353 751,746

Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Equity:

CPA*17 - Global shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 50,600,000 shares authorized; none issued — —
Comrmon stock, $0.001 par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized;

207,975,777 and 143,231,953 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 208 143
Additional paid-in capital 1,863,227 1,280,453
Distributions in excess of accumulated earnings (157,062) (93,446}
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (32,601) (14,943}
Less, treasury stock at cost, 1,826,959 and 864,991 shares, respectively (17,104) (8,044}

TOTAL CPA®:17 - GLORAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 1,656,668 1,164,163
Noncontrolling interests 70,791 72,346

TOTAL EQUITY 1,727,459 1,236,509

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $3,045,812 $1,988,255%

See Notes to Consolidatisd Financiad Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2010 2009

Rental income $124,834  $ 52233 § 18,333

Interest income from direct financing leases 48,474 40,028 29,117
Other operating income 2,886 1,440 153
Interest income 6,602 3,545 2,743
Other real estate income 13,740 2,217 -

196,536 99,463 50,346

0

Depreciation and amortization o (43,688)  (14528)  (5324)
General and administrative {16,585) (5,258) (3,486)
Property expenses {19,268} (6,991) {3,314}
Other real estate expenses (8,009) (1,327) —
Impairment charges 70 — (23,904)

(87,480} (28,104) {36,028)

Income from equity investments in real estate 5,527 1,675 1,408

QOther income and {expenses) 6,983 794 (2,301}
Iisterest expense (51,332) (27.860) {10,823}

(38,822} {25,391) {11,718)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 70,234 45,968 2,600
Provision for income taxes {(1,042) {214) (420)

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 69,192 45,754 2,180

Income from operations of discontinued properties 476 33

Gain on sale of real estate 778 - —
Income from discontinued operations 1,254 33 —
NET INCOME 70,446 45,787 2,180
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests (20,791} (15,333) (9.881)

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TQ CPA®:17 — GLOBAL SHAREHOLDERS $ 49,655 % 30,454 s (7.709)
Earnings (Loss) . . .
Income {loss) from continuing operations attributable to CPA™17 -

Global shareholders $ 027 $ 027 $ (0.14)
Income from discontinued operations attributable to CPA™:17 -

Global shareholders 0.01 — —
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO CPA®:17 - GLOBAL SHAREHOLDERS $ 0.28 5 027 5 {0.14)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QUTSTANDING 175,271,595 110,882,448 54,376,064
Amounts Attrib: | et
Income (Joss) from continuing operations, net of tax $ 48,401 $ 30,421 $ (7.701)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 1,254 33 —
NET INCOME (10SS) % 49,655 $ 30,454 $ (7,701}

See Hotes to Congolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
{IN¥ THOUSANDS) 2011 2010 2009

NET INCOME $ 70,446 $ 45,787 $ 2,180

Foreign currency trénslétlon adjustments {12,753} (7,438) (682)
Unrealized loss on derivative instrument {5,219} (4,375) (468}
Change in unrealized appreciation on marketable securities {15) — —
Impairment loss on CMBS — — {1,505)
(17,987 (11.,813) (2,655)

FZO MPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 52,459 33,974 (475)
A

Net income {20,791} {15,333) (9,881)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 220 778 {166)
Change in unrealized loss on derivative instruments 109 994 207
COMPREMHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (20,462) (13,561) (9,840}
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO CPA®17 ~

GLOBAL SHAREHOLDERS $ 31,997 $ 20413 $(10,315)

Sex Motes 1o Cansolidated Fipancial Slatements.
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Consolidated Statements of Equity
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

CPA*:17 - GLOBAL SHAREHOLDERS

DISTRIBUTIONS ACCUMULATED
TOTAL ABDDITIONAL IN EXCESS OF QTHER TOTAL CPART - NON-
{8 THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE OUTSTANDING  COMMON PAID-IN ACCUMULATED COMPREMENSIVE TREASURY GLOBAL CONTROLLING
AN PER SHARE AMOUNTS} SHARES STOLK CAPITAL EARNINGS L0858 STOCK  SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS TOTAL
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2009 34,625,497 $ 35 § 310,732 $ (11,656) $ (2,288 % - § 297,423 § 30,074 & 337487
Shares issued, net of offering costs 45,244,803 45 404,651 404,696 484,656
Shares issued to affiliates 285,100 2 2,674 2,676 2,678
Contributions from noncontrolfling
interests - 103,364 103,364
Distributions declared
{$0.6324 per share} (34,361) (34,361) (34,363)
Distributions to
noncontrolling interests — {71,946} (71,946)
Net (loss) income {7,701} (7,761) 9,881 2,180
Other comprehensive loss:
lioreign currency
transiation adjustments (848} (848) 166 (682)
Change in unrealized loss on
derivative instruments (261} {261) (2067) (468)
Impairment loss on commercial
morlgage-backed securities (1,505) (1,505) (1,505)
Repurchase of shares (248,833) {2,314) (2,314) (2,314)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 79,886,568 82 718,057 {53,118} (4,902} (2,314} 857,805 71.332 729,137
Shares issued, net of offering costs 62,643,431 60 557,835 557,895 557,895
Sharcs issued Lo atBiliates 453,121 1 4,561 4,562 4,562
Contributions from
noncontrolling interests — 412 4i2
Distributions declared
{50.6400 per share} (70,782) (70,782) (70,782}
Distributions to
roncontrolling intereats - (12,959} (12,5959}
Net income 30,454 30,454 15,333 45,787
Other comprehensive loss:
loreign currency translation
adjustmems (6,560) (6,660} {778} (7,438}
Change in: unrealized loss on
derivative instruments (3.381) (3,381) {594) (4,375}
Repurchase of shares {616,158) (5,730} (5,730) (5,730}
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 142,366,962 143 1,280,453 (93,446) {14,943) {8,044) 1,164,163 72,346 1,236,509
Shares issued, net of offering costs 63,628,957 63 571,592 571,655 571,653
Shares issued to afliliates 1,114,867 2 11,182 11,184 11,184
Contributions from
noncontrolling interests - 1,197 1,197
Distributions declared
($0.6475 per share} (113,271) {113,271} {113,271}
Distributions to
noncontrolling interests - (23,234) (23,214)
Net incomne 49,655 49,655 20,791 70,446
Other comprehensive foss:
Foreign currency
translation adjustments (£2,533} (12,533) {220} {12,753}
Change in uarealized joss on
derivative instruments (5,110} (5,110) {109} {5,219)
Change in unrealized appreciation
on marketable securities {15} (15) {13)
Repurchase of shares {951,968} {9,060) (9,060) {9,060)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 206,148,818 $208 4$1,863,227 ${157,062) $(32,601) $(17,104} $1,656,668 $ 70,791 41,727,459

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{IN THOUSANDS)

15H

Net income

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adiustments to net income:

Depreciation and amortization, including intangible assets and
deferred financing costs

Loss from equity investments in real estate in excess of distributions received
Issuance of shares to affiliate in satistaction of fees due

Gain on sale of real estate

Unrealized loss on foreign currency transactions and others

Realized (gain) loss on foreign currency transactions and others
Straight line rent adjustment and amortization of rent refated intangibles
Scttlement of derivative lability

Amortization of discount on commercial mortgage-backed securities
Impairment charges on net investments in properties and CMBS
Increase in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses

Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Increase in prepaid and deferred rental income

{Decrease) increase in due to affiliates

Net changes in other operating assets and liabilities

Distributions received from equity investments in real estate in
excess of equity income

Acquisitions of real estate and direct financing leases and
other capital expenditures®™

Capital contributions to equity investments in real estate™
VAT paid in connection with acquisitions of real estate
VAT refunded in connection with acquisitions of real estate
Proceeds from sale of real estate

Funds placed in escrow

Funds released from escrow

Payment of deferred acquisition fees to an affiliate
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable

Investment in securities

Purchase of notes receivable

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2011

$ 70,446

46,720
1,868
11,184
(787)
3
(6,055)
(11,616)
(5,131)
(70)
(2,949)
3,621
1,485
(2,197)
(5,007)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2¢10

$ 45,787

14,972
4,562

85
{777)
{4,040)

(2,430)
5,075
3,868
3,574

(1,158)

2009

$ 2,180

5,088
326
2,676
13
2,519
(3,425}
(668}
23,904
(514)
749
2,432
78
(10)

90,571 2,761 2,282
(658,546)  (917,897)  (430,448)
(228,519) (10,648) (22,798)

(4,592) (53,241) (14,881)

29,336 40,441 —

19,821 1,690 —
(196,291)  (103,045)  (111,335)

186,958 98,502 107,690
(14,455) (7,204) (3,263)
49,560 7,440 —

(2,394) — —

(30,000)  (90,695) (7,000)
(758,551) (1,031,896)  (479,753)
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 37,
2

{IN THOUSANDS)

| Distributions paid . {102,503) (60,937) (27,193)

Contributions from noncontrolling interests 1,197 412 103,364
Distributions 1o nonconsrolling interests (23,214) {12,959} (71,946)
Scheduled payments of mortgage principal (14,136) (6,541) (4,494)
Prepayments of mortgage principal — (53,017) —
Proceeds from mortgage financing®™ 243,517 425,881 170,805
Funds placed in escrow 17,919 7,168 —
Funds released from escrow (8,932) (3,593) -
Proceeds from loan from an afhiliate 90,000 — -
Repayment of loan from an affiliate (90,000) e —
Payment of financing costs and mortgage deposits, net of deposits refunded (9,423) (4,004) {4,574)
Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of issuance costs 575,251 557,495 404,200
Purchase of treasury stock (9,060) {5,730) (2,314)
Net cash provided by financing activities 670,616 844,485 567,848
Payment of financing costs and mortgage deposits, net of deposits refunded (9,423) (4,094) (4,574)
Proceeds from issuance of shares, net of issuance costs 575,251 557,895 404,200
Purchase of treasury stock {9,060} {(5,730) (2,314)

670,616 844,485 267,848

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 4,401 {916) (3.458)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,981 {118,809) 119,985
Cash and cash equivalents, begimming of year 162,745 281,554 161,569
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 180,726 $ 162,745  $281,554

SUPPLEMENTAL NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) The cost basis of real estate investments acquired during 2011, 2010, and 2009 including equity investments in real estate,
also included deferred acquisition fees payable of $17.4 million, $19.1 million, and $7.6 million, respectively (Note 3).

(b) For 2010, includes the assumption of the seller’s limited recourse mortgage of $5.9 million in connection with the
acquisition of a hotel.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

In September 2011, we purchased substantially all of the economic and voting interests in a real estate fund for $164.9
million, based on the exchange rate of the Euro on the date of acquisition {Note 4). This transaction consisted of the
acquisition and assumption of certain assets and liabilities, as detailed in the table below (in thousands):

Investments in real estate

$354,342

assets, net 57,750
Non-recourse debt (222,680)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (5,050)
Prepaid and deferred rental income (15,488)
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED $164,874

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION {IN THOUSANDS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2011 2010 2008
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $46,722 $26,275 $10.,726
Interest capitalized § 3,543 $ 315 5 1,088
Income taxes paid (refunded) $ 401 $ {111) $ 507

See Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

11 ORGANIZATION AND OFFERING

Organization

CPA*:17 - Global is a publicly owned, non-listed REIT that invests primarily in
commercial properties leased 1o companies domestically and internationally. As

a REIT, we are not subject to U.S. federal income taxation as long as we satisfy
certain requirements, principally relating to the nature of our income, the level

of our distributions and other factors. We carn revenue principally by leasing the
properties we own to single corporate tenants, primarily on a triple-net leased
basis, which requires the tenant to pay substantially all of the costs associated with
operaling and maintaining the property. Revenue is subject to fluctuation because
of the timing of new lease transactions, lease terminations, lease expirations,
contractual rent adjustments, tenant defaults and sales of properties. At December
31, 2011, our portfolio was comprised of our full or partial ownership interests

in 307 fully-occupied properties, substantially all of which were triple-net leased
to 46 tenants, and totaled approximately 26 million square feet (on a pro rata
basis), In addition, we own 44 self-storage properties and retain a fec interest in

a hotel property for an aggregate of approximately 3 million square feet (on a pro
rata basis). We were formed in 2007 and are managed by the advisor. We conduct
substantially all of our investment activities and own all of our assets through our
operating partnership, CPA™:17 Limited Partnership. We are a general partner
and a limited partner and own approximately a 99.985% capital interest in our
operating partnership. Carey Holdings, a subsidiary of WPC, holds a special
general partner interest in the operating partnership.

Public Offering

In November 2007, our registration statement on Form S-11 {File No. 333-
140842), covering an initial public offering of up to 200,000,000 shares of common
stock at $10.00 per share, was declared effective by the SEC. The registration
statement also covered the offering of up to 50,000,000 shares of common stock

at $9.50 pursuant to our distribution reinvestment and stock purchase plan. Our
shares were initially being offered on a “best efforts” basis by Carey Financial and
sclected other dealers. We commenced our initial public offering in late December
2007. Since inception through the termination of our initial public offering on
April 7, 2011, we raised a total of more than $1.5 billion.

In October 2010, we filed a registration statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-
170225) with the SEC for a follow-on offering of up to $1.¢ billion of common
stock, which was declared effective by the SEC on April 7, 2011, terminating
our initial public offering. The registration statement also covers the offering of
up to 50,000,000 shares of commuon stock at $9.50 pursuant to our distribution
reinvestment and stock purchase plan. From the beginning of the follow-on
offering through December 31, 2011, we raised $418.7 million. There can be no
assurance that we will successfully sell the full number of shares registered.

We intend to use the net proceeds of these offerings to acquire, own and manage

a portfolio of commercial propertics leased to a diversified group of companies
primarily on a single tenant net lease basis.
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Distributech_Proforma_2012-06-22QA.pdf

YEAR O [Start-Up Period--->Contract Award until "Go Live" ]
Distributech, LLC SEP2012 O0OCT2012 NOV2012 DEC2012 JAN2013 FEB2013 MAR2013 APR2013 MAY2013 JUN2013 JUL2013 AUG2013 SEP2013 OCT2013
FTEs $/YR-FTE Annual Startup T-Minusl4 T-Minus13 T-Minus12 T-Minus11 T-Minus10 T-Minus9 T-Minus8 T-Minus7 T-Minus6é T-Minus5 T-Minus4 T-Minus3 T-Minus2 T-Minus 1

Warehouse Labor Expenses FTEs

Receiving / Put Away
Operations Manager 1 75,000 75,000  $31,250 SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO $3,125 $3,125 $6,250 $6,250  $6,250 $6,250
Whse Manager 1 55,000 55,000  $18,333 S0 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $4,583 $4,583 $4,583 $4,583
Single Bottle Pick Manager 1 55,000 55,000 $17,500 SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $3,750 $4,583 $4,583 $4,583
Forklift Operator / Receivers 2 35,000 70,000  $23,333 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO  $5,833 $5,833 $5,833 $5,833
Product Check-in 1 31,200 31,200  $10,400 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0  $2,600 $2,600 $2,600  S$2,600
Directed Product Storage 5 25,000 125,000 $41,667 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $10,417 $10,417 S10,417 S$10,417

Replenishment -

Night Shift Supervisor 1 48,000 48,000 $8,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $4,000 $4,000
Pallet Pick Replenishment 2 25,000 50,000 $8,333 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $4,167 S4,167
Case Flow Replenishment 4 27,000 108,000  $18,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $9,000 $9,000
Bottle Pick Replenishment 1 28,000 28,000 $4,667 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $2,333 $2,333
Order Picking -
Full Case Order Pickers From Floor 7 31,200 218,400  $28,600 SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 o S0 SO SO SO $10,400 $18,200
Full Case Order Pickers From Cluster/Flow Rack 10 33,300 333,000  $41,625 S0 SO SO SO o SO SO SO o SO SO S0 $13,875 $27,750
Case Pick Add-ons/Misc 4 25,000 100,000 $12,500 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S4,167 $8,333
Single Bottle Pick 6 35,000 210,000  $35,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 S0 $17,500 $17,500
- o SO SO SO S0 SO o SO S0 SO SO
Console Operator 1 45,000 45,000 $7,500 S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $3,750 $3,750
Palletizers/Loaders/ Picker, Add-on's 8 25,000 200,000  $25,000 S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO SO SO $8,333 $16,667
Shipping QA 2 32,500 65,000  $10,833 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $5,417 $5,417
Dispatch/Routing 1 40,000 40,000 $6,667 SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $3,333 $3,333
Dispatch Assistant 1 35,000 35,000 $5,833 o SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO SO SO $2,917 $2,917

Inventory
Inventory Manager 1 48,000 48,000 $8,000 SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $4,000 $4,000
Inventory Assistant | 1 37,500 37,500 $6,250 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $3,125 $3,125
Inventory Assistant I 1 31,200 31,200 $5,200 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $2,600 $2,600

Breakage /Recouping/Maintenance -

Breakage/QC 2 21,840 43,680  $10,920 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO  $3,640 53,640 $3,640
Maintainance Manager 1 60,000 60,000 $20,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 S$5,000
Maintainance/Facilities 2 57,000 114,000  $38,000 S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO $9,500 $9,500  $9,500 $9,500
Custodial 1 22,800 22,800 $7,600 o SO SO SO S0 SO o SO S0 SO $1,900 $1,900  $1,900 $1,900
Security 1 35000 35000  $11,667 SO S0 SO S0 S0 S0 S0 SO S0 SO $2,917  $2,917  $2,917  $2,917

TOTAL WAREHOUSE LABOR--> 69 $2,283,780 $462,678 S0 S0 S0 SO SO SO SO SO §3,125  $3,125 $52,750 S$57,223 $156,140 $190,315

Office G&A Labor Expenses FTEs

CEO -Mike 1 75,000 75,000  $87,500 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250

Vice President Warehouse Ops 1 150,000 150,000 $87,500 SO SO SO SO 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

Office Manager 1 45,000 45,000  $15,000 SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750

Office Manager 1 45,000 45,000  $15,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750

Executive Assistant 1 1 40,000 40,000  $33,800 SO 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600

Executive Assistant 2 1 40,000 40,000 $7,800 SO SO SO SO o) SO S0 SO S0 SO SO 2,600 2,600 2,600

Customer Service 2 35,000 70,000 $9,100 S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO SO SO 4,550 4,550

Receptionist 1 30,000 30,000 $3,900 S0 S0 SO S0 S0 S0 S0 SO S0 SO SO SO 1,950 1,950

Office Clerk 2 31,000 62,000 $8,060 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO 4,030 4,030

TOTAL G&A OFFICE LABOR---> 11 $557,000 267,660 6,250 8,850 8,850 8,850 15,100 15,100 15,100 15,100 15,100 15,100 28,850 31,450 41,980 41,980

Workforce Overhead FTEs Startup

Payroll Tax @ 8.5% 80 776 62,079 $5,173 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,173

Medical Insurance 80 7,000 560,000  $46,667 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 S0 $46,667

Non Medical Benefit Program 80 S0 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO

Workers Compensation 80 54,049 $4,504 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $4,504

Uniforms 65 12,000  $12,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $12,000

Health & Safety-Pre-Employment and Boots 65 2,000 $2,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $2,000

401(k) Match --5% Reserve 80 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Employee Rewards Program Reserve 80 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO
TOTAL WORKFORCE OVERHEAD---> $70,344 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,344

MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD

Warehouse Loss & Waste

Breakage cost as 0.001 x 4.7MM Cases x $85 $4,760 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 $4,760

Re-Pack-Boxes, Labels, Supplies $750 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 $250 $250 $250

G&A Miscellaneous Expenses SO







Office Expense /Supplies $1,000 SO SO S0 SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 SO S500 S500

Miscellaneous $1,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $1,000

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD--> $7,510 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $250 $750 $6,510

Special G&A Expenses

Outsourced Ops & Administration Startup

Accounting Outsource Expense 1 $27,333 $3,333 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000

Internet/Phones $16,665 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333 $3,333

G&A Administration

Consultant Startup 1 $87,500 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250

Consultant Transition 1 $87,500 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250

Legal 2 $87,500 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250
TOTAL SPECIAL G&A EXPENSES--> 5 306,498 $22,083 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $20,250 $23,583 $23,583 $25,083 $25,083 $25,083

Total Pre-Contract Manpower/Operating Expenses ----> $1,114,690

Building Expenses

SEP2012 0OCT2012 NOV2012 DEC2012 JAN2013 FEB2013 MAR2013 APR2013 MAY2013 JUN2013 JUL2013 AUG2013 SEP2013 OCT2013
Startup T-Minusl4 T-Minusl13 T-Minus12 T-Minus11 T-Minus10 T-Minus9 T-Minus8 T-Minus7 T-Minus6é T-Minus5 T-Minus4 T-Minus3 T-Minus2 T-Minus 1

Repair and Maintanance $5,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $5,000
Landscape & Snow removal S0 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO S0 SO S0 S0
Utilities $11,250 SO SO SO S0 SO SO SO SO SO $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750 $3,750
Real Estate Taxes & Ins $170,438 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $56,813 $56,813 $56,813 $56,813 $56,813
General Insurance $45,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $25,000 $25,000
Misc Building Expense $50,000 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO S0 SO SO SO $10,000 $10,000
TOTAL BUILDING EXPENSES--> $281,688 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $60,563 $60,563 $60,563 $95,563  $100,563
Total Start-Up Expenses up to NOV--> $1,492,503 28,333 29,100 29,100 29,100 35,350 35,350 35,350 35,350 38,475 102,371 165,746 174,569 319,516 434,794
NOV 2013 Expenses (See ProformaYEAR1) $650,310
DEC 2013 Expenses (See ProformaYEAR1) $660,555
$2,803,368
START-UP OPERATIONAL SUMMARY SEP2012 OCT2012 NOV2012 DEC2012 JAN2013 FEB2013 MAR2013 APR2013 MAY2013 JUN2013 JUL2013 AUG2013 SEP2013 OCT2013 NOV2013 DEC2014
T-Minus14 T-Minus13 T-Minus12 T-Minus11 T-Minus10 T-Minus9 T-Minus8 T-Minus7 T-Minus6é T-Minus5 T-Minus4 T-Minus3 T-Minus2 T-Minus 1 MO 1. MO 2.
Gross Revenues (Nov Operations) $1,087,024 SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO SO $1,087,024
Jperational Expenses (START-UP +NOV +DEC Ops) HEHEHEHT 28,333 29,100 29,100 29,100 35,350 35,350 35,350 35,350 38,475 102,371 165,746 174,569 319,516 434,794 $650,310  $660,555
$40,000,000 finance 20YRS
Rent 775,000 - - - - - - - - - - - - 258,333 258,333
START-UP NET CASH FLOW -$2,233,011 -$28,333 -$29,100 -$29,100 -$29,100 -$35,350 -$35,350 -$35,350 -$35,350 -$38,475 -$102,371 -$165,746 -$174,569 -$319,516 -$434,794 -5908,643  $168,135
WorkingCapital $2,400,000
Gross Revenues $1,087,024
Operational Expenses 2,803,368
Rent 258,333 258,333
OPERATING INCOME 425,322
STATE BPT @ 8.5% $0.00
NET INCOME 425,322
FEDERAL INCOME TAX $0.00
@ AFTER TAX INCOME $0.00
Capitalized Costs
Working Capital $2,400,000
Warehouse Build-Out
Purchase Land-Real Estate $3,100,000
Warehouse Construction -Stahlman $24,594,716
Construction Loan Interest Expense $1,125,000
Contingency -Stahlman $950,520
Exclusions /Allowances -Stahlman $2,000,000
Warehouse Automation/Racking/Equipment $5,595,000

Start up Cost: $39,765,236

(1) Pre-Award capital contributions for new entity / site / facility pre-engineering / permitting / legal is fixed at $200K and agreed to remained fixed until the contract award.

Assumptions:

(2) Initial volumes are based upon State Liquor Commission Annual Reports, the annual growth in case throughput increases 3% per year

(3) Our rates are "fixed" for the first 30 months, and then we are allowed a Negotiated Increase or at least a CPIl adjustment --assume 2.5%

(4) Built into the proforma is the addition of 4 additional warehouse employees Year2 and 4 more in Year3
(5) Built into the proforma is a 4.0% reserve/allocation for labor raises /YR, and related increase of overhea (6) Negative Cash Flow for intial Start-Up --90 days







YEAR 1 $2.00 /case 5,157,937 cases per year $10,315,873
Distributech, LLC $0.01 /case/day 805,000 AVG cases on-hand $2,938,250 $13,716,123 Gross Revenue
$0.50 /bottle Mixed Cs 924,000 + mixed case bottles $462,000
Assumes $1in/$1 out plus $0.01/Case/Day Storage NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEP ocT
2011 State avg is 60 days storage 8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
FTEs /Cs S Subtotal Monthl Month2 Month3  Month4 Month5 Month6 Month7 Month8 Month9 Monthl0 Monthll Month12
Warehouse Labor Expenses
Receiving / Put Away
Operations Manager 1 $0.01 75,000 $75,000 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250
Whse Manager 1 $0.01 65,000 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Single Bottle Pick Manager 1 $0.01 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Forklift Operator / Receivers 2 $0.01 35,000 $70,000 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833
Product Check-in 1 $0.01 31,200 $31,200 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Directed Product Storage 5 $0.02 25,000 $125,000 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417 10,417
Replenishment
Night Shift Supervisor 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Pallet Pick Replenishment 2 $0.010 25,000 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Case Flow Replenishment 4 $0.021 27,000 $108,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000
Bottle Pick Replenishment 1 $0.005 28,000 $28,000 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333 2,333
Order Picking
Full Case Order Pickers From Floor 7 $0.042 31,200 $218,400 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200
Full Case Order Pickers From Cluster/Flow Rack 10 $0.065 33,300 $333,000 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750
Case Pick Add-ons/Misc $0.019 25,000 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
Single Bottle Pick $0.041 35,000 $210,000 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500 17,500
Shipping
Console Operator 1 $0.009 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Palletizers/Loaders/ Picker, Add-on's 8 $0.039 25,000 $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Staging -shipping 2 $0.013 32,500 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Licensee Service Manager 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Dispatch 1 $0.007 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
Inventory
Inventory Manager 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Inventory Assistant | 1 $0.007 37,500 $37,500 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125
Inventory Assistant Il 1 $0.006 31,200 $31,200 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Breakage /Recouping/Maintenance
Breakage/QC 2 $0.008 21,840 $43,680 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640
Maintainance Manager 1 $0.012 60,000 $60,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Maintainance/Facilities 2 $0.022 57,000 $114,000 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500
Custodial 1 $0.004 22,800 $22,800 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900
Security 1 $0.007 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
TOTAL WAREHOUSE LABOR--> 69 $0.443 $2,283,780 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315 190,315
Office G&A Labor Expenses FTEs /Cs S $/YR Monthl Month2 Month3 Month4 Month5 Monthé Month7 Month8 Month9 Month10 Month1ll Month12
CEO -Mike 1 $0.015 77,369 $77,369 7,366 6,197 7,992 6,251 4,851 4,603 6,151 5,911 7,095 8,147 6,677 6,128
Vice President Warehouse Ops 1 $0.029 150,000 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Traffic Controller 1 1 $0.009 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Traffic Controller 2 1 $0.009 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Assistant to CEO 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Assistant to VP 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Customer Service 2 $0.007 35,000 $70,000 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833
Receptionist 1 $0.006 30,000 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Office Clerk 2 $0.006 31,000 $62,000 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167
TOTAL G&A OFFICE LABOR---> 11 0.096 559,369 47,532 46,364 48,159 46,418 45,018 44,770 46,318 46,078 47,261 48,314 46,844 46,294








YEAR 1
Distributech, LLC

Workforce Overhead FTEs /Cs S $/YR Monthl Month2 Month3 Month4 Month5 Month6 Month7 Month8 Month9 Month10 Month1l Month12
Payroll Tax @ 8.5% 80 0.047 0.085 $241,668 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139 20,139
Medical Insurance 80 0.109 7,000 $560,000 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667 46,667
Non Medical Benefit Program 80 0.010 625 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Workers Compensation 80 0.044 0.079 $224,887 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741 18,741
Uniforms 65 0.000 12,000 $650 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54
Health & Safety-Pre-Employment and Boots 65 0.013 1,000 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
401(k) Match --5% Reserve 80 0.028 $142,157 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846 11,846
Employee Rewards Program Reserve 80 0.015 77,369 $77,369 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447 6,447
TOTAL WORKFORCE OVERHEAD---> 0.264 $1,361,731 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478 113,478
NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OoCT
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD /Cs S S/YR Monthl Month2 Month3 Month4 Month5 Monthé Month7? Month8 Month9 Month1l0 Monthll Month12
Warehouse Loss & Waste break
Breakage cost as 0.001 x 4.7MM Cases x $85 0.001 0.085 $438,425 35,118 45,289 35,425 27,489 26,086 34,855 33,496 40,204 46,166 37,836 34,723 41,738
Re-Pack-Boxes, Labels, Supplies 0.010 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
G&A Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expense /Supplies 0.005 $25,000 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083
Miscellaneous 0.004 $20,000 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD-->  0.103 $533,425 43,034 53,206 43,341 35,406 34,003 42,771 41,412 48,120 54,083 45,753 42,640 49,655
Special G&A Expenses /Cs $ $/YR Monthl  Month2 Month3 Month4 Month5 Month6é Month7 Month8 Month9 Month10 Monthll Month12
Outsourced Ops & Administration
NHSLC 8 Warehouse Employees 8 $400,000 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333
Concord Warehouse Shared Space Lease $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Computer Outsource Expense at $0.0X/case 4 0.080 $412,635 33,052 42,625 33,341 25,872 24,552 32,804 31,525 37,839 43,450 35,610 32,681 39,283
----to include 2 $65K onsite employees
Accounting Outsource Expense 1 0.008 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Internet/Phones 0.008 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Bonding /Liability Insurance 0.029 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
G&A Administration
Board of Directors 0.015 $386,845 36,828 30,986 39,961 31,257 24,255 23,017 30,754 29,555 35,474 40,735 33,385 30,638
Broker-Supplier Coordinator (Reserve) 1 0.015 $77,369 7,366 6,197 7,992 6,251 4,851 4,603 6,151 5,911 7,095 8,147 6,677 6,128
Exec Bonus (Reserve) 0.02 $103,159 9,821 8,263 10,656 8,335 6,468 6,138 8,201 7,881 9,460 10,863 8,903 8,170
Ops Bonus (Reserve) 0.015 $77,369 7,366 6,197 7,992 6,251 4,851 4,603 6,151 5,911 7,095 8,147 6,677 6,128
Consulting Ops 1 0.010 $51,579 4,132 5,328 4,168 3,234 3,069 4,101 3,941 4,730 5,431 4,451 4,085 4,910
Legal 2 0.019 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
TOTAL SPECIAL G&A EXPENSES--> 14 0.219 $2,038,956 176,063 177,097 181,610 158,701 145,546 152,767 164,223 169,327 185,505 185,453 169,907 172,757
Total Manpower/Operating Expenses 94 $1.12 $6,777,261
Building Expenses /Cs $ $/YR Month1  Month2 Month3 Month4 Month5 Month6  Month7 Month8 Month9 Month10 Month1l Month12
Repair and Maintanance 0.005 $24,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Landscape & Snow removal 0.006 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Utilities 0.036 $186,000 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500
Real Estate Taxes & Ins 0.132 $681,750 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813
General Insurance 0.029 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Misc Building Expense 0.010 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
TOTAL BUILDING EXPENSES--> $0.217 $1,121,750 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479
Total Operational Expenses-—> $7,899,011 663,901 673,939 670,382 637,797 621,838 637,580 649,225 660,796 684,121 676,791 656,662 665,977







YEAR 1
Distributech, LLC

OPERATIONAL SUMMARY

Gross Revenues
Operational Expenses
$40,000,000 finance 20YRS
Rent

State & Federal Taxes

NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL

8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53%
13,716,123 1,098,661 1,416,876 1,108,263 860,001 816,109 1,090,432 1,047,912 1,257,769 1,444,308
7,899,011 663,901 673,939 670,382 637,797 621,838 637,580 649,225 660,796 684,121

3,100,000 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333
870,155 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513 72,513

NET CASH FLOW

Gross Revenues
Operational Expenses
Rent

1,846,957 103,914 412,091 107,034 -108,642 -136,575 122,005 67,841 266,126 429,341

13,716,123
7,899,011
3,100,000

OPERATING INCOME
STATE BPT @ 8.5%

NET INCOME

FEDERAL INCOME TAX 35%
@ AFTER TAX INCOME

2,717,113
230,955
2,486,158
870,155
1,616,003

AUG SEP
8.63% 7.92%
1,183,701 1,086,317
676,791 656,662
258,333 258,333
72,513 72,513
176,064 98,808

ocT

9.52%
1,305,775
665,977

258,333
72,513

308,951

Assumptions:

(1) Based upon State Liquor Commission Annual Reports, the annual growth in case throughput increases 3% per year

(2) Our rates are "fixed" for the first 30 months, and then we are allowed a Negotiated Increase or at least a CPIl adjustment --assume 2.5%
(3) Built into the proforma is the addition of 4 additional warehouse employees Year2 and 4 more in Year3

(4) Built into the proforma is a 4.0% reserve/allocation for labor raises /YR, and related increase of overhead







YEAR 2
Distributech, LLC

Assumes $1 in/$1 out plus $0.01/Case/Day Storage

2011 State avg is 60 days storage

$2.00 /case 5,312,675 cases per year $10,625,350
$0.01 /case/day 829,150 AVG cases on-hand $3,026,398 $14,113,747 Gross Revenue
$0.50 /bottle Mixed Cs 924,000 + mixed case bottles $462,000
NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17%

JUL
10.53%

AUG
8.63%

SEP
7.92%

oCT
9.52%

FTEs /Cs $ Subtotal Month13 Monthl4 Monthl5 Monthl6 Monthl7 Month1l8 Month1l9 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
Warehouse Labor Expenses
Receiving / Put Away
Operations Manager 1 $0.01 75,000 $75,000 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250
Whse Manager 1 $0.01 65,000 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Single Bottle Pick Manager 1 $0.01 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Forklift Operator/Receiver (ADDED 1 MORE) 3 $0.02 35,000 $105,000 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750
Product Check-in 1 $0.01 31,200 $31,200 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Directed Product Storage (ADDED 1 MORE) 6 $0.03 25,000 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Replenishment
Night Shift Supervisor 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Pallet Pick Replenishment 2 $0.009 25,000 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Case Flow Replenishment 4 $0.020 27,000 $108,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000
Bottle Pick Replenishment (ADDED 1 MORE) 2 $0.011 28,000 $56,000 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667
Order Picking
Full Case Order Pickers From Floor 7 $0.041 31,200 $218,400 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200
Full Case Order Pickers From Cluster/Flow Rack 10 $0.063 33,300 $333,000 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750 27,750
Case Pick Add-ons/Misc 4 $0.019 25,000 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
Single Bottle Pick (ADDED 1 MORE) 7 $0.046 35,000 $245,000 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417
Shipping
Console Operator 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Palletizers/Loaders/ Picker, Add-on's 8 $0.038 25,000 $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Staging -shipping 2 $0.012 32,500 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Licensee Service Manager 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Dispatch 1 $0.007 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
Inventory
Inventory Manager 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Inventory Assistant | 1 $0.007 37,500 $37,500 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125
Inventory Assistant Il 1 $0.006 31,200 $31,200 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Breakage /Recouping/Maintenance
Breakage/QC 2 $0.008 21,840 $43,680 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640
Maintainance Manager 1 $0.011 60,000 $60,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Maintainance/Facilities 2 $0.021 57,000 $114,000 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500
Custodial 1 $0.004 22,800 $22,800 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900
Security 1 $0.007 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
Labor Raises 4.0% $0.018 $96,271 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023 8,023
TOTAL WAREHOUSE LABOR--> 73 $0.471 $2,503,051 208,588 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565 200,565
Office G&A Labor Expenses FTEs  /Cs $ $/YR Month13 Month14 Monthl5 Month16 Month17 Month18 Month19 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
CEO -Mike 1 $0.015 79,690 $79,690 6,383 8,232 6,439 4,997 4,742 6,335 6,088 7,308 8,391 6,877 6,311 7,586
Vice President Warehouse Ops 1 $0.028 150,000 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Traffic Controller 1 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Traffic Controller 2 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Assistant to CEO 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Assistant to VP 1 $0.008 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Customer Service 2 $0.007 35,000 $70,000 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833
Receptionist 1 $0.006 30,000 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Office Clerk 2 $0.006 31,000 $62,000 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167
Labor Raises 4.0% $0.004 $22,468 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872 1,872
TOTAL G&A OFFICE LABOR---> 11 0.098 584,158 48,422 50,271 48,478 47,036 46,781 48,374 48,127 49,347 50,430 48,916 48,350 49,625








YEAR 2
Distributech, LLC

Workforce Overhead FTEs /Cs S S/YR Month13 Month14 Month1l5 Month16 Month17 Month18 Month19 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
Payroll Tax @ 8.5% 84 0.049 0.085 $262,413 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868 21,868
Medical Insurance 84 0.111 7,000 $588,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000
Non Medical Benefit Program 84 0.009 595 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Workers Compensation 84 0.046 0.079 $244,888 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407 20,407
Uniforms 65 0.000 12,000 $650 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54
Health & Safety-Pre-Employment and Boots 65 0.012 6,825 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
401(k) Match --5% Reserve 84 0.029 $154,360 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863 12,863
Employee Rewards Program Reserve 84 0.015 79,690 $79,690 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641 6,641
TOTAL WORKFORCE OVERHEAD---> 0.272 $1,445,001 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417 120,417
NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD /Cs S $/YR Month13 Month14 Month1l5 Month1l6 Monthl7 Month18 Month19 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
Warehouse Loss & Waste break
Breakage cost as 0.001 x 4.7MM Cases x $85 0.001 0.085 $451,577 36,171 46,648 36,487 28,314 26,869 35,900 34,501 41,410 47,551 38,971 35,765 42,990
Re-Pack-Boxes, Labels, Supplies 0.009 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
G&A Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expense /Supplies 0.005 $25,000 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083
Miscellaneous 0.004 $20,000 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD-->  0.103 $546,577 44,088 54,565 44,404 36,231 34,786 43,817 42,417 49,326 55,468 46,388 43,682 50,907
Special G&A Expenses /Cs S $/YR Month13 Month14 Month1l5 Month16 Month17 Month18 Month19 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
Outsourced Ops & Administration
NHSLC 8 Warehouse Employees 8 $400,000 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333
Concord Warehouse Shared Space Lease $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Computer Outsource Expense at $0.0X/case 4 0.080 $425,014 34,044 43,904 34,341 26,648 25,288 33,789 32,471 38,974 44,754 36,679 33,661 40,461
----to include 2 $65K onsite employees
Accounting Outsource Expense 1 0.008 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Internet/Phones 0.008 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Bonding /Liability Insurance 0.028 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
G&A Administration
Board of Directors 0.015 $398,451 31,916 41,160 32,195 24,983 23,708 31,677 30,442 36,538 41,957 34,386 31,557 37,932
Broker-Supplier Coordinator (Reserve) 1 0.015 $79,690 6,383 8,232 6,439 4,997 4,742 6,335 6,088 7,308 8,391 6,877 6,311 7,586
Exec Bonus (Reserve) 0.02 $106,253 8,511 10,976 8,585 6,662 6,322 8,447 8,118 9,743 11,188 9,170 8,415 10,115
Ops Bonus (Reserve) 0.015 $79,690 6,383 8,232 6,439 4,997 4,742 6,335 6,088 7,308 8,391 6,877 6,311 7,586
Consulting Ops 1 0.010 $53,127 4,255 5,488 4,293 3,331 3,161 4,224 4,059 4,872 5,594 4,585 4,208 5,058
Legal 2 0.019 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
TOTAL SPECIAL G&A EXPENSES--> 14 0.217 $2,072,225 168,992 195,492 169,792 149,118 145,462 168,307 164,766 182,242 197,776 176,074 167,964 186,240
FTEs /Cs $/YR
Total Manpower/Operating Expenses 98 $1.16 $7,151,013
Building Expenses /Cs S $/YR Month13 Month14 Month1l5 Month16 Month17 Month18 Month19 Month20 Month21 Month22 Month23 Month24
Repair and Maintanance 0.005 $24,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Landscape & Snow removal 0.006 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Utilities 0.035 $186,000 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500
Real Estate Taxes & Ins 0.128 $681,750 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813
General Insurance 0.028 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Misc Building Expense 0.009 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
TOTAL BUILDING EXPENSES--> $0.211 $1,121,750 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479








Total Operational Expenses--> $8,272,763 683,986 714,788 677,135 646,845 641,489 674,959 669,771 695,376 718,135 686,339 674,457 701,233
YEAR 2
Distributech, LLC
OPERATIONAL SUMMARY NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEP oct
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
Gross Revenues 14,113,747 1,130,511 1,140,391 1,140,391 884,932 839,768 1,122,043 1,078,290 1,294,231 1,486,178 1,218,016 1,117,809 1,343,629
Operational Expenses 8,272,763 683,986 714,788 677,135 646,845 641,489 674,959 669,771 695,376 718,135 686,339 674,457 701,233
$40,000,000 finance 20YRS
Rent 3,100,000 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333
State & Federal Taxes 877,800 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150 73,150
NET CASH FLOW 1,863,184 115,042 94,119 131,773 -93,396 -133,205 115,600 77,036 267,371 436,559 200,194 111,868 310,912
Gross Revenues 14,113,747
Operational Expenses 8,272,763
Rent 3,100,000
OPERATING INCOME 2,740,984
STATE BPT @ 8.5% 232,984
NET INCOME 2,508,001
FEDERAL INCOME TAX 35% 877,800
@ AFTER TAX INCOME 1,630,200
EBITDA 5,840,984
2-Year Accumulated After Tax Income 3,246,203

Assumptions: (1) Based upon State Liguor Commission Annual Reports, the annual growth in case throughput increases 3% per year

(2) Our rates are "fixed" for the first 30 months, and then we are allowed a Negotiated Increase or at least a CPI adjustment --assume 2.5%
(3) Built into the proforma is the addition of 4 additional warehouse employees Year2 and 4 more in Year3
(4) Built into the proforma is a 4.0% reserve/allocation for labor raises /YR, and related increase of overhead







5,472,055 Total Cases
YEAR 3 $2.00 /case  Jan-Jun 2,599,773 cases before CPI ADJ $5,199,547
Distributech, LLC $2.05 /case  Jul-Dec 2,872,282 cases after CPI ADJ $5,888,178 $14,604,258 Gross Revenue
$0.01 /case/day 829,150 AVG cases on-hand $3,026,398
$0.50 /bottle Mixed Cs 980,272 + mixed case bottles $490,136
Month 31 [2.5%CP| Rate Increase] NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP oCT
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
FTEs /Cs S Subtotal Month25 Month26 Month27 Month28 Month29 Month30 Month31l Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
Warehouse Labor Expenses
Receiving / Put Away
Operations Manager 1 $0.01 75,000 $75,000 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250 6,250
Whse Manager 1 $0.01 65,000 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Single Bottle Pick Manager 1 $0.01 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Forklift Operator / Receivers 3 $0.02 35,000 $105,000 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750
Product Check-in (ADDED 1 MORE) 2 $0.01 31,200 $62,400 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200
Directed Product Storage (ADDED 1 MORE) 7 $0.03 25,000 $175,000 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583 14,583
Replenishment
Night Shift Supervisor 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Pallet Pick Replenishment 2 $0.009 25,000 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Case Flow Replenishment (ADDED 1 MORE) 5 $0.025 27,000 $135,000 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250
Bottle Pick Replenishment 2 $0.010 28,000 $56,000 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667 4,667
Order Picking
Full Case Order Pickers From Floor 7 $0.040 31,200 $218,400 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200 18,200
Full Case Pickers Cluster toFlow Rack (+1) 11 $0.067 33,300 $366,300 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525 30,525
Case Pick Add-ons/Misc 4 $0.018 25,000 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
Single Bottle Pick 7 $0.045 35,000 $245,000 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417
Shipping
Console Operator 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Palletizers/Loaders/ Picker, Add-on's 8 $0.037 25,000 $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Staging -shipping p $0.012 32,500 $65,000 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417 5,417
Licensee Service Manager 1 $0.007 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Dispatch 1 $0.006 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
Inventory
Inventory Manager 1 $0.009 48,000 $48,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000
Inventory Assistant | 1 $0.007 37,500 $37,500 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125 3,125
Inventory Assistant Il 1 $0.006 31,200 $31,200 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600 2,600
Breakage /Recouping/Maintenance
Breakage/QC 2 $0.008 21,840 $43,680 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640 3,640
Maintainance Manager 1 $0.011 60,000 $60,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Maintainance/Facilities 2 $0.021 57,000 $114,000 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500
Custodial 1 $0.004 22,800 $22,800 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900
Security 1 $0.006 35,000 $35,000 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
Labor Raises 4.0% $0.039 $205,900 17,158 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917 2,917
TOTAL WAREHOUSE LABOR--> 77 $0.461 $2,729,180 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273 210,273
Office G&A Labor Expenses FTEs  /Cs $ $/YR Month25 Month26 Month27 Month28 Month29 Month30 Month31 Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
CEO -Mike 1 $0.015 82,081 $82,081 6,575 8,479 6,632 5,146 4,884 6,525 6,271 7,527 8,643 7,084 6,501 7,814
Vice President Warehouse Ops 1 $0.027 150,000 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Traffic Controller 1 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Traffic Controller 2 1 $0.008 45,000 $45,000 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750
Assistant to CEO 1 $0.007 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Assistant to VP 1 $0.007 40,000 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Customer Service 2 $0.006 35,000 $70,000 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833 5,833
Receptionist 1 $0.005 30,000 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500







Office Clerk 2 $0.006 $62,000 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167 5,167
Labor Raises 4.0% $0.008 $46,029 3,836 3,836 3,836 3,836 3,836
TOTAL G&A OFFICE LABOR---> 11 0.099 610,110 48,646 46,799 45,313 46,438 47,981
YEAR 3
Distributech, LLC
Workforce Overhead FTEs  /Cs $/YR Month25 Month26 Month27 Month28 Month29 Month30 Month31 Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
Payroll Tax @ 8.5% 88 0.052 $283,840 23,653 23,653 23,653 23,653 23,653
Medical Insurance 88 0.113 $616,000 51,333 51,333 51,333 51,333 51,333
Non Medical Benefit Program 88 0.009 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
Workers Compensation 88 0.049 $265,536 22,128 22,128 22,128 22,128 22,128
Uniforms 65 0.000 $650 54 54 54 54 54
Health & Safety-Pre-Employment and Boots 65 0.080 $439,765 36,647 36,647 36,647 36,647 36,647
401(k) Match --5% Reserve 88 0.031 $166,964 13,914 13,914 13,914 13,914 13,914
Employee Rewards Program Reserve 88 0.015 $82,081 6,840 6,840 6,840 6,840 6,840
TOTAL WORKFORCE OVERHEAD---> 0.348 $1,904,836 158,736 158,736 158,736 158,736 158,736
DEC JAN FEB MAY oct
10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 7.64% 9.52%
MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD /Cs S/YR Month26 Month27 Month28 Month31 Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
Warehouse Loss & Waste break
Breakage cost as 0.001 x 4.7MM Cases x $85 0.001 0.085 $465,125 48,047 37,582 29,163 35,536 44,280
Re-Pack-Boxes, Labels, Supplies 0.009 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
G&A Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expense /Supplies 0.005 $25,000 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083
Miscellaneous 0.004 $20,000 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS OPERATIONS OVERHEAD--> 0.102 $560,125 55,964 45,499 37,080 43,452 52,197
Special G&A Expenses /Cs $/YR Month25 Month26 Month27 Month28 Month29 Month30 Month31 Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
Outsourced Ops & Administration
NHSLC 8 Warehouse Employees 8 $400,000 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333 33,333
Concord Warehouse Shared Space Lease $200,000 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667 16,667
Computer Outsource Expense at $0.0X/case 4 0.080 $437,764 45,221 35,371 27,448 33,445 41,675
----to include 2 $65K onsite employees
Accounting Outsource Expense 1 0.007 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Internet/Phones 0.007 $40,000 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333
Bonding /Liability Insurance 0.027 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
G&A Administration
Board of Directors 5 0.015 $410,404 42,395 33,161 25,732 31,355 39,070
Broker-Supplier Coordinator (Reserve) 1 0.015 $82,081 8,479 6,632 5,146 6,271 7,814
CEO Bonuses (Reserve) 0.02 $109,441 11,305 8,843 6,862 8,361 10,419
VP of Ops Bonuses (Reserve) 0.015 $82,081 8,479 6,632 5,146 6,271 7,814
Rath Law 2 0.018 $100,000 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333 8,333
TOTAL SPECIAL G&A EXPENSES--> 13 0.205 $2,051,771 193,379 168,139 147,835 163,203 184,293
FTEs  /Cs $/YR
Total Manpower/Operating Expenses 101 $1.22 $7,856,021
Building Expenses /Cs $/YR Month25 Month26 Month27 Month28 Month29 Month30 Month31l Month32 Month33 Month34 Month35 Month36
Repair and Maintanance 0.004 $24,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Landscape & Snow removal 0.005 $30,000 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500
Utilities 0.034 $186,000 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500 15,500
Real Estate Taxes & Ins 0.125 $681,750 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813 56,813
General Insurance 0.027 $150,000 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500







Misc Building Expense 0.009 $50,000 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167 4,167
TOTAL BUILDING EXPENSES--> $0.205 $1,121,750 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479 93,479
Total Operational Expenses--> $8,977,771 721,757 760,477 722,925 692,717 687,376 720,756 715,582 741,117 763,815 732,105 720,255 746,959
YEAR 3
Distributech, LLC
OPERATIONAL SUMMARY NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JuL AUG SEP ocT
8.01% 10.33% 8.08% 6.27% 5.95% 7.95% 7.64% 9.17% 10.53% 8.63% 7.92% 9.52%
Gross Revenues 14,604,258 1,169,801 1,180,024 1,180,024 915,687 868,953 1,161,039 1,115,765 1,339,210 1,537,828 1,260,347 1,156,657 1,390,325
Operational Expenses 8,977,771 721,757 760,477 722,925 692,717 687,376 720,756 715,582 741,117 763,815 732,105 720,255 746,959
$40,000,000 finance 20YRS
Rent 3,100,000 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333 258,333
State & Federal Taxes 809,107 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426 67,426
NET CASH FLOW 1,717,379 122,285 93,788 131,340 -102,789 -144,182 114,524 74,424 272,334 448,254 202,484 110,643 317,608
Gross Revenues 14,604,258
Operational Expenses 8,977,771
Rent 3,100,000
OPERATING INCOME 2,526,486
STATE BPT @ 8.5% 214,751
NET INCOME 2,311,735
FEDERAL INCOME TAX 35% 809,107
@ AFTER TAX INCOME 1,502,628
EBITDA 2,526,486
3-Year Accumulated After Tax Income 4,748,831

Assumptions: (1) Based upon State Liquor Commission Annual Reports, the annual growth in case throughput increases 3% per year

(2) Our rates are "fixed" for the first 30 months, and then we are allowed a Negotiated Increase or at least a CPI adjustment --assume 2.5%
(3) Built into the proforma is the addition of 4 additional warehouse employees Year2 and 4 more in Year3
(4) Built into the proforma is a 4.0% reserve/allocation for labor raises /YR, and related increase of overhead







W&H Systems Costs:

Summary of Distributech Facility Costs

STAHLMAN GROUP: CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY

Pallet Racking $900,000
Modules, Structure, Guarding $385,000
Conveyors, Sorters & WCS Software $3,100,000
Compressed Air System $60,000
Stretch Wrappers $280,000
Freight $125,000
Cubiscan (2x) $45,000
WMS - Full High Jump $700,000

Total: $5,595,000
Warehouse Handling-Equipment $2,400,000

New Liquor Distribution Center 333,770 sq ft

WORK ITEM COST/ SQFT AMOUNT
1.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS S 3.58 $1,195,070
2.0 SITE WORK 12.18 4,065,971
3.0 CONCRETE 8.61 2,872,650
4.0 MASONRY 0.12 40,000
5.0 METALS 13.23 4,417,033
6.0 CARPENTRY & MILLWORK 0.28 94,000
7.0 THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION 4.07 1,358,888
8.0 DOORS & WINDOWS 0.51 171,300
9.0 FINISHES 2.23 743,193
10.0 SPECIALTIES 0.10 33,300
11.0 EQUIPMENT 0.91 302,800
12.0 FURNISHINGS -
13.0 SPECIALTY CONSTRUCTION 3.42 1,141,505
15.0FP FIRE PROTECTION 3.20 1,067,109
15.0P PLUMBING 2.09 698,249
15.0H HVAC 3.14 1,049,375
15.0R REFRIGERATION SYSTEM 0.36 120,000
16.0 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 9.89 3,299,760
DIVISIONS 1 - 16 SUBTOTAL S 67.92 $22,670,203
GEOGRAPHICAL & LABOR ADJUSTMENT - -
LEED CERTIFICATION ADJUSTMENT - -
COST OF THE WORK SUBTOTAL S 67.92 $22,670,203
17.0 COMPREHENSIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE 0.68 226,702
18.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2.59 866,106
19.0 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT FEE 2.49 831,705
TOTAL ESTIMATE S 73.68 524,594,716
CONTINGENCY 2.85 950,520
CONSTRUCTION BUDGET S 76.53  $25,545,236
W&H SYSTEMS (AUTOMATION AND RACKING) $5,595,000
COST OF EXCLUSIONS (ALLOWANCES) $2,074,933
MATERIALS HANDLING EQUIPMENT $2,400,000

(ALLOWANCE)

OVERALL PROJECT BUDGET S 99.23  $35,615,169










From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: "Goclowski, Mike"

Cc: John D. Bunnell; George P. Tsiopras; "Judge, Steve"
Subject: To Distributech - Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14
Date: Monday, June 18, 2012 3:39:08 PM

Mike:

As we previously notified you by email, the Evaluation Committee is performing its initial analysis. We
have several questions about your proposal. In order to expedite the process, we would like your

answers to our questions by email by Friday, June 22nd.

Please do not draw any conclusions from the following questions. They are asked in order to confirm
that we understand specific parts of your proposal. Do not assume that our questions bring any weight
to that part of your proposal about which we have asked. In other words, take the questions at face
value and just answer them as completely and with as much detail as possible.

Our questions are as follows:

vk wnNPRe

o

Do you subscribe to “open data Standards”

Do you have “open data formats” as part of your proposals?

Does your proposal include all licenses required to operate hardware/software?

Does your proposal include maintenance for all hardware/software?

Does your proposal rely on customized interfaces to integrate with the NHLC existing

applications?

What are your projections for volumes by month in each of the pricing categories included in
Appendices D and D-1 for the first 30 months of this contract and each subsequent 30-month
period through the end of the contract? Please explain the basis for your projection. Please
address only the basic bailment charges: inbound handling, storage, and outbound order
processing/reporting. For example, in the first month of the contract, how many cases do you
assume will be inbound in the category of codes of 1-1807?

In Section 3.0.12, Page 26, the RFP requires that the proposal shall list separtately all charges
which could be incurred by the NHSLC and all charges which could be incurred by the
suppliers in the operation of the warehouse. Are all charges included in Appendices D and D-
1? Specifically, identify where a charge, if any, for outbound handling is located. For
example, outbound handling may already be included in the charge for inbound handling.

We have read Section 1.5.8 on Page 13 of your proposal. Nevertheless, Part I, Section 1.5.8,
Page 9 of the RFP requires the vendor to provide audited financial statements for the past
three years or an alternative satisfactory to the NHSLC. Part 4, Section 4.4, Page 32 of the
RFP requires a new entity to provide other relevant financial materials to demonstrate its
financial stability and capacity. Please provide us with sufficient financial materials to
demonstrate Distributech’s financial stability and capacity.

. In your proposal on Page 74, you indicate that you plan to build a facility at 15 Integra Drive in

Concord, NH. We understand that the location was recently zoned industrial. Please provide us
with a construction schedule that establishes that the facility will be operational on or before
October 31, 2013. The schedule must include a list of all permits required with a timetable for
acquiring them. Given the amount of traffic currently on Manchester Street, as well as the
commercial traffic from Associated Grocer's truck traffic, do you have approval from the City of
Concord to use Manchester Street in connection with your proposed site? The schedule must
also include a plan for construction and infrastructure, particularly automation. We have
reviewed the handout from the Stahlman Group included with your proposal. In addition to the
schedule requested above, please provide us with the names of all subcontractors that will be
responsible for construction and infrastructure.
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b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
D4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Web WEI - Mike G
Subject: Distributech - Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14
Date: Friday, June 15, 2012 3:54:38 PM

Mike — we need to schedule a walk around your proposed site. Please call me so we can schedule
for next week. Thanks.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

& (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.

From: Mike G [mailto:mike@webwei.com]

Sent: Friday, June 15, 2012 2:52 PM

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: Judge, Steve; John D. Bunnell; George P. Tsiopras

Subject: Re: Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14

Thank you. We have received this notification from your office and will await further
instructions.

Mike Goclowski

On Jun 15, 2012 1:50 PM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@ligquor.state.nh.us> wrote:

Dear Vendors:

The Evaluation Committee is performing its initial analysis. We will have several questions about your
proposal no later than Monday, June 18", In order to expedite the process, we would like your
answers to our questions by Friday, June 22nd,

When you receive our questions, please do not draw any conclusions from them. They are asked in
order to confirm that we understand specific parts of your proposal. Do not assume that our questions
bring any weight to that part of your proposal about which we have asked. In other words, take the
guestions at face value and just answer them as completely and with as much detail as possible.

We may well have more questions. To that end, we want to tour your proposed facility next week
during the timeframe of Tuesday, June 19t to Friday, June 22"d please contact me directly and be
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prepared to offer several dates when you will be available. Your cooperation on agreeing to meet with
us on one of these dates is greatly appreciated.

Please acknowledge receipt of this email. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
DA< cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by

telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Mike G

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: Judge, Steve; John D. Bunnell; George P. Tsiopras
Subject: Distributech - Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14
Date: Friday, June 15, 2012 2:52:35 PM

Thank you. We have received this notification from your office and will await further
instructions.

Mike Goclowski

On Jun 15, 2012 1:50 PM, "Craig W. Bulkley" <cbulkley@Iiquor.state.nh.us> wrote:
Dear Vendors:

The Evaluation Committee is performing its initial analysis. We will have several questions about
your proposal no later than Monday, June 18™M. In order to expedite the process, we would like your
answers to our questions by Friday, June 22nd,

When you receive our questions, please do not draw any conclusions from them. They are asked in
order to confirm that we understand specific parts of your proposal. Do not assume that our
questions bring any weight to that part of your proposal about which we have asked. In other words,
take the questions at face value and just answer them as completely and with as much detail as
possible.

We may well have more questions. To that end, we want to tour your proposed facility next week

during the timeframe of Tuesday, June 19" to Friday, June 22", Please contact me directly and be
prepared to offer several dates when you will be available. Your cooperation on agreeing to meet
with us on one of these dates is greatly appreciated.

Please acknowledge receipt of this email. Thank you.

B% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director
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Division of Administration
NH State Liqguor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559
>4 cbulkley@liquor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to
criminal prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me

by telephone at (603)230-7008.
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From: Craig W. Bulkley

To: Craig W. Bulkley

Cc: John D. Bunnell; George P. Tsiopras; "Judge, Steve"
Subject: Warehouse Services RFP 2012-14

Date: Friday, June 15, 2012 1:50:38 PM

Dear Vendors:

The Evaluation Committee is performing its initial analysis. We will have several questions about your
proposal no later than Monday, June 18" In order to expedite the process, we would like your
answers to our questions by Friday, June 22nd,

When you receive our questions, please do not draw any conclusions from them. They are asked in
order to confirm that we understand specific parts of your proposal. Do not assume that our questions
bring any weight to that part of your proposal about which we have asked. In other words, take the
guestions at face value and just answer them as completely and with as much detail as possible.

We may well have more questions. To that end, we want to tour your proposed facility next week

during the timeframe of Tuesday, June 19t to Friday, June 22"d_ please contact me directly and be
prepared to offer several dates when you will be available. Your cooperation on agreeing to meet with
us on one of these dates is greatly appreciated.

Please acknowledge receipt of this email. Thank you.

b% Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.

Craig W. Bulkley

Director

Division of Administration
NH State Liquor Commission

@ (603) 230-7008

FAX (603) 271-3897
Cell: (603) 490-1559

>4 cbulkley@liguor.state.nh.us

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the
individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This communication may contain material protected by
law. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the
intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination,
forwarding, printing, or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited and may be subject to criminal
prosecution. If you have received this e-mail in error, please destroy and immediately notify me by
telephone at (603)230-7008.
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